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1. WELCOME 
 

2. STREAMING PREAMBLE 

• As the meeting Chair, I give my consent for this Ordinary Council Meeting to be streamed live, 

recorded and published online.  Anyone who is invited to read out a question or make a submission 

will be recorded and their voice, image, and comments will form part of that livestream and 

recording. 

• The Chair and/or the CEO have the discretion and authority at any time to direct the termination or 

interruption of livestreaming.  Such direction will only be given in exceptional circumstances where 

deemed appropriate, that may include where the content of debate is considered misleading, 

defamatory or potentially inappropriate to be published. 

• The live stream will stop prior to the closed section of the meeting and will recommence for the 

conclusion of the meeting.   

• The public is able to view this livestream via our website at www.pyrenees.vic.gov.au. 

• Should technical issues prevent the continuation of the live stream, the meeting will continue as 

long as a quorum can be maintained and, where possible, a recording of the meeting will be 

published on Council’s website.  Where a quorum cannot be maintained, the meeting will be 

adjourned until the issue is resolved or the meeting postponed to another time and date in 

accordance with Council’s Governance Rules. 

 

3. OPENING PRAYER 
Heavenly Father, we ask you to give your blessing to this Council, direct and prosper its deliberations to the 
advancement of your glory, and the true welfare of the people of the Pyrenees Shire. 

Amen 
 

4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY 
We acknowledge the people past and present of the Wadawurrung, Dja Dja Wurrung, Eastern Maar and 
Wotjobaluk tribes, whose land forms the Pyrenees Shire. 
 
We pay our respect to the customs, traditions and stewardship of the land by the elders and people of 
these tribes, on whose land we meet today. 
 
5. APOLOGIES 
 
6. NOTICE OF DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST BY COUNCILLORS AND OFFICERS 
 

http://www.pyrenees.vic.gov.au/
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7. CONFIRMATION OF THE PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Minutes of the: 

• Ordinary Meeting of Council held on 15 August 2023 
 

as previously circulated to Councillors, be confirmed. 

 
8. BUSINESS ARISING 
There was no business arising (items taken on notice) from the previous meeting held 15 August 2023. 

 

9. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Public Participation 

• Members of the community are encouraged to participate in public Ordinary Council Meetings by 
asking questions or presenting a submission. 

 

• This can be done by attending in person or by submitting in writing, prior to 12.00 noon on the day of 
the meeting, online through Council’s website, by mail or hand-delivered. 

 

• If a question or submission is submitted in writing, this will be read by the Chair during public 
participation, stating the person’s name and township. 

 

• Question time will be held first, followed by public submissions.   
 

• 30 minutes is allowed for the total period of public participation.  Time extensions may be allowed at 
the discretion of the Chair subject to the provisions of the Governance Rules. 

 

• A person may ask a maximum of two questions at any one meeting. 
 

• The Chair will allocate a maximum of five (5) minutes to each person who wishes to address Council or 
ask question(s). 

 

• The Chair, Councillor, or Council officer to whom a question is referred may immediately answer the 
question or take the question on notice for answering at a later date. 

 

• There will be no discussion or debate with public attendees however Councillors may ask questions of 
the attendee for clarification. 
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10. ITEMS FOR NOTING 
 
10.1. CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
10.1.1. CUSTOMER ACTION REQUESTS - JULY 2023 
Presenter: Kathy Bramwell - Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As presenter of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
Report Author: Kathy Bramwell – Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 16/08/04 
   
PURPOSE 
This report provides updates on contacts made by our community through a range of media, including the 
Customer Action Request System and emails, for August 2023. This report's purpose is to demonstrate 
ongoing efforts to improve responsiveness to customers and the community over time. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Our community contact officers through a range of means, including but not limited to: 
 

• Customer Action Request System (CARS) 

• Emails – directly to officers or via the central pyrenees@pyrenees.vic.gov.au email address 

• Via telephone or face-to-face with Council’s switchboard or front counters 

• Complaints 

• Requests for information via Freedom of Information (FOI) processes 

• Social media 
 
The Council has operated an electronic Customer Action Request System (CARS) for many years enabling 
residents to lodge service requests. Requests can be lodged in person, via telephone, via Council’s website 
or by using a smart phone “Snap Send Solve” application. Requests input via the “Snap Send Solve” 
application must be input manually by customer service officers into the CAR (Customer Action Requests) 
system as this currently does not accept automatic uploads. 
 
Service requests are received for operational issues regarding maintenance, road maintenance, pools, local 
laws, building maintenance and compliance matters. Complaints are received and managed separately to 
action requests and monthly checks are made of customer action requests to identify requests that should 
be managed as complaints. 
 
Requests logged through the customer action requests system form a minority of the contacts received by 
Council officers monthly, however, remain an important method of identifying where problems exist that 
need to be addressed. 
 
Council has noted a declining trend in customer satisfaction over the past 10 years and this report will 
continue to be reformatted over the next few months to expand information on officer response to 
community contact to demonstrate efforts made to reverse this trend. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION - CUSTOMER CONTACT 
For years, reporting on customer contact has been limited to customer action requests (CARs). This limited 
report does not provide a proper indication of the number and type of customer contacts received and 
provides a skewed impression of officers’ response to such contact. It is intended, therefore, to expand this 
monthly report to include other types of contact and, over time, demonstrate where improvements have 
been made to customer service and responsiveness. 
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Statistics on direct face-to-face contact will be developed and built upon over the next few months. 
 

Customer contact media June 2023 July 2023 August 2023 

Emails received by organisation 42,906 94,409 56,093 

External complaints received 0 3 4 

FOI Requests for information 2 1 4 

Requests for review of 
infringements 

1 1 2 

Website page views 25,724 17,970*  

Website users 5,190 5,472  

Website contact us page 681 645  

Website customer enquiry form n/a 54  

*under-reported due to platform changes 

 
Comments: 

• Emails remain a growing source of customer contact, taking significant time and resources to 
manage.   

• FOI Requests continue, primarily through one organisation intending to submit one per month, 
starting in May 2023 – requests from this same organisation now total 8 received between May 
and August 2023.  Searches associated with FOI requests can impose significant workload pressures 
on staff if the request is complex. 

 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION - CUSTOMER ACTION REQUESTS 
This report will continue the provision of information relating to customer action requests: 
 

1. Logged and closed requests 
373 CARs (Customer Action Requests) were logged in August 2023, 29 more than the previous month. Of 
these, 103 related to telephone messages. 
 
413 requests were closed during the month, demonstrating the ongoing effort officers are making to 
maintain focus on addressing and closing requests.  
 
The following charts detail the numbers of requests received over the last 12 months and the number of 
requests closed each month. 
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2. Telephone requests 

103 telephone calls were transferred into requests in August 2023, with 21 requests remaining outstanding 
at the end of the month. The following charts detail the trend in telephone calls remaining outstanding at 
the end of each month. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

3. Open Customer Action Requests 
The number of open requests is now reported differently. Some requests that have had initial contact with 
the customer but are unable to be resolved quickly for some reason, are now being moved to being ‘on-
hold’ and some may be referred to budget (e.g., long term drainage issues). 
 
At the end of August 2023, there was a total of 344 active or open requests. These include: 
 

• 139 which are open and assigned for action 

• 159 which are on hold awaiting resolution or action scheduling 

• 1 referred to budget 

• 1 in progress – meaning that they are longer term case managed issues  

• 1 being managed. 
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On hold – 159 requests were on hold as at the end of August. In general, these relate to matters that have 
had initial contact and require additional work or case management, or have been put on a schedule for 
action - e.g.,  
 

• Complex local law matters, mostly relating to shipping containers or dog complaints. 

• Road improvement requests. 

• Flood impacts / Natural disaster. 

• Long term drainage works. 
 
Open requests – the balance of this report will focus on the open requests as previously, but statistics 
relating to requests marked as on-hold or referred-to-budget have been included in the table. 
 
Of the non-telephone call requests received in August, the following represents those received and still 
open at the of the last month by Ward: 
 

 
Avoca 
Ward 

Beaufort 
Ward 

DeCameron 
Ward 

Ercildoune 
Ward 

Mt Emu 
Ward 

Number of requests received in 
August 2023 (previous month) 

55(39) 70(88) 51(22) 46(31) 48(47) 

Requests received in August 
and closed in the same month 
(%) 

39(71%) 54(77%) 39(76%) 33(72%) 37(777) 

Requests received in August 
remaining open and assigned 
for action  

12 10 8 11 9 

Requests received in August 
on-hold awaiting final works or 
resolution 

3 6 4 2 2 

Requests received in August 
referred to budget 

0 0 0 0 0 

Total open (assigned) requests 
as at the end of August 2023  

25 21 18 22 17 

 
The following charts show the numbers of requests received by Ward per month for the past 12 months. 
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The following charts show the statistics for requests that remained open each month for the past 12 
months. These charts now include requests put on hold or referred to budget. 
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The following chart shows the open assigned requests by Ward as at the end of August 2023, excluding 
those referred-to-budget or on-hold. 
 

 
 
The following table provides greater detail of the areas / type where outstanding requests remain, showing 
the functional areas and numbers of requests still outstanding as at the end of the last month. This data 
includes those referred-to-budget or on-hold. 
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COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Enabling Principles 
a. Motivate and inspire community involvement 
b. Provide transparency and accountability 
c. Use resources efficiently and effectively 
 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT / CONSULTATION OUTCOMES 
This report did not require any community engagement or consultation, other than that provided via this 
report. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
All risks are discussed in the body of the report. 
 
CONCLUSION 
The customer action request system remains an integral part of Council’s reactive identification of issues 
that need attention. This report provides an update on customer action requests as at the end of August 
2023.  Reporting is being expanded over future months to include other media of customer contact officers 
receive. 
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OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council notes this report. 
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10.2. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE 
 
10.2.1. MAYORAL INTERSTATE TRAVEL 
Presenter: Jim Nolan - Chief Executive Officer 
Declaration of Interest: As presenter of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
Report Author: Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 18/02/02 
  
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to advise Council of Mayor, Cr Ron Eason’s intent to travel interstate. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Mayor has advised of his intent to travel interstate for holiday purposes between the September and 
October Ordinary Council Meetings.  
 
It is possible for the Mayor to fulfil the duties of Mayor while interstate, and delegate / nominate other 
Councillors to undertake any activities in support in the form of representation at events or forums for 
example, however Council may also choose to appoint an Acting Mayor for the period. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Should the Council see it necessary to appoint another Councillor to be Acting Mayor for the period, there 
is provision to do so under section 20B of the Local Government Act 2020 as follows: 
 
20B Acting Mayor  
(1) A Council may appoint a Councillor to be the Acting Mayor when—  

(a) the Mayor is unable for any reason to attend a Council meeting or part of a Council meeting; or  
(b) the Mayor is incapable of performing the duties of the office of Mayor for any reason, including 
illness; or  
(c) the office of Mayor is vacant.  

(2) An appointment under subsection (1) must be for a period specified by the Council.  
(3) If—  

(a) an appointment has not been made under subsection (1) or has expired; and  
(b) any of the circumstances specified in subsection (1)(a), (b) or (c) apply— the Council must 
appoint a Councillor to be the Acting Mayor for a period specified by the Council.  

(4) An Acting Mayor—  
(a) must perform the role of the Mayor; and  
(b) may exercise any of the powers of the Mayor— until the circumstances specified in subsection 
(1) no longer apply or the period of the appointment expires, whichever first occurs.  

(5) If an Acting Mayor has been appointed, unless inconsistent with the context or subject matter, a 
reference in this Act (except in sections 20 and 23, Division 4 of this Part and sections 61(6) and 236(4)) to 
the Mayor includes a reference to the Acting Mayor.  
 
There would not appear to be any urgent matters of business during the period that would warrant the 
appointment of an Acting Mayor. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Priority 1 - People 
1d. Promote health, wellbeing, engagement and connection. 
 
Enabling Principles 
b. Provide transparency and accountability 
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ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
There are no financial implications should Council choose not to appoint an Acting Mayor. Should an Acting 
Mayor be appointed, then an appropriate remuneration adjustment would be made for the period. 
 
CONCLUSION 
There would appear to be no urgent matter that would warrant the appointment of an Acting Mayor, and it 
is suggested that Council notes the intention of the Mayor to travel interstate for the period between the 
September and October Council Meetings. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council:  
 

1. Notes this report. 
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11. COUNCILLOR ACTIVITY REPORTS 
11.1. COUNCILLOR ACTIVITY REPORTS - AUGUST 2023 

Cr Damian Ferrari – Beaufort Ward 

08/08/2023 Councillor Briefing Beaufort 

08/08/2023 Councillor Cuppa and Chat Lake Goldsmith 

15/08/2023 Councillor Briefing Beaufort 

15/08/2023 Council Meeting Beaufort 

25/08/2023 Western Highway Action Committee Meeting Ballan 

  

 Cr David Clark – Ercildoune Ward 

04/08/2023 MAV Board Meeting Melbourne 

08/08/2023 Councillor Briefing Beaufort 

08/08/2023 Councillor Cuppa and Chat Lake Goldsmith 

09/08/2023 MAV Wimmera Southern Mallee Central Highlands Regional Meeting Virtual 

10/08/2023 CVGA Finance and Audit Committee Virtual 

15/08/2023 Councillor Briefing Beaufort 

15/08/2023 Council Meeting Beaufort 

17/08/2023 CVGA Board Meeting Virtual 

30/08/2023 Highlands LLEN Meeting Ballarat 

  

 Cr Robert Vance – De Cameron Ward 

08/08/2023 Councillor Briefing Beaufort 

08/08/2023 Councillor Cuppa and Chat Lake Goldsmith 

09/08/2023 MAV Wimmera Southern Mallee Central Highlands Regional Meeting Virtual 

15/08/2023 Councillor Briefing Beaufort 

15/08/2023 Council Meeting Beaufort 

23/08/2023 Moonambel Public Hall / Reserve Committee Meeting Moonambel 

25/08/2023 Rural Councils Victoria Committee Meeting Virtual 

30/08 – 

01/09 2023 
Timber Towns AGM & Forum Portland 

  

 Cr Ron Eason – Avoca Ward 

08/08/2023 Councillor Briefing Beaufort 

08/08/2023 Councillor Cuppa and Chat Lake Goldsmith 

09/08/2023 MAV Wimmera Southern Mallee Central Highlands Regional Meeting Virtual 

15/08/2023 Councillor Briefing Beaufort 

15/08/2023 Council Meeting Beaufort 

24/08/2023 Meeting with GBAC Chair, Cr Des Hudson Beaufort 

29/08/2023 VLGGC Statewide Information Session Virtual 
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Cr Tanya Kehoe – Mount Emu Ward 

08/08/2023 Councillor Briefing Beaufort 

08/08/2023 Councillor Cuppa and Chat Lake Goldsmith 

15/08/2023 Councillor Briefing Beaufort 

15/08/2023 Council Meeting Beaufort 

 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

  
That Council notes this report. 
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12. ASSEMBLY OF COUNCILLORS 
12.1. ASSEMBLY OF COUNCILLORS - AUGUST 2023 

MEETING INFORMATION 

Meeting Name Councillor Briefing Session 

Meeting Date 8 August 2023 commenced at 1.00pm and closed at 4.30pm 

Meeting Location Beaufort 

 

Items Discussed 

1. Administrative matters 

2. Creative Community Draft Discussion Paper 

3. Insurable Properties Review Project 

4. Rainbow Serpent / Spirit Festival & Pyrenees Connection 

5. Operation Sandon 

6. Climate Change 

7. Agenda Review 

ATTENDEES 

Councillors Mayor Cr Ron Eason (virtual) Cr David Clark 

Cr Damian Ferrari Cr Robert Vance 

Apologies Cr Tanya Kehoe 

Staff Jim Nolan (Chief Executive Officer)  
Douglas Gowans (Director Assets and Development Services)  
Kathy Bramwell (Director Corporate and Community Services) 

Rachel Blackwell (Manager Planning & Development Services) 

Eoghan McColl (Coordinator Planning Services) 

Terry McAliece (Environment & Sustainability Officer) 

Visitors Nil 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES 

Item No: Councillor making 
disclosure 

Particulars of disclosure Councillor left 
meeting 
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MEETING INFORMATION 

Meeting Name Councillor Briefing Session 

Meeting Date 15 August 2023 commenced at 1.00pm and closed at 5.30pm 

Meeting Location Beaufort 

 

Items Discussed 

1. Governance 

2. Rainbow Serpent / Spirit & Pyrenees Connection – Gap Events 

3. WHAC Update 

4. Beaufort Linear Masterplan 

5. Memberships 

6. Greater Ballarat Alliance of Councils (GBAC) 

7. Projects 

8. Agenda Review 

ATTENDEES 

Councillors Mayor Cr Ron Eason (virtual) Cr David Clark 

Cr Damian Ferrari 
Cr Tanya Kehoe 

Cr Robert Vance 
 

Apologies Nil. 

Staff Jim Nolan (Chief Executive Officer)  
Douglas Gowans (Director Assets and Development Services)  
Kathy Bramwell (Director Corporate and Community Services) 

Rachel Blackwell (Manager Planning & Development Services) – item 2 

Eoghan McColl (Coordinator Planning Services) – item 2 

Ray Davies (Manager, Economic Development & Tourism - virtual) – item 4 

Visitors Loretta Agius, GAP Events – item 2 

Frank Venuto, GAP Events – item 2 

Andrew Grey, GAP Events – item 2 

Andrew Schudmak, GAP Events – item 2 

Katherine Howard, Emerge Associates (virtual) – item 4 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES 

Item No: Councillor making 
disclosure 

Particulars of disclosure Councillor left meeting 

5 Cr Clark MAV President Left at 3.43pm, 
returned at 3.52pm 8 (part) Cr Clark MAV President 

 

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 
 

  
That Council notes this report. 
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13. ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 
13.1. ASSET AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 
13.1.1. HEAVY VEHICLE APPROVED ROADS 
Presenter: Douglas Gowans - Director Asset and Development Services 
Declaration of Interest: As presenter of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
Report Author: Daniel Potter – Manager Engineering 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 64/08/06 
 
PURPOSE 
This report seeks the Council’s support to gazette (pre-approve) heavy vehicle access on selected Council-
managed roads. Gazettal of these selected roads would remove the requirement for heavy vehicles to 
apply for heavy vehicle permits via the National Heavy Vehicle Regulator (NHVR). 
 
BACKGROUND 
At the Council meeting on the 15th of  September 2020 (file no. 64/08/06), B-doubles were approved on 
link hierarchy roads where possible depending on bridges/major culverts capacity, pavement/shoulder 
strength and road configuration, etc. The report included the approval of 50km’s of the 284km’s of link 
roads within Pyrenees Shire Council to equating to a percentage of 18% approved for B-Double access. A 
copy of this council report is found in the attachments to this report. 
 
The approved B-Double roads within the September 2020 report included: 

• Eurambeen-Streatham Rd (partly managed by Ararat Shire Council) - 38.4kms  

• Woorndoo-Streatham Rd (managed by Ararat Shire Council) - 4.3kms 

• Beaufort-Carngham Rd (part between Carngham Streatham Rd to Ballarat Carngham Rd) - 5.59kms 

• Avoca-Bealiba Rd (part between Sunraysia Hwy to Hay Processor) - 1.0km and, 

• Darlington-Carranballac Rd (collector road classification) - 3.5kms 
 
Over the last 3 years, detailed investigations have been completed on bridges and pavements including 
condition inspections and/or structural reports either funded through operational budgets or external 
grant funding. These have provided additional information to inform potential changes to the gazetted B-
double network as well as the Performance Based Standards (PBS) Level 1 & 2A networks within Pyrenees 
Shire Council.     
 
As per the summary below, the number of approved heavy vehicle permits between July 2020 and June 
2023 within Pyrenees Shire Council was 775 permits. These heavy vehicle permits results in resources for 
people to submit their permits to the National Heavy Vehicle Regulator (NHVR - the national coordinating 
authority for all heavy vehicle permits), NHVR resources and resources from Council’s engineering team to 
review each application, provide alternative routes (if required) and approve.     
 

  Heavy Vehicle Class  

  Class 1 Class 2 Class 3 Total 

  396 342 37 775 

Class 2 Heavy 
Vehicle Sub-
classification 

B-double 
Up to 9 

axles, 26m 
long 

196   

Performance 
Base Standards 

PBS 1 9   

PBS 2 122   

PBS 3 15   
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Table 1: Summary of approved heavy vehicle permits between July 2020 and June 2023 within Pyrenees 
Shire Council 
Many of the 775 approved heavy vehicle permits in the past 3 years have been Class 2 Heavy Vehicles and 
utilize the ‘Link’ road hierarchy. A summary of the approved class 2 heavy vehicle permits on the higher 
used ‘link’ roads are included below for information:   

     Class 2 (July 2020 to June 2023) 

     B-
Double 

Performance 
Base Standards 

Total 

S.N. Roads Name From To Kms 

up to 9 
axles, 
26m 
long 

PBS1 
PBS 

2 
PBS 

3 
 

1 
Eurambeen-
Streatham Rd  

Mt. William 
Rd 

Western Hwy 24.19 45 2 50 1 98 

2 Mt. William Rd  
Eurambeen-

Streatham Rd 
West 

Boundary Rd 
22.64 28 3 40 1 72 

3a 
Carngham-Streatham 
Rd  

Glenelg Hwy Skipton Rd 24.39 16 3 13 0 32 

3b  
Carngham-Streatham 
Rd 

Skipton Rd 
Beaufort-

Carngham Rd 
17.98           

 4 
Beaufort-Carngham 
Rd 

Carngham-
Streatham Rd 

Linton-
Carngham Rd 

5.595 11 1 7 0 18 

5 Vite Vite – Skipton Rd  Glenelg Hwy  

Mt. Emu Creek 
(boundary of 
Corangamite 

Shire) 

4.43 3 0 3 0 6 

6a North St  High St  Homebush Rd 0.338 22 7 11 2 42 

6b Homebush Rd  North St 
 

Maryborough-
St.Arnaud Rd 

14.911 23 2 7 0 32 

7 Dunolly-Avoca Rd  
Maryborough-
St. Arnaud Rd 

Walker Rd 
(boundary of 

Central 
Goldfields 

Shire) 

3.915 12 2 6 0 20 

8a Albert St 
Beaufort 

Lexton Rd 
King St 0.405 13 0 3 1 17 

8b King St  Albert St  Main Lead Rd 0.694 16 2 6 1 25 

8c Main Lead Rd King St 
Raglan-

Elmhurst Rd 
6.65 16 2 8 0 26 

8d Raglan-Elmhurst Rd  Main Lead Rd Pyrenees Hwy 25.67 7 2 0 0 9 

9 
Moonambel-Natte 
Yallock Rd  

Maryborough-
St Arnaud Rd 

Stawell-Avoca 
Rd 

14.47 5 2 6 2 15 

   Total 166.28 217 28 160 8 412 

Table 2: Summary of the Class 2 heavy vehicle permits on the higher used ‘link’ classified roads. 
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There are over 300 different heavy vehicle configurations which are mainly grouped into four classes of 
freight/heavy vehicles. These four classes are General Access, Class 1, Class 2 and Class 3. An overview of 
heavy vehicle types is contained in the attachments. Below is a summary of the four heavy vehicle/freight 
classes:  

- General Access vehicles. These do not require heavy vehicle permits due to their size and include 
vehicles like rigid trucks, semitrailers and truck/dog combinations, etc.  

- Class 1. Includes Special Purpose Vehicles (SPV) like cranes, drill rigs, graders, firetrucks, etc, 
Agricultural Vehicles like headers, tractors, etc & Oversize/Overmass Vehicles like low loaders, 
platform trailers, etc.  

- Class 2. Includes Freight Vehicles (B-doubles and larger), performance based standard vehicles 
(PBS), larger Buses and vehicles exceeding 4.3m high.  

- Class 3 vehicles are vehicles that don’t fit into the mass or dimension of Class 2.  
 
For each of the 3 Classes (Class 1, 2 & 3) and sub-classes of heavy vehicles there are gazetted road 
classification maps that can be viewed on the VicRoads website. These can be accessed using the 
interactive maps found using the following link: https://www.vicroads.vic.gov.au/business-and-
industry/heavy-vehicle-industry/heavy-vehicle-map-networks--in-victoria. The National Heavy Vehicle 
Regulator (NHVR) are in the process of converting these state government maps into national maps. 
 
Link to the Class 2 Combinations B-double's map: 
https://nhvr.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=a24ada5b26c147788ce10765a8caf608 
 
The VicRoads heavy vehicle configuration maps that this report seeks support for gazettal changes to 
include: 

- ‘Class 2 B-double',  
- ‘Class 2 HML’,  
- ‘Class 2 GHMS - B-Double’,  
- ‘Class 2 GHMS – Rigid & Semi’,  
- ‘PBS Class 1 Combinations’ and,  
- ‘PBS Class 2A Combinations’.  

A copy of the heavy vehicle configurations that are included within these maps are highlighted in green 
within the attachment called “HV Configurations – with approved highlighted”. 
 
The process to manage other heavy vehicle classifications like Class 1, Class 3, PBS Class 2B & PBS Class 3 
combinations is proposed to remain unchanged with heavy vehicle permits still required.  
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
The following includes discussion on each of the ‘Link’ hierarchy roads and roads that this report seeks 
Council’s support to make changes to the gazetted heavy vehicle networks.  
 
The changes are summarized within the attached ‘A0’ sized roads map of the Shire with the previously B-
Double approved roads in ‘green’ and proposed additions to the gazette networks (B-double, HML, GHMS - 
B-Double/Rigid & Semi, PBS 1 and, PBS 2A) shown in ‘orange’.  
 
Link Roads: 

• Eurambeen Streatham Rd (Western Hwy to Shire Boundary) 
Included within the September 2020 council report for B-doubles pre-approval but this report seeks 
support to gazette additional access to HML, GHMS - B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 and PBS 
2A.  
 
Previous works on this road including the bridge replacement of bridge 59 near Geelong Rd in 2020 
help make this route suitable for the proposed gazettal. Additional capital works are planned to 

https://www.vicroads.vic.gov.au/business-and-industry/heavy-vehicle-industry/heavy-vehicle-map-networks--in-victoria
https://www.vicroads.vic.gov.au/business-and-industry/heavy-vehicle-industry/heavy-vehicle-map-networks--in-victoria
https://nhvr.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=a24ada5b26c147788ce10765a8caf608
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replace bridges 58 & 60 within the 23/24 FY budget to further maintain heavy vehicle access. The 
southern section managed by Ararat Rural City Council between Glenelg Hwy and property 
No.3119 is also currently approved for these vehicle configurations.  

  

• Mt. William Rd (Eurambeen-Streatham Rd & West Boundary Rd) 
This road is currently gazetted in the GHMS - B-Double and GHMS - Rigid/Semi networks. It is 
assumed that Mt William Rd was added to these GHMS networks due to the grain receival facility 
located at the intersection of Eurambeen-Streatham Rd and Mt. William Rd. To further support the 
freight industry, this report seeks Council’s support to update the gazetted access of the B-Double, 
HML, PBS 1 & PBS 2A networks.  
 
There are sections of the 22.6km’s of Mt. William Rd where the seal width is less than 6.0m wide 
but these will be monitored for any required maintenance or proposed for upgrade within future 
capital works budgets depending on priorities within Councils asset management plan.   
 

• Carngham Streatham Rd (Mt William Rd to Beaufort Carngham Rd) 
Seeking support to gazette for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & PBS 
2A.  
 
Sections of the pavement on Carngham Streatham Rd are in deteriorating condition which will 
require reconstruction in the near future due to subgrade strength and existing pavement 
thickness/strength. It is planned to submit funding applications for freight/heavy vehicle upgrades 
for these sections requiring upgrade and include within future capital works budget planning. These 
upgrades will maintain the proposed gazettal of this road.     
 
It is proposed that this road doesn’t include the full section and the section between Glenelg Hwy & 
Mt William Rd will remain unchanged (not gazetted) to discourage the use of Carngham Streatham 
Rd as an alternative route into Ballarat over the Glenelg Hwy.  
 

• Beaufort-Carngham Rd (Carngham Streatham Rd to Ballarat Carngham Rd)  
Included within the September 2020 council report for B-doubles pre-approval but this report seeks 
Council’s support to gazette additional access to HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 
& PBS 2A.  
 
The section between Western Hwy and Carngham Streatham Rd is not able to be added to the 
heavy vehicle gazetted networks due to strength issues of bridge 11 at Mena Park which is limited 
with a 30-tonne load limit. Once this bridge is upgraded, the full section of Beaufort-Carngham Rd 
will most likely be able to be added to the B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, 
PBS 1 & PBS 2A gazetted networks.  
 

• Linton-Carngham Rd (Ballarat Carngham Rd to Smythdale-Snake Valley Rd) 
Seeking support to gazette for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & PBS 
2A. The addition of this road links Snake Valley to Ballarat via Ballarat Carngham Rd. This section of 
Linton-Carngham Rd is in good condition and only has one bridge that will require additional 
monitoring to ensure the gazatted heavy vehicle networks are maintained. This is bridge 25 which a 
small U-Slab bridge that includes a thick pavement over the U-Slab deck      
 
The full section of Linton-Carngham Rd is not appropriate for approvals on the heavy vehicle 
networks due to bridge 28 which is load limited due to its arrangement and condition. 
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• Smythesdale-Snake Valley Rd 
Seeking support to gazette for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & PBS 
2A. Recent and proposed reconstruction of sections of this road have increased the capacity of 
being able to allow heavy vehicle access to this road.  
 
The section of this road between the Shire Boundary and the Glenelg Hwy is managed by Golden 
Plains Shire Council and isn’t currently included within the VicRoads Gazetted maps, but this road is 
a key link to the Snake Valley area. 
 

• Raglan-Elmhurst Rd, Main Lead Rd, King St & Albert St 
Seeking support to gazette for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & PBS 
2A. Recent upgrade/reconstruction of bridge 139 within Raglan provides this route to cater for 
heavy vehicle access. 
 

• Dunolly-Avoca Rd 
Seeking support to gazette for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & PBS 
2A. Dunolly-Avoca Rd is approved for these heavy vehicle classifications within Central Goldfields 
Shire Council and approval of this road will complete the link to Sunraysia Hwy.   

 

• Homebush Rd & North St, Avoca 
Seeking support to gazette for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & PBS 
2A. There are three bridges along this route which will require upgrading in the near future and will 
continue to be monitored for performance. 
 

• Moonambel-Natte Yallock Rd 
Seeking support to gazette for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & PBS 
2A.  
 

• Amphitheatre Rd 
No change, restricted/no access for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & 
PBS 2A classifications. 
 
There are 3 bridges on this route which don’t have a capacity/strength to support the loadings of 
the heavy vehicles included in the B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & 
PBS 2A classification. These bridges are number 185, 2 & 99 on Lexton Ararat Rd.  
 

• Lexton-Ararat Rd 
No change, restricted/no access for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & 
PBS 2A classifications. 
 
There are two bridges on this route which don’t have a capacity/strength to support the loadings of 
the heavy vehicles included in the B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & 
PBS 2A classification. These bridges are No.97 within Lexton and No.99 near Amphitheatre 
between.  
 

• Landsborough-Elmhurst Rd 
No change, restricted/no access for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & 
PBS 2A classifications. 
Current due to 30t load limits on Bridges 89 & 90. 
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• Landsborough Rd (Landsborough-Stawell Rd) 
No change, restricted/no access for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & 
PBS 2A classifications. 
 
There is one large 3 span U-slab deck bridge on this route which is comparable to similar bridges 
within Pyrenees Shire Council which have had structural modelling completed. The structural 
modelling completed provides sufficient information that the arrangement of this bridge doesn’t 
have the capacity/strength to support the loadings of the heavy vehicles included in the B-Double, 
HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & PBS 2A classification. 

 
Collector Roads: 

• Vite Vite – Skipton Rd 
Seeking support to gazette for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & PBS 
2A. Vite Vite – Skipton Rd is approved for these heavy vehicle classifications within Corangamite 
Shire Council and approval of this road will complete the link to Glenelg Hwy.   

 

• Darlington – Carranballac Rd 
Included within the September 2020 council report for B-doubles pre-approval but this report seeks 
support to gazette additional access to HML, GHMS - B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 and PBS 
2A. 
 
Darlington – Carranballac Rd is approved for these heavy vehicle classifications within Ararat Rural 
City Council and approval of this road will complete the link to Glenelg Hwy.   
 

• Joel Joel Rd & Crowlands Eversley Rd 
Seeking support to gazette for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & PBS 
2A. 
 
Darlington – Carranballac Rd is approved for these heavy vehicle classifications within Ararat Rural 
City Council and approval of this road will complete the link to Glenelg Hwy.   

 
Local Access: 

• Geelong Rd (Eurambeen Streatham Rd to Shire Boundary) 
Seeking support to gazette for B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & PBS 
2A. This road has a 4.2m wide seal with 1.0m shoulders and one major culvert (Br 67) within this 
section which is in good condition. Geelong Rd is approved for these heavy vehicle classifications 
within Ararat Rural City Council and approval of this road will complete the link to Glenelg Hwy.   

 
Future Bridge Upgrade Strategy 
The following is a quick summary of the main bridge update priorities to improve heavy vehicle access: 
Bridge 10 – Beaufort Carngham Rd - Replacement $1.7mill 
Bridge 97 & 99 – Lexton Ararat Rd - Deck overlays $300k each  
Bridge 89 & 90 – Landsborough Elmhurst Rd - Deck overlays $300k each 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Priority 4 - Economy 
4a. Support our local businesses and help to strengthen key industries. 
 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT / CONSULTATION OUTCOMES 
No community engagement or consultation has been completed but regular feedback is received from the 
community requesting that more roads should be added to the gazette heavy vehicle road network.  
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ATTACHMENTS 
1. Pages From 2020.09.15 - Minutes - Public [13.1.1.1 - 3 pages] 
2. Classes-of-heavy-vehicles [13.1.1.2 - 1 page] 
3. HV Configurations - with approved highlighted [13.1.1.3 - 2 pages] 
4. Heavy Roads 5 [13.1.1.4 - 1 page] 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
The proposed addition of these roads onto the gazetted road networks may slightly increase the heavy 
vehicle volumes which may decrease the life of the road pavements and bridges. This is only a minor risk as 
heavy vehicles are approved through the current NHVR permit process and utilize these roads. 
 
Another minor risk is the current arrangement of the roads as many of these currently don’t meet the 
desired Department of Transport and Planning (DTP) pavement strength, geometry or seal width 
requirements. This is a relatively low risk as the heavy vehicle traffic volumes are low. Regular traffic counts 
managed by the Asset’s and Development department are completed annually and will be reviewed on 
these roads to monitor heavy vehicle volumes. These traffic counts will be assessed against design 
standards (AustRoads and DTP supplements, etc) and suggested changes to the gazetted heavy vehicle 
network or capital works replacement/upgrades to road will be proposed.        
 
Additional ad hoc inspections will occur on several of these pavements and bridges to monitor condition 
and reduce risks. The main additional inspections include bridges 81, 82 and 83 on Homebush Rd, bridge 25 
on Linton Carngham Rd, and pavements on Mt. William Rd/ Carngham Streatham Rd.    
 
There also might be a reduction of the number of heavy vehicle permits that are submitted through NHVR 
and result in an economy saving to the industry with people not required to prepare heavy vehicle permits, 
and NHVR/Council officers not required to review. 
 
Changes to the gazetted heavy vehicle road networks is a relatively quick processes with 
notification/approvals completed through NHVR/DTP but if changes are required to these gazette routes 
after they are implemented, there is a notification period for the removal which may take several years.    
 
CONCLUSION 
Freight and heavy vehicle access to Council’s road network supports key industries and businesses within 
Pyrenees Shire Council. It improves all sectors of the economy through the delivery and pickup of goods 
while also providing services to the community. Gazettal of the roads listed within this report will provide 
unrestricted access to the B-Double, HML, GHMS B-Double, GHMS - Rigid/Semi, PBS 1 & PBS 2A road 
networks and help provide this economy benefit within Pyrenees Shire Council. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council:  
 

1. Supports the gazetting of the all roads detailed in this report into the B-Double, HML, GHMS B-
Double, GHMS – Rigid & Semi, PBS 1 and PBS 2A heavy vehicle networks which supports up to a 
68.5 tonne PBS B-double.     

2. Supports Council Officers to continue to seek funding for bridges and roads to further expand 
Council’s heavy vehicle network.   
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13.1.2. NEIGHBOURHOOD SAFER PLACES BARKLY HALL DESIGNATION 
Presenter: Douglas Gowans - Director Asset and Development Services 
Declaration of Interest: As presenter of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
Report Author: Emma Poyser – Executive Assistant to the Directors 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 28/08/10 
   
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to consider adopting an additional Neighbourhood Safer 
Place/Place of Last Resort at the Barkly Hall site and to note the previously identified Places of Last Resort. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Under section 50J of the Country Fire Authority Act (1958), a municipal council must, by 31 August each 
year, conduct a review of each designated Neighbourhood Safer Place (NSP)/Place of Last Resort in its 
municipal district to determine if it is still suitable to be designated as an NSP. Once reviewed, Council must 
submit to the CFA its intention to agree to the prescriptions outlined in the assessment reports for each site 
by 30 September of that year. 
 
In conducting the annual review, Council must ask the Country Fire Authority (CFA) to assess each NSP in 
accordance with the CFA Assessment Guidelines. 
 
An NSP is a space that: 

1. Is a place of last resort for individuals to access and shelter in during a fire event affecting their 
neighborhood – without the need to take a high risk journey beyond their neighbourhood. 

2. Eliminates direct exposure to flames from a fire front and management of radiant heat to 
survivable levels; and 

3. Should only be accessed when personal bushfire survival plans (for individual properties) cannot be 
implemented or have failed. 

 
An NSP does not guarantee the survival of those who assemble there but provides a more likely survivable 
area than surrounding environments. 
 
In a Neighbourhood Safer Places Assessment report presented to Council in September 2022, the Country 
Fire Authority (CFA) assessed additional sites at Bakery Park Amphitheatre, Barkly Hall, Crowlands Hall and 
Raglan Recreation reserve. All of these were deemed non-compliant but could reach compliance with 
prescribed works. Three of the sites, excluding Barkly Hall, required agreements with multiple private 
landowners to achieve compliance. This is difficult to achieve due to the requirement for a major time 
investment without the guarantee of reaching agreement with all landowners. Some of the issues 
encountered include that if land is used for cropping, compliance cannot be achieved. 
 
At this time Council officers contacted the CFA Assessment team to determine how to achieve a compliant 
site at Barkly Hall. The advice was to resubmit the request and nominate the inside of the Barkly Hall as the 
NSP. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Under the Country Fire Authority Act (1958), Council officers have conducted a review of each of the 
current designated NSP’s of which there are nine (9) at the following locations: 

1. Lexton – Toll Bar Park 
2. Waubra – Recreation Reserve 
3. Beaufort – Wotherspoon Park 
4. Snake Valley – St Brigid’s Church Reserve 
5. Avoca – Medium strip, High Street (between Russell & Cambridge Streets) 
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6. Moonambel – Recreation Reserve 
7. Natte Yallock – Recreation Reserve 
8. Redbank – Recreation Reserve 
9. Landsborough – Recreation Reserve 

 
Additional sites at Bakery Park Amphitheatre, Crowlands Hall and Raglan Recreation Reserve were assessed 
and are not currently designated as NSP’s due to Council officers being unable to make in place agreements 
with the adjacent landowners. 
 
Since the report presented to Council in September 2022, and after further investigations of the site in the 
locality of Barkly, Council officers have undertaken steps to complete the process of prescribing the Barkly 
Hall site as an NSP/Place of Last Resort.  In an emergency, access will need to be managed to ensure 
compliance with the nominated internal area of the hall is used as the NSP. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Priority 1 - People 
1a. Prepare for emergencies and ensure community safety. 
 
Priority 2 - Place 
2b. Enhance the liveability and resilience of our communities. 
 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT / CONSULTATION OUTCOMES 
Council officers were unable to gain agreement with the adjacent landowners in the locations of the 
proposed additional sites at Bakery Park Amphitheatre, Crowlands Hall and Raglan Recreation Reserve. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Council has an annual budget for the maintenance of the designated NSP’s, with the addition of the Barkly 
Hall site a budget increase would be required to ensure that prescribed works are undertaken. It is 
estimated that in an average year the cost of maintaining a single NSP is in the range of $2,000 - $2,500 per 
site.  
 
CONCLUSION 
Neighbourhood Safer Places provide a place of last resort in a bushfire emergency. They should be carefully 
considered in their designation as they can be misinterpreted as being an alternative to leaving early in a 
fire emergency. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council:  

1. Notes the outcome of the Pyrenees Shire Council’s Neighbourhood Safer Places/Place of Last 
Resort assessment conducted by the Country Fire Authority and publishes the list of previously 
prescribed NSP’s on Council’s website. 

2. Designate Barkly Hall as a Neighbourhood Safer Place/Place of Last Resort. 
3. Commence the gazettal process for designating the new Neighbourhood Safer Place/Place of Last 

Resort at Barkly Hall and commit to the required budget increase to ensure prescribed works are 
undertaken. 

4. Continue to monitor the possibility for a Neighbourhood Safer Place/Place of Last Resort in the 
localities of Amphitheatre, Crowlands and Raglan. 
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13.2. CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
13.2.1. CARRYOVER OF FUNDS 2023/24 
Presenter: Kathy Bramwell - Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As presenter of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
Report Author: Glenn Kallio – Manager Finance 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 32/26/04 
 
PURPOSE 
This report sets out those items of income and expenditure that are required to be carried forward to the 

2023/24 Budget from the previous financial year due to grants being received in advance and/or project 

activity spanning multiple financial years and unfinished as at 30 June 2023. 

BACKGROUND 
Each year following the completion of Council’s annual statement, a process is undertaken whereby 

information is reported to Council relating to:  

1. Untied grants received during the 2022/23 financial year that relate to the 2023/24 financial year.  

The State and Federal Governments can prepay grants for various projects to be carried out by 

Council.    

 

Under the current accounting standards, Local Government is required to recognise untied grants when 

received rather than the year that the income relates to.  As such, it is required that funds that meet these 

criteria are carried forward to the correct financial year.  

2. Projects that continued to be works in progress as at 30 June 2023 and require funding to be 

carried forward to 2023/24 to complete those works.    

 

The conditions associated with any requests for money to be carried over from the previous financial year 

to the current financial year is:  

1. The organisation must have a surplus of funds from the 2023/24 year before a carryover will be 

approved;  

2. Projects must have a surplus of funds from the 2023/24 year before a carryover will be approved; 

 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Carryover funds requested are supported by surplus funds in the 2022/23 budget.  A reconciliation at 30 

June is carried out to ensure that the list of carryovers is supported by surplus funds and the financial 

position of Council remains within the parameters of the 10-year financial plan. 

COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Enabling Principles 
b. Provide transparency and accountability 
c. Use resources efficiently and effectively 
 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT / CONSULTATION OUTCOMES 
This report forms part of Community Information provided through Council reports. 
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ATTACHMENTS 
1. Cary Over List 2023-24 [13.2.1.1 - 1 page] 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
The total funds requested to be carried forward to the 2023/24 financial year will be sourced from the cash 

in excess of the forecast financial position contained within the Pyrenees Shire Council 2023/24 budget.  

The approval of the carryovers will be within the parameters of the Pyrenees Shire Council 10 Year Financial 

Plan, as at the 30th June 2023 Council had $19.293 million in Cash and Investment. 

The reconciliation of the cash position ensures that the Council remains within the parameters of the 10 

Year Financial Plan. 

CONCLUSION 
The additional funding listed in the attached carryover report is subject to funding guidelines and/or is for 

projects that have commenced, as such, the funding listed is required.  Should Council not adopt the 

carryover listing there will be a requirement to review the current budget to source the funding to satisfy 

the requirements of the projects listed in the carryover report. 

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council:  
 

1. approves the addition of $8.932 million to the 2023/24 Budget to fund the attached list of 
carryovers, noting that $6.67 million of the carryover amount relates to the Commonwealth 
Financial Assistance Grant payments paid in advance. 
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13.2.2. AUTHORISED OFFICERS 
Presenter: Kathy Bramwell - Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As presenter of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
Report Author: Kathy Bramwell – Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 16/20/08 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for the Council to adopt updated Instruments of Appointment and 
Authorisation appointing Council’s Authorised Officers under the Local Government Acts 1989 and 2020, 
and various other Acts and Regulations. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Local Government Act 2020 requires Council to review its delegations, appointments and 
authorisations as required.  Council is advised by Maddocks Lawyers in the preparation of appropriate 
Instruments as and when updates are required. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Instruments of Appointment and Authorisation are updated either when changes occur within the 
organisation or when officers appointed change roles or leave the organisation.  Regardless of individual 
changes, Council officers review Instruments annually to maintain currency and the ability of officers to 
fulfil all legislated functions. 
 
A review was conducted in early September 2023 and the following Instruments were updated and are now 
put forward for adoption by the Council: 
 

• S11 – Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation (General) 

• S11A – Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation – Planning & Environment Act 1987 only 

• S11B – Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation – Environment Protection Act 2017 only 
 
These Instruments represent those where authorised officers must be appointed by the Council. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Enabling Principles 
b. Provide transparency and accountability 
c. Use resources efficiently and effectively 
 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT / CONSULTATION OUTCOMES 
External community consultation is not required for this purpose.  Consultation with internal stakeholders 
was conducted to confirm appropriate appointments were included within the relevant Instruments.  
Copies of all Instruments of Appointment and Authorisation are made available for public inspection on the 
Council’s website. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. S11 Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation Council to Officers Septembe [13.2.2.1 - 8 pages] 
2. S11A Instrument of Appointment Authorisation Planning Environment Act Septem [13.2.2.2 - 2 

pages] 
3. S11B Instrument of Appointment Authorisation Environment Protection Act 2017 [13.2.2.3 - 2 pages] 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Council officers would be unable to fulfil statutory duties and powers without appropriate delegation or 
authorisation from the Council. 
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CONCLUSION 
To legally allow officers to enforce provisions of legislation, Council must review its instruments of 
appointment and authorisation as and when required to maintain currency.  Instruments of Appointment 
and Authorisation have been reviewed and are provided for Council adoption. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council, in the exercise of the powers conferred by s 224 of the Local Government Act 1989 and the 
other legislation referred to in the attached Instruments of Appointment and Authorisation: 
 

1. Considers and adopts the following Instruments of Appointment and Authorisation: 
a. S11 – Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation (General) 
b. S11A – Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation – Planning & Environment Act 1987 

only 
c. S11B – Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation – Environment Protection Act 2017 

only 
2. That members of Council staff referred to in the Instruments be appointed and authorised as set 

out in the Instruments. 
3. Authorises the creation of individual Instruments of Appointment and Authorisation for individual 

officers in accordance with these overarching documents. 
4. The Instruments come into force immediately the common seal of Council is affixed to the 

Instruments and remain in force until Council determines to vary or revoke them. 
5. The Instruments be sealed. 
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13.2.3. ROAD NAMING - PEAR TREE LANE 
Presenter: Kathy Bramwell - Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As presenter of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
Report Author: Glenn Kallio – Manager Finance and Diane Daniell – Rural Addressing and Road Name 
Project Officer 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 58/08/08 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to adopt a unique name for an unnamed road which currently has properties 

using it as primary access and is now included in the Public Road register - Proposed name – Pear Tree Lane 

– Ercildoune. 

 

This road services four rural properties, one of which has a residence. It leaves the Western Highway and 

crosses the railway line to the north and then heads east across to a government road alignment ending at 

the City of Ballarat shire boundary. 

BACKGROUND 
The above unnamed road has been identified as part of the update of the Pyrenees Shire Public Road 

Register and ongoing road maintenance requests along it. All roads require a name for clear identification 

of the asset and the addressing of the properties being accessed from them. 

Public consultation seeking alternative names for this section consisted of the following: - 

1. Letters to all affected landholders offering a suggestion (Lamb Lane) or seeking alternative names.  

2. Submission received and checked for compliance with naming principles resulting in only one 

suitable and no support for Lamb Lane. 

3. Indigenous name ‘Araluen’ submitted to Wadawurrung Traditional Owners Aboriginal Council for 

approval and rejected as not being of local language. 

4. Second Consultation letters asking for further submission. 

5. Further responses received from affected landholders mentioning a couple of names which were 

considered not suitable or insufficient backup documentation received leaving one name that 

referred to a local characteristic Pear Tree Lane. 

 
A final letter then went to all landholders offering them the opportunity to object to the proposed name of 

Pear Tree Lane. After the statutory consultation period no objections were received. 
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From the email submitted    

“The bend where the shire road ends is known as Pear Tree Bend because of five or six old pear 

trees that grow there. Pear Tree Lane might be an option.” 

 This name reflects ‘place’ in a very geographically connected way. 

This name has been checked against the Principles of the Naming Rules for Places – 2022 and complies. The 

name has been submitted by an affected landholder. 

Once adopted, Council submits the name to Geographic Names for formal consideration and approval. Only 

after that approval is received can Council formally place signage, change addresses, and use the new 

name. 

ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Creating unique road names and addresses is important for public safety and the delivery of goods and 

services to all properties. With the difficulty of creating a unique name, the name ‘Pear Tree Lane’ that has 

some local geographic relevance seems appropriate for this road. 

Additionally, unique road names are required for the Municipal Public Road Register as each road needs a 

unique name to clearly identify which road requires maintenance or improvement, to reduce the risk of 

Council or contractors working on the wrong road and to provide high standard of customer service by 

being able to clearly identify which road customers have concerns with. 

This section of road is an unsealed road servicing rural property and is not a through road therefore the 

road type “Lane” is recommended. 

COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Priority 1 - People 
1a. Prepare for emergencies and ensure community safety. 
 
Enabling Principles 
b. Provide transparency and accountability 
 
Council Policy: Principles on Road Naming 

Geographic Place Names Act 1998 

Road Management Act 2004 

Standards Australia AS/NZS 4819:2011 Rural and urban addressing. 

 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT / CONSULTATION OUTCOMES 
Public consultation seeking alternative names for this section consisted of the following: - 

1. Letters to all affected landholders offering a suggestion (Lamb Lane) or seeking alternative names.  

2. Submission received and checked for compliance with naming principles resulting in only one 

suitable and no support for Lamb Lane. 

3. Indigenous name ‘Araluen’ submitted to Wadawurrung Traditional Owners Aboriginal Council for 

approval and rejected as not being of local language. 

4. Second Consultation letters asking for further submission. 



AGENDA - Ordinary Meeting of Council 19 September 2023 

 

34 of 50 

5. Further responses received from affected landholders mentioning a couple of names which were 

considered not suitable or insufficient backup documentation received leaving one name that 

referred to a local characteristic Pear Tree Lane. 

A final letter then went to all landholders offering them the opportunity to object to the proposed name of 

Pear Tree Lane. After the statutory consultation period no objections were received. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Risks identified in not naming the roads according to the principles. 

1. Increased possibility of emergency service vehicles not locating a property in a timely manner 

2. Increased difficulty clearly identifying road asset and properties. 

 

Costs to Council after adoption by Geographic Names 

1. Administration to change property addresses, requiring letters to landholders, editing council 

systems, editing Vicmap Address 

2. Purchase and installation of one street blade on pole at beginning of this section of road. 

 
CONCLUSION 
Road 1 - Proposed name – Pear Tree Lane – Ercildoune.  Five properties (6 landholders) consulted by letter 

– resulting in no objections.  As there were no objections, it is recommended that Council proceeds with 

supporting this road naming so it can be lodged with Geographic Names for approval and adoption. 

OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council:  
 

1. Adopts Pear Tree Lane as the road name for the road currently unnamed between Western 
Highway and end of Government Road alignment on southern edge of Lot 2 PS708449 
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13.2.4. ADOPTION OF 2022/23 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND 2022/23 PERFORMANCE STATEMENT 
Presenter: Kathy Bramwell - Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As presenter of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
Report Author: Glenn Kallio – Manager Finance 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 32/08/30 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to present the 2022/23 Financial Statements and Performance Statement to 

Council for adoption “in principle” and authorisation of two Councillors, being the Councillor members of 

the Audit and Risk Committee, to sign the audited statements, before being submitted to the Auditor-

General for certification. 

BACKGROUND 
The Local Government Act 2020 requires that the Council complete the following at the end of each 

financial year with respect to producing an Annual Report. 

 S. 98     Annual report 

1. A Council must prepare an annual report in respect of each financial year.   

2. An annual report must contain the following —  

a. a report of operations of the Council;  

b. an audited performance statement;  

c. audited financial statements;  

d. a copy of the auditor's report on the performance statement; 

e. a copy of the auditor's report on the financial statements under Part 3 of the Audit Act 

1994; 

f. any other matter required by the regulations. 

1. The financial statements must —  

a. include any other information prescribed by the regulations; and  

b. be prepared in accordance with the regulations. 

 

S. 99     Preparation of annual report 

1. As soon as practicable after the end of the financial year, a Council must cause to be prepared in 

accordance with section 98, the performance statement and financial statements of the Council for 

the financial year. 

2. The Council, after passing a resolution giving its approval in principle to the performance statement 

and financial statements, must submit the statements to the auditor for reporting on the audit. 

3. The Council must ensure that the performance statement and financial statements, in their final 

form after any changes recommended or agreed by the auditor have been made, are certified in 

accordance with the regulations by — 

a. Two Councillors authorised by the Council for the purposes of this subsection; and 

b. any other persons prescribed by the regulations for the purposes of this subsection. 

2. The auditor must prepare a report on the performance statement.  

 Note: The auditor is required under Part 3 of the Audit Act 1994 to prepare a report on   

 the financial statements.  
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3. The auditor must not sign a report under subsection (4) or under Part 3 of the Audit Act 1994 

unless the performance statement or the financial statements (as applicable) have been certified 

under subsection (3). 

4. The auditor must provide the Minister and the Council with a copy of the report on the 

performance statement as soon as is reasonably practicable. 

 Note: The auditor is required under Part 3 of the Audit Act 1994 to report on the financial 

 statements to the Council within 4 weeks and to give a copy of the report to the Minister. 

ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
The 2022/23 Financial Statements and Performance Statement have been prepared in accordance with the 

requirements of the Local Government Act 2020, Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 

2020 and Australian Accounting Standards. 

In accordance with Council’s Governance protocols, the reports will be presented to Council’s Audit and 

Risk Committee for review and recommendation to Council for adoption “in principle” and authorisation of 

two Councillors, being the Councillor members of the Audit and Risk Committee, to sign the audited 

statements. 

The significant factor impacting the financial statements was the revaluation of Council assets being: 

• Impairment of assets as a result of the October 2022 floods. 

• Revaluation of assets based on costs increasing significantly since the revaluation. 

• Receipt of the 2023/24 Financial Assistance grants in 2022/23. 

 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Enabling Principles 
b. Provide transparency and accountability 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Final DRAFT PSC Performance Statement for year end 30 June 2023 07 09 2023 v [13.2.4.1 - 17 

pages] 
2. Pyrenees Shire Council Annual Statement 22-23 - 07-09-2023 v 3- Copy [13.2.4.2 - 63 pages] 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
The financial statements detail the Council’s financial performance and position for 2022/23. They 

demonstrate that over time Council has steadily improved its financial position but indicate that there are 

still numerous financial challenges that lay ahead which will require responsible fiscal stewardship. 

CONCLUSION 
The attached Financial Statements and Performance Statement for 2022/23 have been prepared in 

accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2020. The Council’s Audit and Risk 

Committee will review the statements at its September 2022 meeting. The Statements will then be 

submitted to the Auditor-General for certification. Council is also required to authorise two Councillors to 

sign the statements on behalf of Council, as required under the Local Government Act. 

It is standard practice for the Councillor members of the Audit and Risk Committee to sign the certified 

statements on behalf of Council.   
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OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council:  
 

1. Adopts in principle and submits the 2021/22 Financial Statements and Performance Statement to 
the Auditor-General for certification subject to recommendation of the Audit and Risk Committee. 

2. Authorises Council’s Audit and Risk Committee representatives, Councillor Ferrari and Councillor 

Vance, to certify the 2022/23 Financial and Performance Statements in their final form, after any 

changes recommended, or agreed to by the Auditor, have been made. 
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13.2.5. SERVICE REVIEWS 2023 
Presenter: Kathy Bramwell - Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As presenter of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
Report Author: Kathy Bramwell – Director Corporate and Community Services 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 16/24/17 
 
PURPOSE 
This report seeks Council approval of a new service review plan for 2023-2026. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Council has a strong commitment to continuously plan, review, and improve its services.  In line with 
the service planning principles included within the Local Government Act 2020, Council must ensure that 
community expectations and standards are met in a cost-effective manner and that service outcomes are 
aligned to Council’s long-term strategic objectives and plans. 
 
Service reviews are processes that review the delivery of Council services and ensure they are: 
 

• Appropriate – services that meet current community needs and wants and can be adapted to meet 
future needs and wants. 

• Effective – that Council delivers targeted, better-quality services in the most effective way. 

• Efficient – that Council improves resource use (people, materials, plant and equipment, 
infrastructure, buildings) and redirects savings to finance new or improved services. 

 
Service reviews also strive to relieve increasing financial pressures and the widening gap between revenue 
and expenditure, by ensuring that Council focuses on its primary deliverables whilst continuing to meet 
community expectations in being environmentally and socially responsible and providing a wide range of 
quality services. 
 
Service reviews help clarify the needs of our community and use an evidence-based approach to assess 
how efficiently and effectively it is meeting those needs. Using this information, Council and its senior 
leadership team can determine what changes should be made to service delivery that will provide benefits 
to stakeholders whilst remaining financially sustainable. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Over 2021-2023 service reviews were conducted: 
 

1. 2021/22 Avoca Community Car – The outcome identified this service as needed by the community 
and, although it might be better delivered by a more focused health service, is filling a gap currently 
in the Avoca community.  The service costs Council approximately $8,000 annually, including 
vehicle depreciation. The service has some risk issues identified which must be addressed through 
improvements to volunteer training and induction. 

 
2. 2021/22 Beaufort Caravan Park – The review was conducted to address areas of concern arising 

from an internal audit review and one outcome was a report including a new masterplan adopted 
by Council in 2022.  Funding has since been obtained towards implementing improvements. 

 
3. 2022 Future of Aged Care Service Delivery – This revisited the 2019 review of the provision of 

home-based care in response to the outcomes of the Royal Commission into Aged Care and the 
Commonwealth Government aged care reforms.  Following this review, Council exited direct 
delivery of care programs at the end of August 2023. 
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4. 2022/23 Corporate Services – This review focused on synergies between functions that might be 
better served by a change in operational structural alignment of the relevant teams. Review 
outcome recommendations included: 

 
a. The creation of an Information Management business unit by merging the existing ICT 

(Information and Communications Technology) and Records Management business units – 
focusing on the need to have a consistent organisational approach to the management, 
retention, and disposal of physical records and electronic data. Consultation with all staff 
and stakeholders is complete, and a recommendation will be made to the Chief Executive 
Officer in the coming weeks. 

 
b. The separation of the Frontline Services unit from the larger Governance Risk & Compliance 

department and the accompanying creation of a new managerial role – Customer 
Experience Manager. The change is intended to achieve: 

 
i. Reduced workload to allow the Governance Risk & Compliance team greater ability 

to focus on improving governance and take over organisational performance 
monitoring, measuring, and reporting. 

ii. Escalate Frontline Services in importance within the organisation – as a separate 
business unit this would give the team greater visibility and relevance within the 
wider organisation. 

iii. Provide a dedicated role that can support the Executive Leadership Team in 
improving organisation-wide customer service culture and subsequently improve 
customer satisfaction. 

 
The balance of the previously endorsed program has been suspended: 
 

• Planning & Development – a service review was planned for 2023/24 but it was considered that an 
internal audit may be more useful which was conducted in 2023. 

• Asset Management – a service review was planned for 2022/23 but it was considered that an 
internal audit may be more useful which was conducted in 2023. 

• Community Safety & Public Health – a service review was planned for 2023/24 but was not yet 
conducted. 

• Waste Management – a service review was planned for 2024. 
 
Recent discussion within the Executive Leadership Team identified greater priorities than those outstanding 
topics listed above, and it is proposed that Council approve the following amended program for coming 
years. 
 

• 2023/24 - Revisit of former reviews of Frontline Services to identify potential improvements in 
service delivery to the community and opportunities for savings. 

• 2023/24 - Aquatic Facilities Management to focus on a long-term strategy around the needs of the 
community and the life cycle of existing facilities. 

• 2024/25 - Waste Management to focus on continuing delivery of the State Government’s circular 
economy intentions. 

• 2024/25 - Early Years in the context of the State Government’s Early Years Reform Program. 

• 2025/26 - Council’s Caravan Parks. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Enabling Principles 
b. Provide transparency and accountability 
c. Use resources efficiently and effectively 
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COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT / CONSULTATION OUTCOMES 
Internal stakeholders were involved in all aspects of service reviews already concluded and will be involved 
as appropriate in forthcoming reviews. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
All risk implications are included in the body of the report. 
 
CONCLUSION 
A rolling program of two service reviews per year was approved by Council in April 2021. This report 
provides an overview of reviews completed in recent years and an amended program for 2023-2026 for 
consideration and approval by the Council. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council:  
 

1. Receives the information relating to service reviews as detailed in this report, and 
2. Approves the amended service review program for 2023-2026 as follows: 

a. 2023/24 - Revisit of Frontline Services 
b. 2023/24 - Aquatic Facilities Management 
c. 2024/25 - Waste Management and the Circular Economy 
d. 2024/25 - Early Years in the light of the Early Years Reform Agenda 
e. 2025/26 - Caravan Parks 
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13.2.6. ANNUAL REPORT - COMMUNITY ASSET COMMITTEES 
Sean Leyland – Acting Manager Governance Risk & Compliance 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 16/16/04, 16/16/10, 16/16/20, 16/16/28, 16/16/26, 16/16/24 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to provide an Annual Report of the activities of Community Asset Communities 
during the 2022/23 financial year to Council. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Section 65 of the Local Government Act 2020 (the Act) allows councils to establish Community Asset 
Committees for the purpose of managing a community asset in the municipal district. 
 
In accordance with the Act, Council has appointed six Community Asset Committees, with the newest 
committee being appointed in March 2023 for the Lexton Community Hub -  
 

• Beaufort Community Bank Complex Community Asset Committee 

• Brewster Hall Community Asset Committee 

• Landsborough Community Precinct Community Asset Committee 

• Snake Valley Community Hall Community Asset Committee 

• Waubra Community Hub Community Asset Committee 

• Lexton Community Hub Community Asset Committee 
 
Section 47 of the Act provides for the Chief Executive Officer to delegate powers, duties and functions to 
Community Asset Committees and requires an Annual Report to be submitted to Council each year on the 
activities and performance of its Community Asset Committees. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
This report provides the third Annual Report on the activities and performance of Council’s Community 
Asset Committees pursuant to section 47(6) of the Act. A summary of committee activities is provided 
below and a document providing reports provided by the committees is attached for Council information. 
 
In summary, COVID-19 has had significant impacts on events and activities at the community facilities, with 
a subsequent effect on the financial sustainability of the committees managing those facilities. 
 
Beaufort Community Bank Complex Community Asset Committee 
No information is available at the time of this report. 
 
Brewster Hall Community Asset Committee 
The committee has been inactive for this period. A current financial report has been provided. 
 
Landsborough Community Precinct Community Asset Committee 
A perceived lack of interest from residents in joining the committee following several resignations has seen 
Graeme Sandlant commit to provide daily maintenance of the Hub, amenities block, resource centre, 
caravan park, cabins, playground, and BBQ.  
 
Council has undertaken a number of maintenance works for the swimming pool, hub (roadworks), 
sewerage and hot water services. 
 
No events have been held. 
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Snake Valley Hall Community Asset Committee 
Minutes provided for the latest meeting show the committee is still going strong – elections for committee 
positions were held and completed at this meeting. 
Business included in the minutes- 
The Committee currently has 9 members 
A grant was received for an Easter function from the Pyrenees Shire Council (successful event) 
A gazebo was purchased with funding from the 2022 round of Council grants 
The Hall is used weekly by a Community Craft group, and the Committee has bookings for birthday parties, 
weddings, and funerals reasonably regularly 
The current financial position is stable – funds are used to maintain the Hall where it is not covered by 
Council. 
 
Waubra Community Hub Community Asset Committee 
The minutes of this meeting was held in June 2023, with the next scheduled for September. 
A great deal of discussion revolved around ongoing maintenance issues – particularly 
the water pump for the toilets and solar power. 
Other discussions talked about planning permits for netball court fencing and drafting a hire agreement for 
the Waubra Community Hub. 
 
Lexton Community Hub Community Asset Committee Meeting 
This committee met for the first time on 9th March 2023. 
Committee members were duly elected with Cr. Clark and CEO Jim Nolan in attendance. 
A manual was provided to all members of the committee, and this included the formal delegation from 
Council to the Committee, as well as guidelines for the conduct of committees with a table outlining the 
responsibilities (for Council and the Committee). 
General business –  

• Trip hazard reported at front of the building – to be inspected and rectified by Council. 

• Committee members provided with a limited number of master keys. Further advice and keys to be 
provided by Council. 

• Insurance – a Council officer to provide advice on the extent of Council insurance coverage and 
other insurances that may be required by the committee 

• Rubbish bins – a limited number of bins provided by Council to be serviced on days of town 
collection. A council officer to provide advice about options for waste collection to suit game day 
and other waste needs. 

• Bank account – to be obtained to allow transfer of Council seed funds. 
 
Other matters for future consideration include marketing, website, future meeting dates, fees, conditions 
of hire, water, and power bills. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Strategic Objective 3 - We will engage with communities to provide responsive, efficient services that 
enhance the quality of life of residents and promote connected, active, and resilient communities. 
 
3.3 - Community Development – Supporting communities to build connections, capacity, and resilience. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. 2023 03 09 MINUTES Lexton Community Hub Community Asset Committee [13.2.6.1 - 3 pages] 
2. Landsborough [13.2.6.2 - 28 pages] 
3. Snake Valley Asset Committee and AGM Minutes August 2022 [13.2.6.3 - 4 pages] 
4. Snake Valley Asset Committee Minutes April 2023 [13.2.6.4 - 3 pages] 
5. Snake Valley Asset Committee Minutes Feb 2023 [13.2.6.5 - 5 pages] 
6. Snake Valley Asset Committee Minutes June 2023 [13.2.6.6 - 3 pages] 
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7. SVAC Minutes March Extra Meeting 2023 [13.2.6.7 - 2 pages] 
8. Waubra Community Assets Committee 6th of June 2023 [13.2.6.8 - 2 pages] 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
The greatest risks from this report are the financial sustainability of our community asset committees and 
the impacts upon our communities’ mental health resulting from a lack of sporting and social activities 
because of ongoing COVID-19 restrictions. 
 
CONCLUSION 
The Local Government Act 2020 requires an annual report to be provided to Council on the activities and 
performance of its Community Asset Committees. This report provides the first such Annual Report under 
this Act, for the financial year 2022/23. 
 
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council  

1. notes this report and its attachments 
2. Writes to each of the Asset Committees recognising their volunteer contribution to the 

maintenance and management of the community assets. 
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13.3. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE 
13.3.1. MEMBERSHIP - GREATER BALLARAT ALLIANCE OF COUNCILS (GBAC) 
Presenter: Jim Nolan - Chief Executive Officer 
Declaration of Interest: As presenter of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
Report Author: Jim Nolan - Chief Executive Officer 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 44/06/12 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to receive an update on the activities of Greater Ballarat Alliance of 
Councils (GBAC), and to endorse the ongoing participation. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Greater Ballarat Alliance of Councils (GBAC) is a newly formed grouping of six rural and regional councils 
located in and around Ballarat. It has been established to act as a united voice for member councils to 
tackle common issues and secure a fair share of Victorian and Commonwealth government funding for the 
Greater Ballarat region. 
 
The six participating councils are the City of Ballarat, Central Goldfields Shire Council, Golden Plains Shire 
Council, Hepburn Shire Council, Moorabool Shire Council and Pyrenees Shire Council.  
 
Federal Minister for Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and Local Government Catherine King 
launched GBAC at an event in Creswick on 8th September 2023. 
 
GBAC replaces the previous regional partnership known as Central Highlands Councils Victoria (CHCV). 
 
The principal purpose of Greater Ballarat Alliance of Councils (GBAC) is: 

• United voice: promote a collective voice for the members’ region and address common issues. 

• Advocacy: provide an avenue for engagement with state and federal governments and 
departments. 

• Strategy: determine the strategic priorities and issues of the members’ region. 

• Policy: support state and federal policy setting by preparing submissions and policy papers on 
matters that alight with GBAC’s priorities. 

• Leadership: build relationships with state and federal governments’ representatives to become the 
main peak body for the region. 

 
The three priority pillars of advocacy of GBAC are 

• Transport 

• Digital coverage and access 

• Enabling growth 

 
Leadership of the group is provided by the Mayors and CEOs of the six councils and Cr Des Hudson, Mayor 
of the City of Ballarat has been elected as the Chair of GBAC. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Participation with a regional cluster of councils provides a greater opportunity for advocacy to state and 
commonwealth governments on matters of regional significance.  
 
The alliance also enables a more strategic approach to understanding and addressing common issues for 
the region. 
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Prior to the formation of the new entity, the Central Highlands cluster of councils agreed to disband the 
former entity and the Incorportated Association to establish a more flexible and focused entity. 
 
The GBAC Strategic Advocacy Plan is attached to this report. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Priority 1 - People 
1d. Promote health, wellbeing, engagement and connection. 
 
Enabling Principles 
b. Provide transparency and accountability 
c. Use resources efficiently and effectively 
 
COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT / CONSULTATION OUTCOMES 
The Pyrenees Councillor Delegate for GBAC is Cr Ron Eason. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. GBAC strategic advocacy plan 202324 [13.3.1.1 - 5 pages] 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
GBAC will incur expenses in order to deliver its program, and Premier PR has been appointed as the 
secretariat for the group. A membership fee is necessary to offset the the operating costs, and a formula 
for establishing membership fees has recently been established comprising 30% equal base fee and 70% 
based on a combination of population pro rata. 
 
The annual membership fee with GBAC for Pyrenees for 2023/24 is approximately $13,000 
 
CONCLUSION 
Greater Ballarat Alliance of Councils (GBAC) is a newly formed grouping of six rural and regional councils 
located in and around Ballarat. It has been established to act as a united voice for member councils to 
tackle common issues and secure a fair share of Victorian and Commonwealth government funding for the 
Greater Ballarat region.  
  
OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council endorses the participation with the Greater Ballarat Alliance of Councils. 
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13.3.2. PETITION - PUT THE BROLGA AHEAD OF WIND TURBINES 
Presenter: Jim Nolan - Chief Executive Officer 
Declaration of Interest: As presenter of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
Report Author: Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 66/22/32 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is to provide Council with details of a petition received by the communities of 
Trawalla and Brewster in relation to RE Futures planning application for wind turbines and infrastructure. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Council received a copy of a petition from the communities of Trawalla and Brewster as a voice to the 
Planning Minister, Hon Sonia Kilkenny that the community stand firm and say Yes to sustainable protection 
of brolga in the Pyrenees Shire and no to this windfarm. 
 
The petition received contained 92 signatures and was accompanied with information relating to brolgas 
and RE Futures planning application (PA2101150) for a wind farm.  
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Before making any decision in respect of the matter, Council should have regard to the Pyrenees Shire 
Council Governance Rules 2022, Section 4.8.3 which states that: 

a) No motion may be made on any petition, joint letter, memorial or other like application until the 

next Council meeting after that at which it has been presented (except where it meets sub-Rule 

4.9(b)) except for: 

I. That the petition be received, and 

II. That the petition be referred to the Chief Executive Officer or relevant Director for 

consideration and response, or 

III. That the petition be referred to the Chief Executive Officer or relevant Director for a report 

to a future Council meeting. 

It is normal practice then for Council to seek a report to be prepared by the relevant officer for a 
subsequent meeting addressing the merits of the issues contained in the petition. However, the petition 
does not seek any specific action by Council but rather it seeks to draw attention of the issue to the 
Victorian Planning Minister who is the decision maker in respect of the planning matter. 
 
COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Priority 2 - Place 
2a. Sustain and enhance unique character of our communities. 
 
2c. Promote responsible development. 
 
Enabling Principles 
b. Provide transparency and accountability 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
1. Brolga Petition- Redacted [13.3.2.1 - 14 pages] 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
Financial implications will be addressed within any future report for decision. 
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OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council:  
 

1. Receives the petition;  
2. Continues to advocate on behalf of the community in respect of the Brewster windfarm planning 

application and the protection of brolga. 
3. Writes to the Minister for Planning providing a copy of the petition. 
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13.3.3. PROJECT UPDATE - SEPTEMBER 2023 
Presenter: Jim Nolan - Chief Executive Officer 
Declaration of Interest: As presenter of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
Report Author: Jerry van Delft – Project Management Facilitator 
Declaration of Interest: As author of this report, I have no disclosable interest in this item. 
File No: 16/21/08 
 
PURPOSE 
The purpose of this report is for Council to receive a high-level update on key Council projects. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Updates on Council projects have been reported regularly to Council and the community through 
information reports in quarterly Council meeting agendas, in addition to the project dashboard which has 
been developed in recent years and is accessible on Councils website. 
 
Major projects are reported through the weekly community noticeboard and as provided in the summary 
below. 
 
ISSUE / DISCUSSION 
Projects from the 2019/20 financial year were archived on the Dashboard at the end of June.  
Below is a summary of the current status of a selection of projects underway. 
 
Avoca Carpark and EV charging station 
Construction of the extended car park is now complete, and the EV charging station is online. The 50kW 

fast charger can charge two vehicles at a time. The carparks will be delineated with blue lines to identify the 

carparks allocated to the charging station.  

Beaufort cricket practice nets  
Construction is nearing completion on the cricket practice nets at the Goldfields Recreation Reserve. The 

synthetic turf has been laid. The soft nets are expected to be installed by mid-September. 

Beaufort Goldfield Reserve Electrical upgrade and oval lighting  
The electrical service at the reserve is being upgraded, which includes alteration to metering, electrical 

feeds, switchboards and controls. The oval’s lighting is also being upgraded, including the installation of 

light masts and footings. Works are expected to begin early September and be finished by the end of the 

year. 

Neill Street footpath (Motel to Broadbent)  
Work has started and is expected to be completed by early October.  

Pathway to connect Acacia Court and Casuarina Court  
The concrete path, along with a ramp and stairs has been finished. Drainage work and solar light bollards 

and access ramp handrails will be installed soon. 

Planned tree removal in Snake Valley  
Ageing cypress trees will be removed from the Smythesdale-Snake Valley Road. While it is acknowledged 

that the trees provide shade and contribute to the streetscape, the safety of our community has been 

prioritized. The trees will be removed during the school holidays to minimize disruption. Work will start on 

September 18.  

Beaufort Lake BBQ Shelter  
Construction of a new multi-purpose BBQ shelter at Beaufort Lake is in its final stages with drainage works 

and landscaping now underway.  
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Havelock Street toilet redevelopment  
The Havelock Street public toilets are being refurbished. The facility in Beggs Street is open. Portable toilets 

are available on the opposite side of Neill Street. The toilet block in Wotherspoon Park remains open. Work 

is expected to be completed in September.  

Beaufort Lake jetty  
A boating and fishing jetty is being installed at Beaufort Lake. The floating platform has been installed. An 

access ramp needs to be installed before the jetty is operational. The project is expected to be finished by 

the end of November.  

Footpath works, Beaufort  
The footpath between Acacia and Casuarina Court in Beaufort almost finished. Bollards and solar lights will 

be installed at a later date. 

Beaufort Linear Park Project 
The development of a master plan for the Beaufort Linear Park has commenced and community 

consultation is being planned for September. The linear park extends from the Beaufort lake to the Yam 

Holes Creek near the railway line. 

Internal Projects 
Internal projects including the Customer First Culture Change project (end June 2024), the End User 

Computing Strategy Implementation Stage 3 (end December 2024) and the Rural Council Transformation 

project Phase 2 (end July 2024) have commenced and are on track to be completed by the planned end 

date. 

Flood recovery program 
The Flood Recovery Program has been added to the dashboard.  The Finish Date has been set at the end of 

the funding program – June 2025. 

 Beaufort Krupps Gun 
The RSL has moved the Gun on the recently completed slab and fence.  The planned shelter is stage 2 

however there is no funding available at this stage. 

COUNCIL PLAN / LEGISLATIVE COMPLIANCE 
Priority 2 - Place 
2a. Sustain and enhance unique character of our communities. 
2b. Enhance the liveability and resilience of our communities. 
 
Priority 4 - Economy 
4b. Invest in road infrastructure to improve connectivity for commerce and community. 
4c. Encourage and invest in assets and infrastructure for commerce and community. 
 
Enabling Principles 
b. Provide transparency and accountability 
c. Use resources efficiently and effectively 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Nil 
 
FINANCIAL / RISK IMPLICATIONS 
This reporting on progress of projects is intended to inform Council and the community. 
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OFFICER RECOMMENDATION 

 
That Council:  
 

1. That Council notes this report. 
2. Recognises the achievement of staff and contractors involved in the direct delivery of the recently 

completed projects. 
3. Seeks to facilitate official openings of relevant completed projects in conjunction with funding 

partners. 
 

 
 
14. COUNCILLOR REPORTS AND GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
15. CLOSE OF MEETING 
 

The Ordinary Meeting of Council closed at   

 

     

Minutes of the meeting confirmed   

    
  2023                       Mayor Cr Ron Eason 
 

 






Class 3 Heavy Vehicles (examples for illustration purposes)


40 Rigid Truck and Dog  
(over 42.5 tonnes GCM)


HVNL Definitions NHVR Notes: 
A truck and dog trailer combination whose dimensions and mass do 
not exceed prescribed mass and dimension requirements is a general 
access vehicle. If its mass or dimension limits exceed prescribed 
requirements, this combination is classified as a Class 3 vehicle.
Examples of Class 3 vehicles include: 
• �A truck and dog trailer combination consisting of a rigid truck 


with 3 or 4 axles towing a dog trailer with 3 or 4 axles weighing 
more than 42.5t is an example of a class 3 heavy vehicle. 


• �Other examples might include a B-double or road train 
transporting a load wider than 2.5m.


HVNL s116 (3)
(3) A heavy vehicle is a class 3 heavy vehicle if—
     (a) �it, together with its load, does not comply with a prescribed 


mass requirement or prescribed dimension requirement 
applying to it; and


     (b) it is not a class 1 heavy vehicle.


41 Prime Mover and Semitrailer 
towing Converter Dolly


42 B-double towing Converter 
Dolly


43 Underhook/Underlift  
Tow Truck


Class 1 Heavy Vehicles (examples for illustration purposes)


Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) Oversize Overmass Vehicles (OSOM)


1 All Terrain Crane 15 Prime Mover and Low Loader (Gooseneck)


2 All Terrain Crane with Dolly 16 Prime Mover and Low Loader with Dolly (Gooseneck)


3 Pick and Carry Crane 17 Prime Mover and Platform Trailer (Gooseneck)


4 Truck Mounted Crane 18 Prime Mover and Extendable Trailer


5 Truck Mounted Drill Rig 19 Block Truck towing Drawn Platform


6 Truck Mounted Concrete 
Pump 20 Two Block Trucks towing Drawn Platform with Push Block Truck


7 Prime Mover Towing Drill 
Rig Trailer


HVNL Definitions


HVNL s116 (1)
(1) �A heavy vehicle is a class 1 heavy vehicle if it, together with its 


load, does not comply with a prescribed mass requirement or 
prescribed dimension requirement applying to it, and—


    (a) it is a special purpose vehicle; or 
    �(b) �it is an agricultural vehicle other than an agricultural trailer; or 


Note— See subsection (2) for agricultural trailers.
     (c) it— 
          �(i)  �is a heavy vehicle carrying, or designed for the purpose 


of carrying, a large indivisible item, including, for 
example, a combination including a low loader; but


          (ii) �is not a road train or B-double, or carrying a freight 
container designed for multi-modal transport.


(2) �An agricultural trailer is a class 1 heavy vehicle, irrespective 
of whether it, together with its load, does or does not comply 
with a prescribed mass requirement or prescribed dimension 
requirement applying to it.


HVNL s116 (4)
Special purpose vehicle means—
(a) �A motor vehicle or trailer, other than an agricultural vehicle or 


a tow truck, built for a purpose other than carrying goods; or 
(b) a concrete pump or fire truck.
HVNL s5
Agricultural vehicle means an agricultural implement or 
agricultural machine.
HVNL s5
Agricultural trailer means a trailer that is designed to carry a 
load and used exclusively to perform agricultural tasks, but does 
not include a semitrailer.
HVNL s5
Oversize vehicle means a heavy vehicle that does not comply 
with a dimension requirement applying to it.


8 Grader


9 Firetruck


Agricultural Vehicles (including implements and trailers)


10 Combine Harvester


11 Tractor


12 Grain Auger


NHVR Notes:
Not all SPV’s and agricultural vehicles are Class 1 heavy vehicles. 
SPV’s and agricultural vehicles (except agricultural trailers) which 
comply with prescribed mass and dimension requirements are 
general access vehicles.


Overmass Vehicle: A heavy vehicle or combination that does 
not comply with a prescribed mass requirement applying to it 
(including gross mass, axle or axle group mass).


13 Chaser Bin


14 Cane Haul Out Truck


Class 2 Heavy Vehicles (examples for illustration purposes)


Freight Carrying Vehicles Vehicles Exceeding 4.3m in Height (up to 4.6m high as per Schedule 6 of Heavy Vehicle (Mass, Dimension and Loading) National Regulation) (MDL)


21
B-double


37 Vehicle Carrier


22 38 A-double (Livestock)


23
A-double


39 B-triple (Livestock)


24 HVNL Definitions


HVNL s136 
A heavy vehicle is a class 2 heavy vehicle if—
(a) it—
    �(i) � �complies with the prescribed mass requirements and 


prescribed dimension requirements applying to it; and
    (ii) is—
         (A) a B-double; or
         (B) a road train; or
        � (C) �a bus, other than an articulated bus, that is longer than 


12.5m; or
         �(D) �a combination designed and built to carry vehicles on 


more than 1 deck that, together with its load is longer 
than 19m or higher than 4.3m; or


        � (E) �a motor vehicle, or a combination, that is higher than 
4.3m and is built to carry cattle, sheep, pigs or horses; or


(b) it is a PBS vehicle.
HVNL s5 
B-double means a combination consisting of a prime mover 
towing 2 semitrailers, with the first semitrailer being attached 
directly to the prime mover by a fifth wheel coupling and 
the second semitrailer being mounted on the rear of the first 
semitrailer by a fifth wheel coupling on the first semitrailer.


HVNL s5
B-triple means a combination consisting of a prime mover towing 
3 semitrailers, with—
(a) �The first semitrailer being attached directly to the prime mover 


by a fifth wheel coupling; and
(b) �The second semitrailer being mounted on the rear of the first 


semitrailer by a fifth wheel coupling on the first semitrailer; and
(c) �The third semitrailer being mounted on the rear of the second 


semitrailer by a fifth wheel coupling on the second semitrailer.
HVNL s5
road train means—
(a) A B-triple; or
(b) �A combination, other than a B-double, consisting of a motor 


vehicle towing at least 2 trailers, excluding any converter dolly 
supporting a semitrailer.


HVNL s5
PBS vehicle means a heavy vehicle that is the subject of a current 
PBS vehicle approval under Part 1.4.
HVNL s5
PBS vehicle approval means a current approval issued for a 
heavy vehicle by the Regulator under section 23.


25
B-triple


26


27 AB-triple


28 A-triple


29 BAB-Quad


30 ABB-Quad


31 Rigid Truck and 2 Dog 
Trailers


Performance Based Standards (PBS)


32 Prime Mover and Quad 
Axle Semitrailer


NHVR Notes:
B-doubles:  
Despite the shorter length, 19m B-doubles are classified as Class 
2 Vehicles. General freight carrying vehicles that are longer 
than 19m require specific networks that are capable of handling 
these larger vehicles. This is usually managed by declaring route 
networks in gazette notices, but where a network does not exist, 
an operator may apply for a permit.
Buses:  
A bus, other than an articulated bus, that is longer than 12.5m 
but less than 14.5m, that complies with prescribed mass and 
dimension requirements is a class 2 heavy vehicle. These vehicles 
are also known as a ‘Controlled Access Bus’


Vehicle carriers:  
A vehicle carrier is a combination designed and built to carry 
vehicles on more than one deck that together with its load is 
longer than 19m or higher than 4.3m.
Livestock vehicles:  
A livestock vehicle is a heavy vehicle, or a combination, that may 
be higher than 4.3m and is built to carry cattle, sheep, pigs or 
horses.
Performance Based Standards:  
(PBS) An alternative compliance scheme for heavy vehicles 
setting minimum performance levels for safe and efficient 
operation (as opposed to standard prescriptive rules). Greater 
access is generally afforded for higher performance.


33 Rigid Truck and 5 Axle Dog 
Trailer


34 B-double with Quad Axle 
Groups (up to 30m)


35 A-double (up to 30m)


Buses


36 Controlled Access Bus


Disclaimer: The Heavy Vehicle National Law (HVNL) provides for three classes of heavy vehicle as a means of managing access for different types of 
heavy vehicles. This chart shows some of the most common heavy vehicle combinations that are part of each vehicle class as defined in the Heavy 
Vehicle National Law (HVNL). It is not a comprehensive representation of the entire Australian heavy vehicle fleet. Other heavy vehicle configurations 
are used which are not represented. This fact sheet illustrates some common examples from the three different classes of heavy vehicles and is 
provided for guidance only. Definitions listed within the chart can be found under relevant sections in the Heavy Vehicle National Law (HVNL).  
For further information, contact the NHVR at 1300 MYNHVR (1300 696 487) or info@nhvr.gov.au or www.nhvr.gov.au/contact-us


National Heavy Vehicle Regulator
Classes of Heavy Vehicles
in the Heavy Vehicle National Law


February 2019 
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Description Maximum Length (metres)
Maximum Regulatory 
Mass under GML (tonnes) 


Maximum Regulatory 
Mass under CML (tonnes) 


Maximum Regulatory 
Mass under HML (tonnes) 


1. COMMON RIGID TRUCKS - GENERAL ACCESS


(a)
6.0t            9.0t


2 Axle Rigid Truck ≤ 12.5 15.0 CML does not apply -


(b)
6.0t          16.5t


3 Axle Rigid Truck ≤ 12.5 22.5 23.0 -


(c)
6.0             20.0t


4 Axle Rigid Truck ≤ 12.5 26.0 27.0 -


(d)
10.0t*      16.5t


4 Axle Twinsteer Rigid Truck ≤ 12.5 26.5 27.0 -


(e)
10.0t*       20.0t


5 Axle Twinsteer Rigid Truck ≤ 12.5 30.0 31.0 -


2. COMMON SEMITRAILER COMBINATIONS  - GENERAL ACCESS


(a)
6.0t         9.0t                    9.0t


3 Axle Semitrailer ≤ 19.0 24.0 - -


(b)
6.0t          9.0t                    16.5t


4 Axle Semitrailer ≤ 19.0 31.5 32.0 32.0


(c)
6.0t         9.0t                     20t


5 Axle Semitrailer ≤ 19.0 35.0 36.0 37.5


(d)
6.0t          16.5t                    16.5t


5 Axle Semitrailer ≤ 19.0 39.0 40.0 40.0


(e)
6.0t          16.5t                    20.0t


6 Axle Semitrailer ≤ 19.0 42.5 43.5 45.5


3. COMMON RIGID TRUCK AND TRAILER COMBINATIONS (General access when complying with prescribed mass and dimension requirements)


(a)
6.0t            9.0t      9.0t**  9.0t**


2 Axle Truck and 2 Axle Dog Trailer ≤ 19.0 30.0 - -


(b)
6.0t             9.0t            15.0t         


2 Axle Truck and 2 Axle Pig Trailer ≤ 19.0 30.0 CML does not apply -


(c)
6.0t         16.5t         9.0t  9.0t


3 Axle Truck and 2 Axle Dog Trailer ≤ 19.0 40.5 41.0 -


(d)
6.0t         16.5t               15.0t


3 Axle Truck and 2 Axle Pig Trailer ≤ 19.0 37.5 CML does not apply -


(e)
6.0t         16.5t         9.0t**  16.5t**


3 Axle Truck and 3 Axle Dog Trailer ≤ 19.0 42.5 43.5 -


(f)
6.0t          16.5t                 18.0t


3 Axle Truck and 3 Axle Pig Trailer ≤ 19.0 40.5 CML does not apply -


(g)
6.0t         16.5t         16.5t**   16.5t**


3 Axle Truck and 4 Axle Dog Trailer ≤ 19.0 42.5 43.5 -


(h)
10.0t*       16.5t        9.0t   16.5t


4 Axle Truck and 3 Axle Dog Trailer ≤ 19.0 42.5 43.5 -


(i)
10.0t*       16.5t        16.5t**     16.5t**


4 Axle Truck and 4 Axle Dog Trailer ≤ 19.0 42.5 43.5 -


4. COMMON B-DOUBLE COMBINATIONS - CLASS 2


(a)
6.0t          16.5t                16.5t                       16.5t


7 Axle B-double ≤ 19.0 55.5 57.0 57.0


(b)
6.0t           16.5t                20.0t                      16.5t


8 Axle B-double ≤ 26.0 59.0 61.0 62.5


(c)
6.0t         16.5t                 16.5t                       20.0t


8 Axle B-double ≤ 26.0 59.0 61.0 62.5


(d)
6.0t          16.5t                 20.0t                     20.0t


9 Axle B-double ≤ 26.0 62.5 64.5 68.0


5. COMMON TYPE 1 ROAD TRAINS - CLASS 2


(a)
6.0t          16.5t                    16.5t         16.5t                     16.5t


9 Axle A-double ≤ 36.5 72.0 74.0 74.0


(b)
6.0t          16.5t                    20.0t            16.5t                     20.0t


11 Axle A-double ≤ 36.5 79.0 81.0 85.0


(c)
6.0t         16.5t                     20.0t            20.0t                    20.0t


12 Axle A-double ≤ 36.5 82.5 84.5 90.5


(d)
6.0t          16.5t                 20.0t                    20.0t                      20.0t


12 Axle Modular B-triple ≤ 35.0 82.5 84.5 90.5


(e)
6.0t          16.5t                 20.0t                    20.0t                      20.0t


12 Axle B-triple ≤ 36.5 82.5 84.5 90.5


(f)
6.0t         16.5t                    20.0t            16.5t                   20.0t                      20.0t


14 Axle AB-triple ≤ 36.5 99.0 101.0 107.5


(g)
6.0t         16.5t                    20.0t            20.0t                   20.0t                     20.0t


15 Axle AB-triple ≤ 36.5 102.5 104.5 113.0


(h)
6.0t           16.5t         16.5t     16.5t       16.5t     16.5t


11 Axle Rigid Truck and 2 Dog Trailers ≤ 36.5 88.5 90.5 91.0


6. COMMON TYPE 2 ROAD TRAINS - CLASS 2


(a)
6.0t          16.5t                   20.0t            16.5t                     20.0t            16.5t                     20.0t


16 Axle A-triple ≤ 53.5 115.5 117.5 124.5


(b)
6.0t          16.5t                    20.0t           20.0t                     20.0t           20.0t                     20.0t


18 Axle A-triple ≤ 53.5 122.5 124.5 135.5


(c)
6.0t         16.5t                     20.0t           20.0t                  20.0t                      20.0t


15 Axle AB-triple ≤ 44.0 – Classified by the NHVR 
as Type 1 when L ≤ 36.5m 102.5 104.5 113.0


(d)
                                        6.0t         16.5t         16.5t      20.0t        16.5t    20.0t


13 Axle Rigid Truck and 2 Dog Trailers ≤ 47.5 – Classified by the NHVR 
as Type 1 when L ≤ 36.5m 95.5 97.5 102.0


(e)
6.0t          16.5t                 20.0t                      20.0t           16.5t                   20.0t                     20.0t


17 Axle BAB-Quad ≤ 53.5 119.0 121.0 130.0


(f)
6.0t         16.5t                 20.0t                     20.0t            20.0t                  20.0t                     20.0t


18 Axle BAB-Quad ≤ 53.5 122.5 124.5 135.5


(g)
6.0t          16.5t                    20.0t            16.5t                  20.0t                  20.0t                     20.0t


17 Axle ABB-Quad ≤ 53.5 119.0 121.0 130.0


(h)
6.0t         16.5t                    20.0t            20.0t                  20.0t                   20.0t                     20.0t


18 Axle ABB-Quad ≤ 53.5 122.5 124.5 135.5


*Add one tonne if twinsteer axle group is load sharing.**The mass of a dog trailer shall not exceed the mass of the towing vehicle under Schedule 1, Part 1, section 2(4) of the Heavy Vehicle (Mass, Dimension and Loading) National Regulation.
Please note, additional limits are allowed for steer axles under Schedule 1, Part 2 of the Heavy Vehicle (Mass, Dimension and Loading) National Regulation. © Copyright National Heavy Vehicle Regulator 2019, creativecommons.org/licenses/by-sa/3.0/au


National Heavy Vehicle Regulator
Common Heavy Freight  
Vehicle Configurations


Disclaimer: This chart shows some of the common heavy vehicle combinations used in Australia. 
In some circumstances, configurations and mass limits may be restricted. Heavy Vehicle 
Authorisations (Notices) describe these restrictions. Other heavy vehicle configurations may 
not be represented. Please visit www.nhvr.gov.au/gav for more information.
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Common PBS vehicle configurations Description PBS level Maximum 
length† (m)


Maximum permitted mass
GML (t) CML (t) HML (t) 


PBS TRUCK AND DOG TRAILERS


1� 3-axle truck and 3-axle dog trailer
1 20.0 48.5 – –
2 20.0 48.5 49.5 49.5


2� 3-axle truck and 4-axle dog trailer
1 20.0 50.5 – –
2 20.0 56.0 57.5 57.5


3� 3-axle truck and 5-axle dog trailer 2 26.0 59.5 61.5 63.0


4� 3-axle truck and 6-axle dog trailer 2 26.0 63.0 65.0 68.5


5� 4-axle truck and 3-axle dog trailer
1 20.0 50.0 – –
2 20.0 53.0 54.0 54.0


6� 4-axle truck and 4-axle dog trailer
1 20.0 50.0 – –
2 20.0 60.5 62.0 62.0


7� 4-axle truck and 5-axle dog trailer 2 26.0 64.0 66.0 67.5


8� 4-axle truck and 6-axle dog trailer 2 26.0 67.5 69.5 73.0


PBS PRIME MOVER AND SEMITRAILERS


9�
2-axle prime mover and 2-axle semitrailer 1 20.0 32.0 32.5 32.5


10�
3-axle prime mover and 2-axle semitrailer 1 20.0 39.5 40.5 40.5


11�
3-axle prime mover and 3-axle semitrailer 1 20.0 43.0 44.0 46.0


12�
4-axle prime mover and 3-axle semitrailer 1 20.0 47.5 48.5 50.0


13�
3-axle prime mover and quad-axle semitrailer 1 20.0 43.0 44.0* 50.5*


14�
4-axle prime mover and quad-axle semitrailer


1 20.0 47.5 48.5* 50.0*◊


2 21.0 47.5 48.5* 55.0*◊


15�
Prime mover and semitrailer with 2 axle groups (2-1)∆ 1 20.0 48.0 49.0 49.0


16�
Prime mover and semitrailer with 2 axle groups (1-3)∆ 1 20.0 49.7 50.7 53.5◊


PBS B-DOUBLES


17�
3-axle prime mover B-double (2-2)


1 20.0 50.5 – – 
2 26.0 56.0 57.5 57.5
3 30.0 56.0 57.5 57.5


18�
3-axle prime mover B-double (3-2)


1 20.0 50.5 – –
2 26.0 59.5 61.5 63.0


19�
3-axle prime mover B-double (3-3)


2 26.0 63.0 65.0 68.5
3 30.0 63.0 65.0 68.5


20�
3-axle prime mover B-double (4-3)


2 26.0 63.0 65.0* 73.0*


3 30.0 63.0 65.0* 73.0*


21�
3-axle prime mover B-double (4-4)


2 26.0 63.0 65.0* 77.5*


3 30.0 63.0 65.0* 77.5*


PBS A-DOUBLES


22�
3-axle prime mover A-double (2-2-2) 2 30.0 72.5 74.5 74.5


23�
3-axle prime mover A-double (3-2-3)


2 30.0 79.5 81.5 85.0
3 36.5 79.5 81.5 85.5


24�
3-axle prime mover A-double (3-3-3)


2 30.0 83.0 85.0 85.0
3 36.5 83.0 85.0 91.0


PBS ROAD TRAINS


25�
A-triple (3-3-3-3-3) 4 42.5 126.5 128.5 141.5


26�
B-triple (3-3-3) 3 36.5 83.0 85.0 91.0


27�
AB-triple (3-3-3-3) 3 36.5 103.0 105.0 110.0


28�
BA-triple (3-3-3-3) 3 36.5 103.0 105.0 110.0


29�
AB-double (1-2-1)


1 20.0 50.5 – –
2 20.0 59.0 59.5 59.5


PBS BUS


30� Bus 1 14.5 20.5 – –


PBS TRUCK AND PIG TRAILERS


31�  3-axle truck and 2-axle pig trailer 1 20.0 38.0 38.5 38.5


32� 4-axle truck and 2-axle pig trailer 1 20.0 42.5 43.0 43.0


† Vehicles may exceed the upper length in their level. Road manager approval and/or an individual route assessment will be required. * Quad-axle mass limit (QML). The MDL Regulation allows quad-axle groups up to 27 tonnes provided a combination is PBS approved. ◊ Operation of PBS vehicles on the PBS road network will require 
Road manager consent. ∆ Vehicle Standards exemptions are required before a PBS vehicle approval is issued.


PBS Vehicle Configurations


Disclaimer: This chart shows some of the NHVR-approved PBS heavy vehicle combinations used in Australia. Other heavy vehicle configurations may not 
be represented. The mass and length limits shown are from the Heavy Vehicle (Mass, Dimension and Loading) National Regulation (the MDL Regulation) 
and are provided for general guidance only. These limits are available only to vehicles that comply with all other regulatory requirements (e.g. width and 
height limits, tyre width, vehicle standards, load restraint, suspension type etc.). In some circumstances, other mass concessions and length limits may 
also be available. The NHVR website provides links to the MDL Regulation and to national and state Notices that may apply, depending on individual 
circumstances. For further information, contact the NHVR on 1300 MYNHVR (1300 696 487) at info@nhvr.gov.au or www.nhvr.gov.au/contact-us


National Heavy Vehicle Regulator
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Project Category Amount


701015 - Kerb & Channel Capital 43,550                


701023 - Reseals Capital 190,000             


701026 - Major Culverts Capital 100,000             


701198 - 201819- Repair Bridge Bearing Pads & Expansion Joints at 2 Sites Capital 45,000                


701322 - Bridge 139 Raglan Elmhurst Rd (BRP) Capital 95,500                


701323 - Bridge 32 Carngham-Streatham Rd (BRP) Capital 94,000                


701601 - Avoca Drainage Project 2021-22 Capital 163,089             


702058 - Waste Strategy Transfer Station Upgrades Exp Capital 19,926                


702095 - front counter renovations in Council offices - Frontline Service Review Capital 58,144                


704011 - Information Technology Purchases Capital 138,264             


705083 - Avoca Depot - Emulsion Tank Bunding Exp Capital 20,000                


705244 - Construction of new emulsion tank at Beaufort depot and new bunding Exp Capital 7,500                  


705246 - Drainage Project 2020-21 Capital 34,550                


706003 - Heavy Plant Purchases Capital 637,846             


706005 - Motor Vehicle Purchases Capital 124,598             


705094 - Pyrenees Planning Scheme Amendment for flood studies- DELWP exp Operating 30,000                


503008 - Federal Assistance Grant - General Purpose Inc Operating 4,042,871          


109070 - Federal Assistance Grant - Local Roads Inc Operating 2,627,024          


705086 - Retail Area Facade Improvement Program Exp Operating 55,709                


705234 - Beaufort New Practice Nets & Storage Shed Exp. Capital 85,726                


702071 - Directional Signage Upgrade Exp Capital 56,395                


703019 - Avoca Depot Upgrade Exp Capital 79,088                


107515 - Kerb & Channel Exp Operating 32,657                


707002 - Light up Goldfields Recreation Reserve Beaufort Capital 132,818             


707001 - Lake Beaufort Fishing Platform Capital 17,968                


8,932,224          


2023 -24 Carry List
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Pyrenees Shire Council
S11 INSTRUMENT OF APPOINTMENT AND 


AUTHORISATION
September 2023


In this Instrument we have used the following abbreviations to mean the following officers 
appointed or authorised in respect of the relevant legislation -


• [CEO] means Chief Executive Officer
• [DADS] means Director Assets & Development Services
• [DCCS] means Director Corporate & Community Services
• [MPD] means Manager Planning & Development
• [MBS] means Municipal Building Surveyor
• [BI] means Building Inspector
• [CSAO] means Community Safety & Amenity Officer
• [TLCSA] means Team Leader Community Safety & Amenity
•        [MFPO] means Municipal Fire Prevention Officer
• [MEMO] means Municipal Emergency Management Officer
• [MRM] means Municipal Recovery Manager
• [SP] means Statutory / Strategic Planner and includes Planning Coordinator
• [EHO] means Environmental Health Officer
• [ESO] means Environment and Sustainability Officer
• [MW] means Manager Works
• [MA] means Manager Assets
• [ME] means Manager Engineering
• [Eng] means Engineer
• [MF] means Manager Finance
• [MGP] means Manager Governance & Performance
• [Valuer} means Council Valuer
•       [Kernow] means Kernow Environmental Services
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation


In this Instrument ‘officer’ means –


CEO Jim Nolan
DADS Douglas Gowans 
DCCS Kathy Bramwell 
MPD Rachel Blackwell 
MBS Craig Fletcher
BI Nick Gooding
CSAO Jacinda Perry, Philip Diprose
TLCSA Dennis Nikoltsis
MFPO Dennis Nikoltsis
MEMO Kathy Bramwell, Douglas Gowans
MRM Jerry van Delft, Ray Davies
SP Eoghan McColl


 EHO / Kernow Dane Gade, Anthony Komives, Sean La Fontaine, Rupa Gordon, Mary 
Galea, Hannah Shanks-Colla, Lachlan Benjafield, Terry Old


ESO Terry McAliece 
MW Phillip Hoare 
MA Timothy Day 
ME Daniel Potter 
Eng Rashil Pradhan 
MCWP Jerry van Delft
MGP Dean Miller
Valuer Chris Barrett (VRC Property)


By this Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation Pyrenees Shire Council -


PART A


1. under s 224 of the Local Government Act 1989 – appoints the following 
officers to be authorised officers for the administration and enforcement 
of –


The Building Act 1993 MPD MBS BS EHO BI
The Country Fire Authority Act 1958 MFPO EHO TLCSAO
The Domestic Animals Act 1994 MPD CSAO TLCSA EHO
The Emergency Management Act 2013 DADS MW MA ME MEMO MRM EHO TLCSA 


CSAO
The Environment Protection Act 2017
The Fire Rescue Victoria Act 1958 (formerly 
known as the Metropolitan Fire Brigades Act 
1958)


MFPO EHO TLCSAO
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The Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012 DCCS MF MFPO
The Food Act 1984 EHO MPD
The Graffiti Prevention Act 2007 MBS EHO TLCSA CSAO
The Housing Act 1983 EHO MBS BI TLCSA CSAO
The Impounding of Livestock Act 1994 TLCSA CSAO MPD
The Land Act 19581 CEO DADS DCCS
The Local Government Act 1989 CEO DADS DCCS MPD EHO MF MBS TLCSA 


CSAO MFPO BI MGP
The Local Government Act 2020 CEO DADS DCCS MPD EHO MF MBS TLCSA 


CSAO MFPO BI MGP
The Public Health and Wellbeing Act 20082 EHO MPD TLCSA
Part 14 of the Residential Tenancies Act 1997 EHO MPD TLCSA
The Road Management Act 2004 DADS MW MA
The Road Safety Act 1986 DADS TLCSA CSAO
The Sex Work Act 1994 MPD SP
The Summary Offences Act 1966 DADS MPD EHO TLCSA CSAO
The Tobacco Act 19873 EHO MPD TLCSA
The Valuation of Land Act 1960 Valuer


The Regulations made under each of those Acts, the local laws made under 
the Local Government Act 1989 or the Local Government Act 2020 and any 
other Act, Regulation or Local Law which relates to the functions and powers 
of the Council.


PART B


2. Under s 3 of the Building Act 1993 – appoints the officer 
to be the Municipal Building Surveyor for the purposes of 
the Building Act 1993


MBS


3. Under s 216C of the Building Act 1993 – appoints the 
officer to be the Municipal Building Surveyor for the 
purpose of carrying out functions in respect of land 
outside the municipal district of the Pyrenees Shire 
Council4


MBS


4. Under s 96A(1)(a) of the Country Fire Authority Act 1958 
– appoints the officer to be the fire prevention officer


MFPO TLCSA


1 Authorisation requires the consent of the Minister (see s190 of the Act).
2 Council only to appoint a person suitable qualified or trained under s31(2) of the Act.
3 This Act provides for the CEO of a Council to nominate a person to be an inspector for the purposes of the Act and the 
Secretary may then appoint them to be an inspector (see s.26).  Before making the appointment, the Secretary must be 
satisfied that the person has the necessary skills, training and expertise to exercise the powers of an inspector (see 
s.36AA). An EHO appointed under the Act is also regarded as an inspector under the Act.
4 Functions are outlined in s.216C(1)(a)-(c) of the Building Act 1993.
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5. Under s 72 of the Domestic Animals Act 1994 – appoints 
the officers to be Council authorised officers for the 
purposes of the Domestic Animals Act 1994


MPD TLCSA CSAO 


6. Under s 59G(1) of the Emergency Management Act 2013 
– appoints the officers to be municipal emergency 
management officers


MEMO


7. Under s 59H(1) of the Emergency Management Act 2013 
– appoints the officers to be municipal recovery 
managers


MRM 


8. Under s 114(2) of the Environment Protection Act 2017 – 
appoints the officers to be litter enforcement officers for 
the purposes of the Environment Protection Act 20175


TLCSA CSAO MPD


9. Under s 171 of the Environment Protection Act 2017 – 
appoints the officers to be residential noise enforcement 
officers for the purposes of s 171 of the Environment 
Protection Act 20176


TLCSA CSAO MPD EHO


10. Under s 347(3) of the Environment Protection Act 2017 – 
appoints the officers for the purposes of r 171 of the 
Environment Protection Regulations 2021 relating to on-
site wastewater management systems


EHO MPD TLCSA


11. Under s 242(2) of the Environment Protection Act 2017 – 
appoints the officers for the purposes of the power or 
function delegated to Council under s 437(1) of the Act7


MPD TLCSA CSAO


12. Under s 5A(1)(a) of the Fire Rescue Victoria Act 1958 
formerly known as the Metropolitan Fire Brigades Act 
1958 – appoints the officer to be the fire prevention 
officer for the purposes of the Fire Rescue Victoria Act 
1958


MFPO TLCSA


13. Under s 23 of the Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012 – 
appoints the officers to be authorised officers for the 
purposes of the Fire Services Property Levy Act 20128


MFPO TLCSA


14. For the purposes of s 20 of the Food Act 1984 – appoints 
the officers to be authorised officers for the purposes of 
the Food Act 1984


EHO MPD TLCSA


15. Under s 19(1) OF THE Graffiti Prevention Act 2007 – 
appoints the officers to be authorised persons for the 
purposes of carrying out Council’s functions under s 18 of 
the Graffiti Prevention Act 20079 - 


EHO MPD TLCSA CSAO


16. Under s 71(1) of the Housing Act 1983 – appoints the 
officer to be authorised persons for the purposes of 
entering a house or building and conducting an 
inspection under s 71 of the Housing Act 1983


MBS BI EHO TLCSA CSAO 
MPD


17. Under s 3 of the Infringements Act 2006 – appoints the 
officers to be issuing officers for the purposes of the 
Infringements Act 2006


DADS MPD EHO TLCSA CSAO 
MBS MFPO


5 Litter enforcement officer must be a member of Council staff (see s.114(2)).
6 Residential noise enforcement officer may be a member of Council staff or a specified person (i.e. non-employee / 
skilled contractor) (see s.171(1)).
7 Must be an employee of Council.
8 Persons appointed or authorised officers under the Local Government Act 1989 are taken to be authorised officers for 
the purposes of the Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012 (except in Part 4 of that Act).
9 Authorised person must agree in writing to exercise functions and powers of an authorised person under Part 4 of the 
Act and in accordance with any performance criteria determined by Council (see s.19(2)).
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18. Under s 190 of the Land Act 1958 – authorises the 
officers for the purposes of 2 190 of that Act10


CEO DADS DCCS


19. Under s 150 of the Local Government Act 2020 – 
appoints the officer to be the Councillors Conduct 
Officer11


DCCS


20. Under s 29 of the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008 – 
appoints the officers to be Environmental Health 
Officers12 for the purposes of enforcing the Public Health 
and Wellbeing act 2008 and the Food Act 1984


EHO


21. Under s 525(2) of the Residential Tenancies Act 1997 – 
appoints the officers to exercise the powers set out in 
s.526 of the Residential Tenancies Act 1997


EHO


22. Under s 71(3) of the Road Management Act 2004 – 
appoints the officers to exercise the powers under s 
59(1)(a) of that Act


DADS TLCSA CSAO


23. Under s 59(1)(a)(ii) of the Road Management Act 1986 – 
authorises the officers to exercise the powers under s 
59(1)(a) of that Act


DADS TLCSA CSAO


24. Under s 59(1)(d) of the Road Safety Act 1986 – 
authorises the officers to exercise the powers under s 
59(1)(d) of the Road Safety Act 1986


DADS TLCSA CSAO


25. Under s 87(1A) of the Road Safety Act 1986 – authorises 
the officer to exercise the power in s87(1A) of the Road 
Safety Act 198613


DADS TLCSA CSAO


26. Under s 87(1B)(c) of the Road Safety Act 1986 – 
authorises the officers to exercise the power in s 
98(1B)(c) of the Road Safety Act 1986


DADS TLCSA CSAO


27. Under s 79(1)(b) of the Road Safety (General) 
Regulations 2019 – authorises the officers for the 
purposes of filing a charge or an offence under s 90E of 
the Road Safety Act 1986 or under a regulation under 
that Act


DADS TLCSA CSAO


28. Under r 79(1)(b) of the Road Safety (General) 
Regulations 2019 – authorises the officers for the 
purposes of filing a charge or an offence under 2 90E of 
the Road Safety Act 1986 or under a regulation under 
that Act


DADS TLCSA CSAO


29. Under r 5 of the Road Safety (Traffic Management) 
Regulations 2019 – authorises the officers for the 
purposes of s 15 of the Road Safety (Traffic 
Management) Regulations 2019


DADS MW MA ME MPD TLCSA 
CSAO


30. Under s 3(1) of the Sex Work Act 1994 – appoints the 
officer to be an authorised officer of the responsible 
authority for the purposes of enforcing Parts 4 and 5 of 
the Sex Work act 1994


MPD


31. Under s 13DA(1) of the Valuation of Land Act 1960 – 
appoints the person who is not a member of Council’s 


Valuer


10 Authorisation requires the consent of the Minister (see s190 of the Act).
11 Only an ‘eligible person’ may be appointed.
12 Council must be sure that the HO is suitable trained or qualified under s31(2) of the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 
2008.
13 Council must ensure that a person appointed under s.87 is competent, of good repute and character and has agreed 
in writing to exercise the functions conferred on an authorised person (see s 87(1C) of the Act).
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staff for the purposes of s 13DA of the Valuation of Land 
Act 196014


32. Under s 13J of the Valuation of Land Act 1960 – appoints 
the prson for the purposes of s 13J of the Valuation of 
Land Act 196015


Valuer


PART C


Under -


s313 of the Local Government Act 202016


 s527 of the Residential Tenancies Act 1997 


s77(2)(b) of the Road Safety Act 198617 


s77(4) of the Road Safety Act 1986 – only where Council is a Committee of Management 


under the Crown Land (Reserves) Act 1978


ss 170(2), 170(4), 170(6) of the Environment Protection Act 2017 – only relates to enforcement of 
unreasonable and aggravated noise


s 347(4) of the Environment Protection Act 2017 – only relates to an offence against a provision of 
Part 6.3 of the Act (litter and other waste).


s 347(3) of the Environment Protection Act 2017 and r 171 of the Environment Protection 
Regulations 2021 – for specified offences relating to on-site wastewater management systems.


s 347(7) of the Environment Protection Act 2017 – where Council has been delegated powers or 
functions in relation to any offences against ss 25, 27, 286, 287 or 28818


s241 of the Building Act 1993


s92 of the Domestic Animals Act 199419


s96 of the Road Management Act 2004


s33A of the Impounding of Livestock Act 1994


s10(4) of the Graffiti Prevention Act 2007


s219 of the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008


14 Council must ensure that the person appointed holds the qualifications or experience specified from time to time by the 
Minister by notice published in the Government Gazette.
15 Council must ensure that the person appointed holds the qualifications or experience specified from time to time by the 
Minister by notice published in the Government Gazette.
16 A person authorised under s 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 is also authorised to bring proceedings under the 
Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012 (see s 22 of the Fire Services Property Levy Act 2012).
17 A person authorised under ss 77(2)(b) and/or 77(4) of the Road Safety Act 1986 is also an authorised officer for the 
purposes of rr 203 and 307 of the Road Safety Road Rules 2017.
18 Must be an employee or officer of Council.


19 Council may only appoint an authorised officer who is also appointed under s 72 of the Act.
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s45AC of the Food Act 1984


Authorises the officers generally to institute proceedings and represent Council in 
proceedings for offences against the Acts, regulations and local laws described in this 
Instrument.


It is declared that this Instrument -


▪ comes into force immediately upon its execution, and


▪ remains in force until varied or revoked.


This Instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Pyrenees Shire Council made on 19th September 2023.


The Common Seal of the )
Pyrenees Shire Council was )
hereunto affixed in the presence of: )


Councillor: _ 


Chief Executive Officer: _ 


Date:  
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S11A. Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation (Planning and Environment Act 1987) September 2023


S11A. Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation (Planning and 
Environment Act 1987)


Pyrenees Shire Council


Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation 


(Planning and Environment Act 1987 only)


September 2023


• [DADS] means Director Assets & Development,
• [MPD] means Manager Planning & Development,
• [PC] means Planning Co-ordinator,
• [SP] means Statutory / Strategic Planner
• [TLCSA] means Team Leader Community Safety & Amenity
• [EHO] means Environmental Health Officer
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Planning and Environment Act 1987)


In this instrument "officer" means -


DADS Douglas Gowans
MPD Rachel Blackwell
PC Eoghan McColl
SP Eoghan McColl
TLCSA Dennis Nikoltsis
EHO Kernow Environmental Services


By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Pyrenees Shire Council -


1. under section 147(4) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 - appoints the officers 
named in this document to be authorised officers for the purposes of the Planning and 
Environment Act 1987 and the regulations made under that Act, and


2. under section 313 of the Local Government Act 2020 authorises the officers named in this 
document either generally or in a particular case to institute proceedings for offences against 
the Acts and regulations described in this instrument.


It is declared that this instrument -


(a) comes into force immediately upon its execution, and
(b) remains in force until varied or revoked.


This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Pyrenees Shire Council on 19 September 2023.
                                                  


The Common Seal of the Pyrenees Shire Council )
was hereunto affixed in the Presence of: )


Councillor: ________________________________


Chief Executive Officer: _____________________________


Date: _________________________________  
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S11B. Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation (Environment Protection Act 2017) September 2023


S11A. Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation (Environment 
Protection Act 2017)


Pyrenees Shire Council


Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation 


(Environment Protection Act 2017 only)


September 2023


• [MPD] means Manager Planning & Development,
• [TLCSA] means Team Leader Community Safety & Amenity
• [EHO] means Environmental Health Officer
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Instrument of Appointment and Authorisation
(Environment Protection Act 2017)


In this instrument "officer" means -


MPD Rachel Blackwell
TLCSA Dennis Nikoltsis
EHO Kernow Environmental Services


By this instrument of appointment and authorisation Pyrenees Shire Council -


1. under section 242(2) of the Environment Protection Act 2017 (Act) and the relevant 
Instrument of Delegation of the Environment Protection Authority under the Act – appoints 
the officers named in this document to be authorised officers for the purposes of exercising 
the powers and functions set out in the Instrument of Direction of the Environment Protection 
Authority under the Act dated 4 June 2021.


It is declared that this instrument -


(a) comes into force immediately upon its execution, and
(b) remains in force until varied or revoked.


This instrument is authorised by a resolution of the Pyrenees Shire Council on 19 September 2023.
                                                  


The Common Seal of the Pyrenees Shire Council )
was hereunto affixed in the Presence of: )


Councillor: ________________________________


Chief Executive Officer: _____________________________


Date: _________________________________  
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Performance Statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2023 


REFERENCES 


Reg R 


Better Practice  BP 


 


R17(1) 
 
 
 
BP 


Description of municipality 


 


The Pyrenees Shire is in the Central West of Victoria, about 130 kilometers Northwest of 
Melbourne. It is heavily dependent on primary industry and is renowned for its wool, viticulture, 
and forestry activity. Thirty percent of the workforce is involved in agriculture. Key areas of 
production are wool, cereal, hay crops and meat. Grape and wine production have expanded 
significantly in recent times.  Gold, along with sand, gravel and slate all contribute to the 
economy.  
 
The Pyrenees Shire comprises an area of nearly 3,500 square kilometres and a population of 7622 
residents. The Shire takes its name from the ranges in the north that hold similarity to the 
Pyrenees Ranges in Europe. 
 
Council administration is based in the township of Beaufort, and several Council services also 
operate from the township of Avoca. These services include health and aged care, roads and 
infrastructure maintenance, library and information centres. 
 
Excellent educational facilities are available in the Pyrenees Shire, including integrated children’s 
centres, primary schools, a secondary college and Community Resource and Information Centres 
incorporating adult education and library services. 
 
Recreational activities are available in abundance in the region, giving community members and 
visitors wonderful opportunities to experience new pastimes. Most townships in the Shire have 
their own sporting facilities, such as sports ovals and netball courts. Avoca, Beaufort and Snake 
Valley also have skate parks.  
 
Tourism is ever growing throughout the region. Hang-gliding from Mount Cole, croquet in 
Beaufort, the French game of Petanque in Avoca and the long-running Lake Goldsmith Steam 
Rally, attract large numbers of visitors year-round.  In recent years, the action sport of mountain 
bike riding has risen in popularity. 
 
In addition to the sporting opportunities, the Pyrenees is known for its wineries and culinary 
delights. Community markets are a popular attraction, as are the region’s antique fairs, picnic 
horse races and music festivals. 
 
Overview of 2022/23 
During the financial year Council experienced moderate growth in residents and demand for 
services.  Contributing to the growth in the shire was the proximity of some areas to growth seen 
in surrounding regional centres. 
 
Council operations were impacted by the extreme weather / flooding events occurring over 
October and November 2022, with widespread impacts seen across the shire and community.  
Significant damage was seen across the local roads network and a dedicated flood recovery team 
has been set up to coordinate both infrastructure rehabilitation and community recovery. 
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The COVID-19 global pandemic continued to impact in 2022/23, with a spike in staff contracting 
the virus in early 2023 which, at the end of the financial year, had plateaued.  There is evidence, 
however, of a longer-term impact on morale and optimism arising which needs to be addressed 
from a mental health and wellbeing perspective over the next year. 
 
The impact of global financial pressures continued in 2022/23, seen in rising costs relating to both 
the delivery of services and in the delivery of Council’s capital works and project program.  This, 
combined with the difficulty in obtaining contractors to undertake works in a timely manner, 
increases financial sustainability risks and the importance of good fiscal management and 
control. 
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Sustainable Capacity Indicators 
For the year ended 30 June 2023 


 


 Indicator/measure 
Results 


Material variations 
2020 2021 2022 2023 


R15(3) 


Sch3 


R16(1) 


R17(2) 


Population 
Expenses per head of municipal 
population 
[Total expenses / Municipal 
population] 


$2,974.30 


 


 


$3,191.30 


 


 


$3,085.02 


 


 


 


$3,332.11 Expenses increased due to the following factors: 


• Redundancy costs associated with the closure of the 
aged services program. 


• Cost increase to waste services program 


• Delivery Southern Wimmera and Northeast Pyrenees 
Water Supply Feasibility Study not included in the 
budget. 


• Additional costs associated with the October 2022 
flood event. 


 Infrastructure per head of municipal 
population 
[Value of infrastructure / Municipal 
population] 


$30,936.03 $31,352.35 $31,852.27 $35,540.61 The increase is due to the revaluation of infrastructure assets 
in 2022/23. 


 Population density per length of 
road 
[Municipal population / kilometres 
of local roads] 


3.64 3.72 3.88 $3.79  


 Own-source revenue 
Own-source revenue per head of 
municipal population 
[Own-source revenue / Municipal 
population] 


$1,651.23 


 


$1,695.04 


 


$1,817.37 


 


$1,925.44 The increases are impacted by increases in: 


• Rate Revenue 


• Revenue growth via supplementary valuations 


• Increase in revenue from waste charge 


• Increase in user fees following the recovery from 


COVID 


 Recurrent grants 
Recurrent grants per head of 
municipal population 
[Recurrent grants / Municipal 
population] 


$1,184.56 $1,205.16 $1,242.19 $1,470.77 Fluctuations caused by timing of grants’ receipt, particularly 
the Financial Assistance Grants – Council received the full 
2023/24 financial assistance grants in the 2022/23 financial 
year. 
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 Indicator/measure 
Results 


Material variations 
2020 2021 2022 2023 


R15(3) 


Sch3 


R16(1) 


R17(2) 


Disadvantage 
Relative socio-economic 
disadvantage of the municipality 
[Index of Relative Socio-economic 
Disadvantage by decile] 


3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00  


       


       


 Workforce turnover  
Percentage of staff turnover  
[Number of permanent staff 
resignations and terminations / 
Average number of permanent staff 
for the financial year] x100 


7.1% 12.4% 31.02% 15.9% Staff turnover in 2022 was higher than normal.  This has been 


put down to the effect of COVID resulting in the higher than 


usual staff turnover  Results in the industry show the results 


for Pyrenees are within the movements of the industry. 


 


Stability has been maintained in staff population within 


industry expectations, in the 2022/23 year. 


 
 


 


BP Definitions 


"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than: 
 (a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and  
 (b) non-monetary asset contributions; and  
 (c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above 
“infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and equipment excluding land 
"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004 
"population" means the resident population estimated by council 
"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government grants) 
"relative socio-economic disadvantage", in relation to a municipality, means the relative socio-economic disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant 
financial year, of the area in which the municipality is located according to the Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage (Catalogue Number 
2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA 
"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its Internet website 
"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash. 
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Service Performance Indicators 
For the year ended 30 June 2023 


 


 Service/Indicator/measure 
Results 


Material variations 
2020 2021 2022 2023 


R15(1) 


Sch3 


R16(1) 


R17(2) 


Aquatic facilities utilisation 
Utilisation of aquatic facilities 
[Number of visits to aquatic facilities 
/ Municipal population] 


1.61 0.99 1.02 1.22 The increase in the utilisation due to less disruption to the 
operations of the facilities thus being able to maximise the 
opening times resulting in greater numbers. 


Animal management  
Health and Safety 
Animal management prosecutions 
[Number of successful animal 
management prosecutions] / 
[number of animal prosecutions] x 
100 


100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%  


Food safety 
Health and Safety 
Critical and major non-compliance 
outcome notifications 
[Number of critical and major non-
compliance outcome notifications 
about a food premises followed up / 
Number of critical and major non-
compliance outcome notifications 
about a food premises] x 100 


100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%  


Governance Satisfaction 
Satisfaction with council decisions 
[Community satisfaction rating out 
of 100 with how Council has 
performed in making decisions in the 
interest of the community) 


 


 


 


 


54.00 54.00 53.00 50.00  
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 Service/Indicator/measure 
Results 


Material variations 
2020 2021 2022 2023 


Libraries participation 
Active library borrowers in 
municipality 
[Number of active library borrowers 
in the last three years / the sum of 
the population for the last three 
years] x 100 


9.94% 8.43% 8.42% 7.38% The reason behind the declining trend in active borrowers is 
largely unknown but is being investigated by Council. 


Maternal and child health 
Participation 
Participation in the MCH Service 
[Number of children who attend 
MCH service at least once (in the 
year) / Number of children enrolled 
in the MCH service] x 100 


92.97% 78.46% 94.31% 92.95%  


MCH Participation  
Participation in the MCH Service by 
Aboriginal children 
[Number of Aboriginal children who 
attend the MCH service at least once 
(in the year) / Number of children 
enrolled in the MCH service] x 100 


93.33% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%  


Roads Satisfaction 
Satisfaction with sealed local roads 
[Community satisfaction rating out 
of 100 with how council has 
performed on the condition of 
sealed local roads] 


51.00 57.00 50.00 44.00 2022 flood event had a significant increase in road damage and a 
significant impact on community satisfaction. 
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 Service/Indicator/measure 
Results 


Material variations 
2020 2021 2022 2023 


Statutory Planning 
Decision making 
Council planning decisions upheld at 
VCAT 


[Number of VCAT decisions that did 
not set aside council’s decision in 
relation to a planning application 
/Number of VCAT decisions in 
relation to planning applications] x 
100 


0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%  


Waste Collection 
Waste diversion 
Kerbside collection waste diverted 
from landfill 
[Weight of recyclables and green 
organics collected from kerbside 
bins / Weight of garbage, recyclables 
and green organics collected from 
kerbside bins] x 100 


19.64% 29.56% 24.30% 37.14% The increase in waste diversion is due to a combination of an 
increase in glass and commingled recycling as the implemented 
services is accepted by the community, thus driving the demand.  
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BP 


Definitions 
"Aboriginal child" means a child who is an Aboriginal person  
"Aboriginal person" has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006   
"active library member" means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the library  
"annual report" means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act  
“class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 1 food premises under section 19C of that 
Act  
“class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984 , that have been declared as class 2 food premises under section 19C of that 
Act  
"critical non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984 , or advice given to council 
by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health  
"food premises" has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984   
"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004 
"major non-compliance outcome notification" means a notification received by a council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council 
by an authorized officer under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public health but may do so if no remedial action is taken  
"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development of children within the municipality from birth 
until school age 
"population" means the resident population estimated by council   
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Financial Performance Indicators 
For the year ended 30 June 2023 
 


 Dimension/indicator/measure 
Results Forecasts 


Material variations 
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 


R15(2) 
Sch3 
R16(1) 
R16(2) 


 
R17(2) 
R17(3) 


Efficiency 
Expenditure level 
Expenses per property 
assessment 
[Total expenses / Number of 
property assessments] 


$3,683.74 $3,961.60 $ 3,866.16 $4,108.71 $3,834.51 $3,913.83 $3,991.52 $4,070.40 Expenses were greater in 
2022-23 due to expenses 
relating to the flood event in 
October 2022, plus additional 
projects were carried out. 


Revenue level 
Average rate per property 
assessment 
[General rates and Municipal 
charges / Number of property 
assessments] 


$1,407.26 $1,462.54 $1,506.58 


 


$1,512.42 $1,574.48 $1,608.77 $1,643.82 $1,679.62  


Liquidity 
Working Capital 
Current assets compared to 
current liabilities 
[Current assets / Current 
liabilities] x 100 


223.13% 179.56% 240.50% 256.64% 104.22% 104.99% 107.38% 110.36% Increase is due to having more 
cash at the end of the financial 
year because of receiving 
payment of grants in advance 
and a number of major 
projects still underway as at 
June 30.  This includes 
Financial Assistance Grants and 
advance payment for flood 
recovery works.  Future years 
levels are reduced as it is 
budgeted that all works will be 
completed in the relevant 
financial year and grants will 
not be received in advance. 
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 Dimension/indicator/measure 
Results Forecasts 


Material variations 
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 


Unrestricted cash 
Unrestricted cash compared to 
current liabilities 
[Unrestricted cash / Current 
liabilities] x 100 


66.69% -70.94% -66.83% 168.04% 50.39% 51.62% 54.48% 57.44% The increase in 2023 reflects 
the receipt of the 2024 Federal 
Assistance grants in 2023. 
Future years forecast results 
assume grants will not be 
received in advance. 


Obligations (1) 
Loans and borrowings 
Loans and borrowings 
compared to rates 
[Interest and principal 
repayments on interest 
bearing loans and borrowings 
/ Rates revenue] x 100 


0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 4.40% 10.50% 8.58% 6.68% 7.94% Council entered new loan 
arrangements in 2023.  The 
future budgets is to reduce the 
level of borrowings. 


Loans and borrowings (2) 
Loans and borrowings 
repayments compared to rates 
[Interest and principal 
repayments on interest 
bearing loans and borrowings 
/ Rate revenue] x 100 


0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.87% 1.23% 2.15% 2.08% 2.02% Council entered new loan 
arrangements in 2023.  The 
future forecast reflect the 
repayment schedule and the 
planned reduction in debt over 
time. 


Indebtedness 
Non-current liabilities 
compared to own source 
revenue 
[Non-current liabilities / Own 
source revenue] x 100 


1.78% 1.16% 0.87% 4.18% 8.83% 7.07% 5.33% 6.84% The increase in 2023 is due to 
a loan being taken out.  Future 
year variations are a direct 
result on the future borrowing 
strategy as per the 2023-24 
budget.  
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 Dimension/indicator/measure 
Results Forecasts 


Material variations 
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 


Asset renewal and upgrade 
Asset renewal and upgrade 
compared to depreciation 
[Asset renewal and upgrade 
expense / Asset depreciation] 
x 100 


128.67% 109.94% 110.58% 116.06% 108.77% 68% 68% 68% The 2023 increase is due to the 
receipt of government grants 
providing more funds for asset 
renewal and upgrade. The 
forecast decrease is directly 
attributable to no future grants 
being budgeted to be received 
to fund asset renewal projects.  
Thus future forecasts reflect 
only Council funds being spent 
on asset renewal where past 
results reflect Council and 
grant funding spent on asset 
renewal. 


Operating position (3) 
Adjusted underlying result 
Adjusted underlying surplus 
(or deficit) 
[Adjusted underlying surplus 
(deficit) / Adjusted underlying 
revenue] x 100 


1.63% 1.45% 4.22% 6.16% -1.90% -2.05% -2.14% 3.44% The increase is a direct result 
of higher levels of grant 
income, especially the receipt 
of the total 2023/24 allocation 
of the financial assistance 
grants in 2022/23.  Future 
years budget that the grant 
income will be received in the 
relevant year. 
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 Dimension/indicator/measure 
Results Forecasts 


Material variations 
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 


 


 Stability (4) 
Rates concentration 
Rates compared to adjusted 
underlying revenue 
[Rate revenue / Adjusted 
underlying revenue] x 100 


46.55% 46.57% 50.63% 47.19% 58.27% 58.42% 58.58% 55.49% The reduction is due to high 
levels of underlying revenue, 
principally the increase in grant 
revenues as a result of the 
receipt of the total 2023/24 
allocation of the financial 
assistance grants in 2022/23. 
The 2024 increase reflects the 
greater rate and charges 
increase due to the rate cap 
and increasing waste charges 
in 2024.  The decrease 
represents the lower level of 
rate increase into the future. 
 
 


 Rates effort (5) 
Rates compared to Property 
values 
[Rate revenue / Capital 
Improved Value of rateable 
properties in the municipality] 
x 100 


0.45% 0.41% 0.40% 0.28% 0.29% 0.29% 0.29% 0.29% Valuations are growing at a 
greater rate than the ability to 
raise rates due to rate capping 
limitations. 


 
 
 
(1) Obligations   


Loans and borrowings compared to rates 


[Interest and principal repayments on interest bearing loans and borrowings / Rates revenue] x 100 


 


The forecast numbers for this measure differ from those published in the 2023-24 budget .  The budget data only included rate revenue where the performance 


data formula includes “rates and charges” from the operating statement. 
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(2) Loans and borrowings 
Loans and borrowings 


Loans and borrowings repayments compared to rates 


[Interest and principal repayments on interest bearing loans and borrowings / Rate revenue] x 100 


 


The forecast numbers for this measure differ from those published in the 2023-24 budget.  The budget data only included rate revenue where the performance 


data formula includes “rates and charges” from the operating statement. 


 


(3) Operating position 
Adjusted underlying result 


Adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit) 


[Adjusted underlying surplus (deficit) / Adjusted underlying revenue] x 100 


 


The forecast numbers for this measure differ from those published in the 2023-24 budget.  The budget data included an error in the formula. 


 
(4) Stability 


Rates Concentration 


Rates compared to adjusted underlying revenue 


[Rate revenue / Adjusted underlying revenue] x 100 


 


The forecast numbers for this measure differ from those published in the 2023-24 budget.  The budget data only included rate revenue where the performance 


data formula includes “rates and charges” from the operating statement. 


 


(5) Rates effort 
Rates compared to Property values 


[Rate revenue / Capital Improved Value of rateable properties in the municipality] x 100 


 


The forecast numbers for this measure differ from those published in the 2023-24 budget.  The budget data only included rate revenue where the performance 


data formula includes “rates and charges” from the operating statement. 
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  BP Definitions 


"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than: 
 (a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and  
 (b) non-monetary asset contributions; and  
 (c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above 
"adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)" means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure 
"asset renewal expenditure" means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that returns the service capability of the asset to 
its original capability 
“current assets” has the same meaning as in the AAS 
"current liabilities" has the same meaning as in the AAS 
“non-current assets” means all assets other than current assets 
"non-current liabilities" means all liabilities other than current liabilities 
“non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is not expected to be received again 
during the period covered by a council's Strategic Resource Plan 
"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government grants 
"population "means the resident population estimated by council 
“rate revenue” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges 
"recurrent grant "means a grant other than a non-recurrent grant 
"residential rates" means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges levied on residential properties 
"restricted cash" means cash and cash equivalents, within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available for use other than for a purpose for which it 
is restricted, and includes cash to be used to fund capital works expenditure from the previous financial year 
"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash. 
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Other Information 
For the year ended 30 June 2023 
 
  BP 1. Basis of preparation 


 
Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report.  
The performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service 
performance and financial performance indicators and measures together with a description of 
the municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results.  This statement 
has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and Local 
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020. 
 
Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting 
bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements.  The other results are based 
on information drawn from Council information systems or from third parties (e.g., Australian 
Bureau of Statistics). 
 
The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the 
prescribed financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by Council’s 
strategic resource plan.  The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 
requires explanation of any material variations in the results contained in the performance 
statement.  Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure 
and explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds unless 
the variance is considered to be material because of its nature. 
 
The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by Council on 14 
June 2023 in its Budget and Financial Plan; and which forms part of the Council Plan.  The 
financial plan includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that were relevant 
at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long term.  Detailed 
information on the actual financial results is contained in the General-Purpose Financial 
Statements.  The budget and financial plan can be obtained by contacting Council. 
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Certification of the Performance Statement 
 


R18(1) 
R18(2) 


 


In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with 
the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 
2020. 


 


 


 


_________________________ 


Glenn Kallio 
Principal Accounting Officer 
Dated:  
 


 
In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the Pyrenees Shire Council for the year 


ended 30 June 2023 presents fairly the results of council’s performance in accordance with the 


Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020. 
 
The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results 
in relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity. 
 
At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars 
in the performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate. 
 
We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and 
Reporting) Regulations 2020 to certify this performance statement in its final form. 


 
 
 


_____________________________ 


Cr Ron Eason 
Mayor / Councillor 
Dated:  


 
 
 
_____________________________ 


Cr  
Councillor 
Dated:  
 
 
 
 


_____________________________ 


Jim Nolan 
Chief Executive Officer 
Dated:  
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Certification of Financial Statement 
 


In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government 


Act 2020, the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020, the Australian Accounting Standards and 


other mandatory professional reporting requirements. 


 


 


Glenn Kallio  B.Bus CPA 
Principal Accounting Officer 
Date : 26 September 2023 
Beaufort Shire Offices 
 


In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial transactions of the Pyrenees Shire 


Council for the year ended 30 June 2023 and the financial position of the Council as at that date. 


At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the financial 


statements to be misleading or inaccurate. 


We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 to 


certify the financial statements in their final form. 


 


Cr Damian Ferrari 


Councillor 


Date 26 September 2023 


Beaufort Shire Offices 


 


 


Cr Robert Vance 


Councillor 


Date 26 September 2023 


Beaufort Shire Offices 


 


 


 


Jim Nolan 


Chief Executive Officer 


Date 26 September 2023 


Beaufort Shire Offices 
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Comprehensive Income Statement 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2023 


 


Note 2023 2022


$'000 $'000


Income / Revenue


Rates and charges 3.1 12,809             12,429             


Statutory fees and fines 3.2 264                   192                   


User fees 3.3 917                   884                   


Grants - operating 3.4 10,901             9,610                


Grants - capital 3.4 4,857                4,215                


Contributions - monetary 3.5 158                   17                      


Net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 3.6 6                        117                   


Other income 3.7 724                   230                   


Total income / revenue 30,636             27,694             


Expenses


Employee costs 4.1 9,713                9,091                


Materials and services 4.2 9,438                8,424                


Depreciation 4.3 6,016                5,699                


Amortisation - right of use assets 4.4 13                      13                      


Bad and doubtful debts - allowances for impairment losses 4.5 6                        13                      


Borrowing costs 4.6 25                      -                    


Finance costs - leases 4.7 1                        1                        


Other expenses 4.8 263                   298                   


Total expenses 25,475             23,539             


Surplus for the year 5,161                4,155                


Other comprehensive income


Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future


periods


Net asset revaluation increment 6.1 22,674             12,965             


Total other comprehensive income 22,674             12,965             


Total comprehensive result 27,835             17,120             


The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  
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Balance Sheet 
As at 30 June 2023 


Note 2023 2022


$'000 $'000


Assets


Current assets


Cash and cash equivalents 5.1 (a)                19,293                15,761 


Trade and other receivables 5.1 (c)                   1,838                   1,106 


Inventories 5.2 (a)                        14                        10 


Prepayments 5.2 (b)                        59                        15 


Other assets 5.2 (b)                      100                        90 


Total current assets                21,304                16,982 


Non-current assets


Trade and other receivables 5.1 (c)                        14                        21 


Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.1              282,391              257,149 


Right-of-use assets                          2                        15 


Total non-current assets              282,407              257,185 


Total assets              303,711              274,167 


Liabilities


Current liabilities


Trade and other payables 5.3 (a)                   2,783                   1,944 


Trust funds and deposits 5.3 (b)                      259                      188 


Unearned income/revenue 5.3 (c)                   2,814                   2,557 


Provisions 5.4                   2,321                   2,382 


Interest-bearing liabilities 5.5                      121                         -   


Lease liabilities                          3                        15 


Total current liabilities                  8,301                  7,086 


Non-current liabilities


Provisions 5.4                      173                      118 


Interest-bearing liabilities 5.5                      443                         -   


Lease liabilities                         -                            3 


Total non-current liabilities                      616                      121 


Total liabilities                  8,917                  7,207 


Net assets              294,794              266,960 


Equity


Accumulated surplus              103,517                98,356 


Reserves 9.1              191,277              168,604 


Total Equity              294,794              266,960 


The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  
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Statement of Changes in Equity 


For the Year Ended 30 June 2022 


Accumulated Revaluation Other


Total Surplus Reserve Reserves


2023 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Balance at beginning of the financial year 266,960                    98,356                      168,595                    9                                


Surplus for the year 5,161                        5,161                        -                            -                            


Net asset revaluation increment 9.1 22,674                      -                            22,674                      -                            


Transfers from (to) other reserves 9.1 (1)                              -                            (1)                              -                            


294,794                    103,517                    191,268                    9                                


Balance at end of the financial year 294,794                   103,517                   191,268                   9                                


Accumulated Revaluation Other


Total Surplus Reserve Reserves


2022 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Balance at beginning of the financial year 249,840                    94,201                      155,630                    9                                


Surplus for the year 4,155                        4,155                        -                            -                            


Net asset revaluation increment 9.1 12,965                      -                            12,965                      -                            


Transfers from (to) other reserves 9.1 -                            -                            -                            -                            


266,960                    98,356                      168,595                    9                                


Balance at end of the financial year 266,960                   98,356                      168,595                   9                                


Note


The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Cash Flows 


For the Year Ended 30 June 2022 


2023 2022


Inflows/ Inflows/


(Outflows) (Outflows)


Note $'000 $'000


Cash flows from operating activities


Rates and charges 12,263               12,317               


Statutory fees and fines 264                    192                    


User fees 824                    983                    


Grants - operating 11,158               9,577                 


Grants - capital 4,857                 4,215                 


Contributions - monetary 158                    17                      


Interest received 275                    25                      


Other receipts  494                    205                    


Net GST refund/payment 1,033                 (100)                   


Employee costs (9,719)               (9,181)               


Materials and services (9,875)               (8,852)               


Net Trust funds and deposits received/(repaid) 71                      (186)                   


Other payments (289)                   (298)                   


Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 9.2 11,513              8,914                 


Cash flows from investing activities


Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.1 (8,544)               (9,303)               


Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 40                      3,211                 


Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (8,504)               (6,092)               


Cash flows from financing activities     


Finance costs (25)                     -                     


Proceeds from borrowings 650                    -                     


Repayment of borrowings (86)                     -                     


Interest paid - lease liability (1)                       (1)                       


Repayment of lease liabilities (15)                     (13)                     


Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 523                    (14)                     


Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,532                 2,808                 


Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 15,761               12,953               


Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year     19,293              15,761              


Financing arrangements 5.6


The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.   
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Statement of Capital Works 


For the Year Ended 30 June 2022 


 


Note 2023 2022


$'000 $'000


Property


Land 24                      654                    


Total land 24                      654                    


Buildings 543                    1,886                 


Total buildings 543                    1,886                 


Total property 567                    2,540                 


Plant and equipment


Plant, machinery and equipment 387                    911                    


Fixtures, fittings and furniture 9                        140                    


Computers and telecommunications 175                    173                    


Library books 17                      41                      


Total plant and equipment 588                    1,265                 


Infrastructure


Roads 2,657                 3,396                 


Bridges 2,276                 769                    


Footpaths and cycleways 515                    534                    


Drainage 652                    292                    


Other infrastructure 1,360                 507                    


Total infrastructure 7,460                 5,498                 


Total capital works expenditure 8,615                 9,303                 


Represented by:


New asset expenditure 1,633                 2,862                 


Asset renewal expenditure 5,550                 5,875                 


Asset expansion expenditure -                     139                    


Asset upgrade expenditure 1,432                 427                    


Total capital works expenditure 8,615                 9,303                 


The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  
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Note 1 Overview 


Introduction 


 The Pyrenees Shire Council was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on 23 September 1994 


and is a body corporate.  The Council's main office is located at 5 Lawrence Street Beaufort. 


Statement of Compliance 


 These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income 


Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital 


Works, and Notes accompanying these financial statements.  The general purpose financial report complies 


with the Australian Accounting Standards (AAS), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian 


Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act 2020, and the Local Government (Planning and 


Reporting) Regulations 2020. 


 The Council is a not-for-profit entity and therefore applies the additional AUS paragraphs applicable to a not-


for-profit entity under the Australian Accounting Standards. 


Significant accounting policies 


a) Basis of accounting 


Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial 


information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the 


underlying transactions or other events is reported. Accounting policies applied are disclosed in sections 


where the related balance or financial statement matter is disclosed. 


 


The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, except for 


the cash flow information, whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income, and expenses are recognised in the 


reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid. 


 


The financial statements are based on the historical cost convention unless a different measurement basis is 


specifically disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 


 


The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The financial statements are in 


Australian dollars. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest 


thousand dollars unless otherwise specified. Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and the sum of 


components are due to rounding. 


 


Judgements, estimates, and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and 


liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.  The estimates and associated judgements are 


based on professional judgement derived from historical experience and various other factors that are 


believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.  Actual results may differ from these estimates. 


 


Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future 


periods that are affected by the revision.  Judgements and assumptions made by management in the 


application of AAS's that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to: 


• the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant, and equipment (refer to Note 6.1) 


• the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant, and equipment (refer to Note 


6.1) 
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• the determination of employee provisions (refer to Note 5.4) 


• the determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific to determine whether 


an arrangement is within the scope of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers or AASB 


1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (refer to Note 3) 


• the determination, in accordance with AASB 16 Leases of the lease term, the estimation of the 


discount rate when not implicit in the lease and whether an arrangement is in substance short-term 


or low value (refer to Note 5.8) 


• other areas requiring judgements. 


  Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year.  Where 


appropriate, comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure 


has been made of any material changes to comparatives. 


b) Goods and Service Tax (GST) 


 Income and expenses are recognised net of the amount of associated GST. Receivables and payables are 


stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or 


payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet. 


 


c) Rounding 


 Amounts in the Financial Report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars unless otherwise stated. 


Some figures in the financial statement may not equate due to rounding. 


 


d) Impact of Covid-19 


During 2022-23 the COVID-19 pandemic ceased to impact on Council's operations.   
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Note 2 Analysis of our results 


Note 2.1 Performance against budget 


  The performance against budget notes compares Council’s financial plan, expressed through its annual 


budget, with actual performance.  The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 


requires explanation of any material variances. Council has adopted a that an explanation is warranted 


only when both a +/- 10 percent and $250,000 movement has occured.  Explanations have not been 


provided for variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is considered to be material 


because of its nature. 


  These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local 


Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020. 


 


Note 2.1.1 Income / Revenue and expenditure 


Budget Actual Variance Variance


2023 2023


$'000 $'000 $'000 % Ref


Income / Revenue


Rates and charges 12,818          12,809          (9)                  0%


Statutory fees and fines 248               264               16                 6%


User fees 866               917               51                 6%


Grants - operating 7,321            10,901          3,580            49% 1


Grants - capital 3,805            4,857            1,052            28% 2


Contributions - monetary -                    158               158               100%


-                    
6                    6                    100%


Other income 120               724               604               503% 3


Total income / revenue 25,178          30,636          5,458            22%


Expenses


Employee costs 9,382            9,713            (331)              -4%


Materials and services 8,111            9,438            (1,327)          -16% 4


Depreciation 6,697            6,016            681               10% 5


13                 13                 -                    0%


31                 6                    25                 81%


Borrowing costs 16                 25                 (9)                  -56%


6                    1                    5                    83%


Other expenses 268               263               5                    2%


Total expenses 24,524          25,475          (951)              -4%


Surplus for the year 654               5,161            4,507            689%


Net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and 


equipment


Finance costs - leases


Amortisation - right of use assets


Bad and doubtful debts - allowances for impairment losses
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(i) Explanation of material variations 


1 Grants – operating 


 The significant increase in operating grants for 2022-23 is attributed to the receipt of the 2023-24 Federal 


Assistance grant in 2022-23. 


2 Grants – capital 


Council recognised $1.298 million for flood recovery grants in relation to the October 2022 floods which were 


not budgeted for. 


3 Other income 


Council has received significant amounts in excess of budget for the following items: 


• Interest on investments – Combination of higher interest rates and improved investment strategy has 


improved the level of income received. 


• Higher levels of Workcover reimbursements received for the year. 


• Funds received for insurance claims relating to the flood event in October 2022. 


4  Materials and services 


Council incurred additional costs associated with the following: 


• Council approved funds to be carried over from the 2021-22 year to 2022-23 to complete unfinished 


projects. 


• Additional costs were incurred in the waste collection service due to rising fuel costs. 


• Southern Wimmera and Northeast Pyrenees Water Supply Feasibility Study was a project that was 


funded from capital works with the costs incurred in the operating statement. 


• Significant costs were incurred in the recovery efforts of the October 2022 floods.  The majority of 


these funds will be covered by grants from government. 


5 Depreciation 


The depreciation for the 2022-23 year has increased due to the revaluation of assets. 


 


 


 







Pyrenees Shire Council  
Financial Report  


15 
 


2.1.2 Capital works


Budget Actual Variance Variance


2023 2023


$'000 $'000 $'000 % Ref


Property


Land -                24                 24                 100%


Total land -                24                 24                 100%


Buildings 280               543               263               94% 1


Total buildings 280               543               263               94%


Total property 280               567               287               103%


Plant and equipment


Plant, machinery and equipment 777               387               (390)             -50% 2


Fixtures, fittings and furniture 23                 9                   (14)                -61%


Computers and telecommunications 152               175               23                 15%


Library books 24                 17                 (7)                  -29%


Total plant and equipment 976               588               (388)             -40%


Infrastructure


Roads 3,373           2,657           (716)             -21% 3


Bridges 646               2,276           1,630           252% 4


Footpaths and cycleways 878               515               (363)             -41% 5


Drainage 779               652               (127)             -16%


Other infrastructure 795               1,360           565               71% 6


Total infrastructure 6,471           7,460           989               15%


Total capital works expenditure 7,727           8,615           888               11%


Represented by:


New asset expenditure 956               1,633           677               71% 7          


Asset renewal expenditure 5,305           5,550           245               5%


Asset upgrade expenditure 1,466           1,432           (34)                -2%


Total capital works expenditure 7,727           8,615           888               11%


 


 


  







Pyrenees Shire Council  
Financial Report  


16 
 


 


(i) Explanation of material variations 


The majority of the material variations within capital works is a result of funds carried forward from 2021-22 to the 


2022-23 financial year to complete projects that had not been completed in the 2021-22 financial year 


1 Buildings 


The variation is a result of carryover funds.  In this category the carryover funds related to the completion of 


the Lexton Community Facility, funds totalling $287k was spent on this project which were funded from 


surplus funds from 2021-22. 


 


2 Plant, machinery and equipment 


The reduction in expenditure in the purchase of plant directly relates to the downturn in the supply of plant.  A 


number of orders have been issued however there is up to a two year delay in the receipt of plant from 


suppliers.   


 


3 Roads 


The reduction in expenditure related to three factors; 


• Council reallocated resource to the cleanup resulting from the October 2022 flood event, 


• Wetter than average weather conditions delayed the completion of a number of projects. 


• Continued difficulties in obtaining contractors have delayed the completion of a number of projects. 


 


4 Bridges 


The additional funds relate to unfinished projects in 2021-22 being carried over to the 2022-23 financial year.  


The projects impacted were: 


• Bridge 139 Raglan Elmhurst Rd  


• Bridge 32 Carngham-Streatham Rd 


• Bridge 11- Beaufort Carngham Rd 


 


5 Footpaths and cycleways 


The reduction in expenditure relate to projects that remain works in progress as at June 30: 


• Beaufort footpath construction 


• Activate Avoca Streetscape 


 


6 Other infrastructure 


The increase in expenditure compared to budget has been impacted by funds carried forward from the 


2021/22 financial year to complete a number of projects including: 


• Waste Strategy Transfer Station Upgrades  


• Beaufort Walkability Project - Stage 2 Exp 


 


7 New asset  


8 The increase in expenditure compared to budget has been impacted by funds carried forward from the 


2021/22 financial year to complete a number of projects including: 


• Lexton Community Hub 


• Recreation projects 
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Note 2.2  Analysis of Council results by program. 


  Council delivers its functions and activities through the following programs: 


  2.2.1 People and Organisation Development 


    Prepare for emergencies and ensure community safety. 


    Support a vibrant community art, culture, and heritage environment. 


    Improve accessibility and inclusivity. 


    Promote health, wellbeing, engagement, and connection. 


    Improve social outcomes. 


 


    Place 


    Sustain and enhance unique character of our communities. 


    Support community sustainability. 


    Enhance liveability of our communities. 


    Promote responsible development. 


    Environment 


    Lead and promote environmental sustainability. 


    Foster a climate change resilient community. 


    Encourage community care of biodiversity and natural values. 


    Improve waste management to reduce landfill and reduce harm to the environment. 


    Economy 


    Support our local businesses and help to strengthen key industries. 


    Invest in road infrastructure to improve connectivity for commerce and community. 


    Advocate for and invest in assets and infrastructure to support industry sustainability.
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2.2.2 Summary of income / revenue, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program


 Income / 


Revenue 
 Expenses  Surplus 


 Grants 


included 


in income 


/ revenue 


 Total 


assets 


2023 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


People and Organisation Development 3,210         3,303        (93)           2,886      -          


Place 627            2,767        (2,140)      341         -          


Environment 2,523         2,396        127          152         -          


Economy 13,593       10,993      2,600       12,379    303,711  


Unattributed


Net Asset Sales 6                 -            6               -          -          


Rates Revenue 10,677       -            10,677     -          -          


Depreciation -             6,016        (6,016)      -          -          


30,636       25,475     5,161       15,758    303,711 


 Income / 


Revenue 
 Expenses  Surplus 


 Grants 


included 


in income 


/ revenue 


 Total 


assets 


2022 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


People and Organisation Development 1,958         2,883        (925)         1,339      -          


Place 726            2,830        (2,104)      508         -          


Environment 2,300         2,902        (602)         112         -          


Economy 12,181       9,225        2,956       11,866    274,167  


Unattributed -           


Net Asset Sales 117            -            117          -          -          


Rates Revenue 10,412       -            10,412     -          -          


Depreciation -             5,699        (5,699)      -          -          


27,694       23,539     4,155       13,825    274,167  
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of services 


3.1 Rates and Charges 


2023 2022


$'000 $'000


General rates                9,363                9,131 


Supplementary rates and rate adjustments                      14                      33 


Waste management charge                2,132                2,014 


Interest on rates and charges                      95                      97 


Revenue in lieu of rates                1,205                1,154 


Total rates and charges              12,809              12,429 


Council uses capital improved value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district.  


The CIV of a property is its market value (land and buildings). 


The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2022/23 was $4,506 million (2021/22 $3,110 million). 


The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January 


2022, and the valuation will be first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2022.


Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices.  Supplementary 


rates are recognised when a valuation and reassessment is completed and a supplementary rates notice issued.  


 


3.2 Statutory fees and fines


Environmental health fees                      31                        3 


Fines                      54                      24 


Town planning fees                   161                   145 


Land information certificates                      18                      20 


Total statutory fees and fines                   264                   192 


Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been 


provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.  
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2023 2022


$'000 $'000


3.3 User fees


Caravan park charges                   260                   235 


Home care charges                   225                   260 


Building charges                      51                      56 


Animal registration charges                   139                   133 


Rental and function charges                      35                      36 


Delivered meals charges                      30                      32 


Goldfields Recreation Reserve venue hire charges                      19                      25 


Waste disposal charges                        2                        3 


Resource and information centre charges                      43                      20 


Community transport charges                        6                        5 


Environmental Health                      29                      17 


Road opening permits                      14                      13 


Other charges                      64                      49 


Total user fees                   917                   884 


User fees by timing of revenue recognition


User fees recognised over time                   174                   169 


User fees recognised at a point in time                   743                   715 


Total user fees                   917                   884 


User fees are recognised as revenue at a point in time, or over time, when (or as) the performance obligation is 


satisfied.  Recognition is based on the underlying contractual terms.  


 


3.4 Funding from other levels of government


Grants were received in respect of the following :


Summary of grants


Commonwealth funded grants              12,542              12,442 


State Government funded grants                3,216                1,383 


Total grants received              15,758              13,825 


(a) Operating Grants


Recurrent - Commonwealth Government


Financial Assistance Grants                8,523                7,322 


General home care                   582                   661 


Recurrent - State Government


Aged Care Services                   179                   249 


Libraries                   123                   126 


Family & Childrens Services                   287                   312 


Other                   183                      34 


Total recurrent operating grants                9,877                8,704 
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2023 2022


Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government $'000 $'000


Lexton Fire - 20th December 2019 Reimbursement                       -                      (95)


Drought Relief Funding                       -                     304 


Bushfire Support Inc (Commonwealth)                       -                     217 


Kick Starting Events in Pyrenees Grant                       -                        30 


Non-recurrent - State Government


Rural Roads                      57                       -   


Elder Abuse Prevention Strategy                      55                       -   


Rapid Antigen Test Program                      90                       -   


Early years Workforce Development                      30                       -   


Community Recovery Officer                      36 


Avoca War Memorial                       -                        22 


Stockyard Hill & Lake Goldsmith avenue of honour maintenance                       -                        11 


Avoca Oval Playing Surface                       -                          4 


Jobs Victoria Fund                        4                      18 


Evaluating Transport Connections in the Pyrenees Project                       -                        12 


Youth Engagement Project                      47                      23 


Emergency Planning Process                   120                      13 


Skipton Hospital Straw Heating Project                       -                        59 


Business Concierge & Hospitality Program                      41                      78 


Transition Plan Development                      77                      30 


Roadside Weeds & Pest Management                      61                      61 


Avoca Digital Hub                      29                      61 


Beaufort New Practice Nets & Storage Shed                       -                        16 


Community Activation & Social Isolation                      56                       -   


Southern Wimmera and Northeast Pyrenees Water Supply Feasibility Study                   300                       -   


Covid-19 Emergency Support                      15                      31 


Premier Reading Challenge                        6                       -   


Miscellaneous                       -                        11 


Total non-recurrent operating grants                1,024                   906 


Total operating grants              10,901                9,610 
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2023 2022


(b) Capital Grants $'000 $'000


Recurrent - Commonwealth Government


Roads to recovery                1,367                1,076 


Total recurrent capital grants                1,367                1,076 


Non-recurrent - Commonwealth Government


Local Roads and Community Infrastructure Program                1,829                1,576 


Agrilinks - Bridge 110 on the Moonambel Warrenmang Road                       -                     311 


BRP - Bridge 139 Raglan Elmhurst Rd                       -                     198 


Bridge 32 - Carngham Streatham road                   241                   161 


Lexton Community Facility Federal Grant                       -                     681 


Non-recurrent - State Government


Lexton Community Facility                      30                       -   


Pyrenees Mobile Library Bus Project State Grant3                       -                        11 


Avoca Pool SV Pools Grant                       -                        12 


Flood Event October 2022                1,298                       -   


Beaufort Lake Boating and Fishing Platforms                       -                        70 


COVID Outdoor Eating & Dining Project                      92                      11 


COVID Safe Outdoor Activation Project 2021                       -                     108 


Total non-recurrent capital grants                3,490                3,139 


Total capital grants                4,857                4,215  


 


(c) Recognition of grant income 


Before recognising funding from government grants as revenue the Council assesses whether there is a contract that is 


enforceable and has sufficiently specific performance obligations in accordance with AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts 


with Customers. When both these conditions are satisfied, the Council: 


• identifies each performance obligation relating to revenue under the contract/agreement. 


• determines the transaction price. 


• recognises a contract liability for its obligations under the agreement. 


• recognises revenue as it satisfies its performance obligations, at the time or over time when services are 


rendered. 


Where the contract is not enforceable and/or does not have sufficiently specific performance obligations, the Council 


applies AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities. 


Grant revenue with sufficiently specific performance obligations is recognised over time as the performance obligations 


specified in the underlying agreement are met. Where performance obligations are not sufficiently specific, grants are 


recognised on the earlier of receipt or when an unconditional right to receipt has been established.  Grants relating to 


capital projects are generally recognised progressively as the capital project is completed.  The following table provides 


a summary of the accounting framework under which grants are recognised. 
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2023 2022


 $'000  $'000 


Income recognised under AASB 1058 Income for Not-for-Profit Entities


General Purpose                8,523                7,448 


Specific purpose grants to acquire non-financial assets                4,857                4,215 


Other specific purose grants                   270                       -   


Revenue recongnised under AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers


Specific purpose grants                2,108                2,162 


             15,758              13,825  


 


(d) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific


manner


Operating


Balance at start of year                   753                1,077 


Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date                   927                   135 


Received in prior years and spent during the financial year                  (444)                  (459)


Balance at year end                1,236                   753 


Capital


Balance at start of year                1,804                1,513 


Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date                   868                1,571 


Received in prior years and spent during the financial year              (1,094)              (1,280)


Balance at year end                1,578                1,804  


Unspent grants are determined and disclosed on a cash basis. 
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2023 2022


3.5 Contributions - monetary $'000 $'000


Monetary                   158                      17 


Total contributions                   158                      17 


 


Monetary contributions are recognised as revenue at their fair value when Council obtains control over the contributed 


asset.   


3.6 Net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


Proceeds of sale                      36                3,211 


Written down value of assets disposed                    (30)              (3,094)


Total net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and


equipment
6                      117                  


The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.  


 


3.7 Other income


Interest                   298                      26 


Reimbursement - Workcover wages                      71                        6 


Reimbursement - State Revenue Office                      57                      45 


Private Works                   121                   151 


Insurance Recovery                   159                       -   


Other                      18                        2 


Total other income                   724                   230 


Interest is recognised as it is earned.


Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised when 


Council gains control over the right to receive the income.
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Note 4 The cost of delivering services 


2023 2022


$'000 $'000


4.1 (a) Employee costs


Wages and salaries                8,669                7,850 


WorkCover                   144                   381 


Superannuation                   899                   836 


Fringe benefits tax                        1                      24 


Total employee costs                9,713                9,091 


(b) Superannuation


Council made contributions to the following funds:


Defined benefit fund


Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)                      88 107                  


                     88                   107 


Employer contributions payable at reporting date.                       -                         -   


Accumulation funds


Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 517                  499                  


Employer contributions -  other funds                   294 230                  


                  811                   729 


Employer contributions payable at reporting date.                      18                       -   


Refer to note 9.3 for further information relating to Council's superannuation obligations.  
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4.2 Materials and services 2023 2022


$'000 $'000


Contractors                4,074                4,053 


Consumables                2,013                1,764 


Contracted Service Delivery                1,239                   582 


Insurance                   444                   420 


Electricity and water                   174                   182 


Plant expenses                   396                   170 


Information technology                   339                   375 


Telecommunications                   146                   213 


Subscriptions and memberships                   112                      97 


Advertising                   111                   130 


Legal fees                    (12)                   127 


Stationery, postage, photocopying and printing                      64                      46 


Conferences and training                   130                      86 


Contributions and donations                   138                   143 


Valuations                      57                      18 


Fire services levy                      13                      18 


Total materials and services                9,438                8,424  


Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate. 


 


4.3 Depreciation 


Property                1,008                   971 


Plant and equipment                   813                   796 


Infrastructure                4,195                3,932 


Total depreciation                6,016                5,699 


Refer to note 6.1 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation and amortisation charges and accounting policy.  


 


4.4 Amortisation - Right of use assets


Printers                      13                      13 


Total Amortisation - Right of use assets                      13                      13  
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4.5 Bad and doubtful debts - allowance for impairment losses 2023 2022


$'000 $'000


General Debtors                        6                      13 


Total bad and doubtful debts - allowance for impairment losses                        6                      13 


Movement in allowance for impairment losses in respect of debtors


Balance at the beginning of the year (22)                  (22)                  


Balance at end of year (22)                  (22)                  


An allowance for impairment losses in respect of debtors is recognised based on an expected credit loss model.  


This model considers both historic and forward looking information in determining the level of impairment.
 


 


4.6 Borrowing costs


Interest - Borrowings                      25 -                       


Total borrowing costs                      25 -                       


Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where they are 


capitalised as part of a qualifying asset constructed by Council.
 


 


4.7 Finance Costs - Leases


Interest - Lease Liabilities                        1                        1 


Total finance costs                        1                        1  


 


4.8 Other expenses


Auditors' remuneration - VAGO - audit of the financial statements, 


performance statement and grant acquittals
42                    40                    


Auditors' remuneration - Internal Audit                      46                      43 


Councillors' allowances                   166                   202 


Internal audit committee                        4                        5 


Short term leases                        5                        8 


Total other expenses                   263                   298  
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Note 5 Our financial position 


2023 2022


5.1 Financial assets $'000 $'000


(a) Cash and cash equivalents


Cash on hand                        1                        1 


Cash at bank              19,292              15,760 


Total cash and cash equivalents              19,293              15,761 


 


 


Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments with original 


maturities of three months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 


Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date.  Term deposits are measured at original cost. Any 


unrealised gains and losses on holdings at balance date are recognised as either a revenue or expense.   


Other financial assets include term deposits and those with original maturity dates of three to 12 months are classified 


as current, whilst term deposits with maturity dates greater than 12 months are classified as non-current. 


(b) Trade and other receivables


Current


Statutory receivables


Rates debtors                 882                 337 


Special rate assessment                     6                     8 


Net GST receivable                 194                 120 


Non statutory receivables


Other debtors                 778                 663 


Provision for doubtful debts - other debtors                 (22)                 (22)


Total current trade and other receivables              1,838              1,106 


Non-current


Statutory receivables


Special rate scheme                   14                   21 


Total non-current trade and other receivables                   14                   21 


Total trade and other receivables              1,852              1,127  


 


Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is 


objective evidence that an impairment has occurred.  Long term receivables are carried at amortised cost using the 


effective interest rate method.  
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(c) Ageing of Receivables


2023 2022


$'000 $'000


Current (not yet due)                 284                 263 


Past due by up to 30 days                   15                     5 


Past due between 31 and 180 days                 420                   24 


Past due between 181 and 365 days                     1                 361 


Past due by more than 1 year                   58                   10 


Total trade and other receivables                 778                 663 


The ageing of the Council's trade and other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) that are not impaired was:
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5.2 Non-financial assets 2023 2022


(a) Inventories $'000 $'000


Inventories held for distribution                       14                       10 


Total inventories                       14                       10 


(b) Other assets


Prepayments                       59                       15 


Accrued income                     100                       90 


Total other assets                     159                     105 


Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of service 


potential.  All other inventories, including land held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net 


realisable value. Where inventories are acquired for no cost or nominal consideration, they are measured 


at current replacement cost at the date of acquisition.


 


 


 


5.3 Payables, trust funds and deposits and unearned income/revenue


(a) Trade and other payables


Current


Non-statutory payables


Trade payables                  2,258                     932 


Accrued expenses                     525                  1,012 


Total current trade and other payables                  2,783                  1,944 


(b) Trust funds and deposits


Current


Refundable deposits                     140                       84 


Fire services levy                        -                            5 


Retention amounts                     119                       99 


Total current trust funds and deposits                     259                     188 


(c) Unearned income/revenue


Grants received in advance - operating                  1,236                     845 


Grants received in advance - capital                  1,578                  1,712 


Total unearned income/revenue                  2,814                  2,557 
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Unearned income/revenue represents contract liabilities and reflect consideration received in advance from customers 


in respect of the delivery of specific services and/or the delivery of specific capital works.  Unearned income/revenue 


are derecognised and recorded as revenue when promised goods and services are transferred to the customer. Refer to 


Note 3. 


Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they are 


returned, transferred in accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited.  Trust funds that are forfeited, 


resulting in council gaining control of the funds, are to be recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit.  Refer to Note 3. 


Purpose and nature of items 


Fire Service Levy - Council is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the State Government. Council remits 


amounts received on a quarterly basis. Amounts disclosed here will be remitted to the state government in line with 


that process.   


Retention Amounts - Council has a contractual right to retain certain amounts until a contractor has met certain 


requirements or a related warrant or defect period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the 


contractual obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounts will be paid to the relevant contractor in line with 


Council's contractual obligations. 


 


5.4 Provisions 2023 2022


$'000 $'000


Balance at beginning of the financial year                  2,500                  2,589 


Additional provisions                     996                  1,238 


Amounts used                   (956)                (1,033)


Change in the discounted amount arising because of time


and the effect of any change in the discount rate (46)                    (294)                  


Balance at the end of the financial year                  2,494                  2,500 


Provisions - current 2,321                2,382                


Provisions - non-current 173                   118                    
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2023 2022


(a) Employee provisions $'000 $'000


Annual leave                     541                     464 


Long service leave                     146                     300 


                    687                     764 


Annual leave                     121                     199 


Long service leave                  1,513                  1,419 


                 1,634                  1,618 


Total current employee provisions                  2,321                  2,382 


Non-current 


Long service leave                     173                     118 


Total non-current employee provisions                     173                     118 


Current                  2,321                  2,382 


Non-current                     173                     118 


                 2,494                  2,500 Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions


Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months


Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:


Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months


 


 


The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting 


date. 


Annual leave 


A liability for annual leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits as a current liability because the Council 


does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability. Liabilities for annual leave are measured at: 


• nominal value if the Council expects to wholly settle the liability within 12 months 


• present value if the Council does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months. 


Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the 


provision for employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at the present value of the amounts expected to be paid 


when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 


Long service leave 


Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. Unconditional LSL is disclosed 


as a current liability as the Council does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement. Unconditional LSL is 


measured at nominal value if expected to be settled within 12 months or at present value if not expected to be settled 


within 12 months. Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is yet to reach a qualifying term of 


employment, is disclosed as a non-current liability and measured at present value. 


 


Key assumptions:


- discount rate 4.350% 3.850%


- index rate 4.063% 3.696%
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5.5 Interest-bearing liabilities 2023 2022


$'000 $'000


Current


Other borrowings - secured 121                   -                         


121                   -                         


Non-current


Other borrowings - secured 443                   -                         


443                   -                         


Total 564                   -                         


(a) The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:


Not later than one year 121                   -                         


Later than one year and not later than five years 443                   -                         


564                   -                         


Borrowings are secured  by all accounts and other rights, remedies and entitlements (whether arising 


under statute or otherwise) in respect of general rates and/or council rates (however described) which 


exist at any time (including the right to charge and collect any such rates)


 


Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing liabilities, net of transaction costs. 


The measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the Council has categorised its interest-


bearing liabilities as either financial liabilities designated at fair value through the profit and loss, or financial liabilities at 


amortised cost. Any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in net 


result over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method. 


The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing liabilities. The Council determines the 


classification of its interest bearing liabilities at initial recognition. 


 


2023 2022


5.6 Financing arrangements $'000 $'000


The Council has the following funding arrangements in place as at 30 June 2023


Credit card facilities                       75                       75 


Other facilities                        -                          -   


Total facilities                       75                       75 


Used facilities                        -                         75 


Unused facilities                       75                        -    
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5.7  Commitments 


(a) Commitments for expenditure


2023


Not later than 


1 year


Later than 1 


year and not 


later than 2 


years


Later than 2 


years and not 


later than 5 


years


Later than 5 


years Total


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Operating


Waste services                  1,141                  1,175                  1,210                        -                    3,526 


Beaufort Water Monitoring                       10                        -                          -                          -                         10 


Mobile Waste bins                       26                       27                       84                        -                       137 


Transfer station management                     499                     516                  1,660                        -                    2,675 


Cleaning services                       96                        -                          -                          -                         96 


Internal audit                       33                       25                       25                        -                         83 


Swimmng Pools                     352                        -                          -                          -                       352 


Municipal building surveyor                       98                        -                          -                          -                         98 


Environmental health                     199                        -                          -                          -                       199 


Beaufort Linear Master Plan                       77                        -                          -                          -                         77 


Total                  2,531                  1,743                  2,979                        -                    7,253 


The Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments are disclosed at their 


nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.
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Not later than 


1 year


Later than 1 


year and not 


later than 2 


years


Later than 2 


years and not 


later than 5 


years


Later than 5 


years Total


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Capital


Roads                     850                     850                  1,700                        -                    3,400 


Bridges                       80                        -                          -                          -                         80 


Concrete service Area                       16                        -                          -                          -                         16 


Beaufort Lake Shelter                     126                        -                          -                          -                       126 


Total                  1,072                     850                  1,700                        -                    3,622 
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2022


Not later than 


1 year


Later than 1 


year and not 


later than 2 


years


Later than 2 


years and not 


later than 5 


years


Later than 5 


years Total


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Operating


Waste services                  1,108                  1,141                  2,385                        -                    4,634 


Beaufort Water Monitoring                       11                       10                        -                          -                         21 


Mobile Waste bins                       25                       26                       82                       29                     162 


Transfer station management                     379                     499                  1,604                     573                  3,055 


Cleaning services                       96                       96                        -                          -                       192 


Internal audit                       18                        -                          -                          -                         18 


Swimmng Pools                     352                     352                        -                          -                       704 


Municipal building surveyor                       95                       98                        -                          -                       193 


Environmental health                     199                     199                        -                          -                       398 


Total                  2,283                  2,421                  4,071                     602                  9,377 


Capital


Roads                     524                        -                          -                          -                       524 


Bridges                  2,281                       80                  2,361 


Total                  2,805                       80                        -                          -                    2,885 


Prior year commitments have been amended due to errors found in the figures.  
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(b) Operating lease receivables


Operating lease receivables


2023 2022


$'000 $'000


Not later than one year                          3                       25 


                         3                       25 


The Council has entered into commercial property leases on its property, consisting of surplus freehold office complexes. These properties held under 


operating leases have remaining non-cancellable lease terms of less than 1 year. 


Future undiscounted minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
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Note 6 Assets we manage 


6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


Summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment


Carrying 


amount


30 June 2022 Additions Revaluation Impairment Depreciation Disposal Write-off Transfers


Carrying 


amount


30 June 2023


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Property            47,152                 418              6,487                    -              (1,009)                    -                      -                3,643            56,691 


Plant and equipment              5,179                 587                    -                      -                 (813)                 (31)                    -                     86              5,008 


Infrastructure         199,799              5,027            22,303            (6,116)            (4,194)                    -                      -                   585         217,404 


Work in progress              5,019              2,583                    -                      -                      -                      -                      -              (4,314)              3,288 


        257,149              8,615           28,790            (6,116)            (6,016)                 (31)                    -                      -           282,391 


Summary of Work in Progress  Opening 


WIP 


 Additions  Write-off  Transfers  Closing WIP 


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


Infrastructure              1,071              2,433                    -                 (585)              2,919 


Plant and equipment                   86                     1                    -                   (86)                     1 


Property              3,862                 149                    -              (3,643)                 368 


Total              5,019              2,583                    -              (4,314)              3,288 
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(a) Property


 Land - 


specialised 


 Land 


improvements 


 Total Land & 


Land 


Improvements 


 Buildings - 


specialised 


 Work In 


Progress 


 Total 


Property 


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


At fair value 1 July 2022 10,922          3,496                  14,418                 33,114          3,862            51,394            


Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2022 -                (46)                      (46)                       (334)              -                (380)                 


10,922          3,450                  14,372                 32,780          3,862            51,014            


Movements in fair value


Additions 13                 -                      13                         405               149               567                  


Revaluation 1,748            92                        1,840                   3,258            -                5,098               


Transfers -                -                      -                       3,643            (3,643)           -                   


1,761            92                        1,853                   7,306            (3,494)           5,665               


Movements in accumulated depreciation


Depreciation and amortisation -                (213)                    (213)                     (796)              -                (1,009)             


Revaluation increments/decrements -                259                      259                      1,130            -                1,389               


-                46                        46                         334               -                380                  


At fair value 30 June 2023 12,683          3,588                  16,271                 40,420          368               57,059            


Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2023 -                -                      -                       -                -                -                   


Carrying amount 12,683          3,588                  16,271                 40,420          368               57,059             
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(b) Plant and Equipment
Plant 


machinery 


and 


equipment


Fixtures fittings 


and furniture


Computers and 


telecomms


Library 


books


 Work In 


Progress 


Total plant 


and 


equipment


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


At fair value 1 July 2022 7,416            563                      646                      501               86                 9,212               


Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2022 (2,942)           (336)                    (331)                     (338)              -                (3,947)             


4,474            227                      315                      163               86                 5,265               


Movements in fair value


Additions 388               7                          175                      17                 1                    588                  


Disposal (51)                -                      (8)                         -                -                (59)                   


Transfers -                25                        61                         -                (86)                -                   


337               32                        228                      17                 (85)                529                  


Depreciation and amortisation (637)              (28)                      (121)                     (27)                -                (813)                 


Accumulated depreciation of disposals 21                 -                      7                           -                -                28                    


(616)              (28)                      (114)                     (27)                -                (785)                 


At fair value 30 June 2023 7,753            595                      874                      518               1                    9,741               


Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2023 (3,558)           (364)                    (445)                     (365)              -                (4,732)             


 Carrying amount 4,195            231                      429                      153               1                    5,009               


Movements in accumulated depreciation


 


  







Pyrenees Shire Council  
Financial Report  


41 
 


 


 


(c) Infrastructure


Bridges
Culverts; Pipes 


& Pits


Footpaths and 


Cycleways


Kerb and 


Channel
Roads


Other 


Infrastructure


 Work In 


Progress 


 Total 


Infrastructure 


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


At fair value 1 July 2022 28,521          21,441                2,094                   4,019            150,955        2,865               1,071            210,966          


Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2022 (125)              (7,920)                 (12)                       (28)                (1,231)           (780)                 -                (10,096)           


28,396          13,521                2,082                   3,991            149,724        2,085               1,071            200,870          


Movements in fair value


Additions 864               601                      504                      8                    2,644            406                  2,433            7,460              


Revaluation 2,572            (5,566)                 56                         321               11,560          (773)                 -                8,170              


Transfers 99                 15                        19                         -                -                452                  (585)              -                  


Impairment losses recognised in asset revaluation 


reserve (592)              (1,410)                 -                       -                (4,114)           -                   -                (6,116)             


2,943            (6,360)                 579                      329               10,090          85                    1,848            9,514              


Movements in accumulated depreciation


Depreciation and amortisation (373)              (204)                    (73)                       (86)                (3,236)           (222)                 -                (4,194)             


Revaluation increments/decrements 498               8,119                  76                         114               4,390            936                  -                14,133            


125               7,915                  3                           28                 1,154            714                  -                9,939              


At fair value 30 June 2023 31,464          15,081                2,673                   4,348            161,045        2,950               2,919            220,480          


Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2023 -                (5)                         (9)                         -                (77)                (66)                   -                (157)                


Carrying amount 31,464          15,076                2,664                   4,348            160,968       2,884               2,919            220,323           
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Acquisition 


The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as 


consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the acquisition.  Fair value is the price 


that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market 


participants at the measurement date. 


Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs 


incurred during construction, and an appropriate share of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads. 


In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within an applicable asset 


class and unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year. 


Depreciation 


Period
Threshold Limit


Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation periods $'000


Land & land improvements


   land                          -                            -   


   land improvements 15 - 60 years                         10 


Buildings


   buildings 20 - 150 years                         10 


Plant and Equipment


   plant, machinery and equipment 5 -20 years                           5 


   computers & Telecommunications 3 - 10 years                           5 


   fixtures, fittings, and furniture 3 - 20 years                           5 


   library Collection 10 years


Infrastructure


sealed roads formation 100 years                         10 


unsealed roads formation 100 years                         10 


sealed roads pavement 20 - 110 years                         10 


unsealed roads pavement 30 years                         10 


footpaths and cycleways 53 years                           5 


kerb and channel 15 - 85 years                           5 


drainage 100 years                           5 


bridges 128 - 130 years                         10 


other structure 10 - 25 years                           5  
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Land under roads 


Council has not recognised land under roads in 2022/23.   


Depreciation and amortisation 


Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other assets having limited useful lives are 


systematically depreciated over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service 


potential embodied in those assets.  Estimates of remaining useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis 


with major asset classes reassessed annually.  Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually. 


Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are 


assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component. 


Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year. 


Depreciation periods used are listed above and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated. 


Repairs and maintenance 


Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation 


threshold the cost is capitalised and depreciated.  The carrying value of the replaced asset is expensed. 


 


Valuation of land and buildings 


Valuation of land and buildings were undertaken by a qualified independent valuer Mr Chris Barrett BSc, MBA, AAPI 


Certified Practicing Valuer API Member No. 63083.  The valuation of land and buildings is at fair value, being market 


value based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land planning provisions as at 1 January 2022.  Where land 


use is restricted through existing planning provisions the valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation.  This adjustment 


is an unobservable input in the valuation.  The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.   


Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or unserviced) 


characteristics, access rights and private interests of other parties and entitlements of infrastructure assets and services.  


This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation.  The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income 


statement. 


Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land will have a significant impact on the fair value of these 


assets. 


.   
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The date and type of the current valuation is detailed in the following table.  An indexed based revaluation was 


conducted in the current year, this valuation was based on: 


• Specialised land The percentage increase of land valuation of the Council for non rateable land 


provided by the Council’s valuer to the Valuer General. 


• Specialised buildings Australian Bureau of Statistics, Producer Price Indexes, Australia June 2023 for 


building construction. 


A full revaluation of these assets will be conducted in 2025/26. 


Details of the Council’s land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2023 are as 


follows: 


Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Date of Valuation Type of Valuation


$'000 $'000 $'000


Specialised land -                -                12,683          1/2023 Indexed


Land improvements -                -                3,588            6/2023 Indexed


Specialised buildings -                -                40,420          6/2023 Indexed


Total -                -                56,691           


 


Valuation of infrastructure 


Valuation of bridge, footpath and cycleway, kerb and channel, road pavement, road formation and sealed surface assets 


has been determined in accordance with an independent valuation undertaken by Mr Peter Moloney, Dip. C.E., MIE 


Australia as at 31 December 2021. 


An index based revaluation was conducted in the current year, this valuation was based on Australian Bureau of 


Statistics, Producer Price Indexes, Australia June 2023.  The following table provides details of the indexes: 


 


Index


Roads 11.13%


Bridges 11.13%


Footpaths and cycleways 8.18%


Culverts; Pipes & Pits 20.05%


Kerb & Channel 11.13%


Other infrastructure 11.13%  


 


A full revaluation of these assets will be conducted in 2025/26. 


Valuation of major drainage assets has been determined in accordance with a valuation undertaken by Council's 


Manager of Assets as at December 2018. 


The date of the current valuation is detailed in the following table. 


The valuation is at fair value based on current replacement cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of 


valuation. 
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Details of the Council’s infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2023 are as follows: 


Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Date of Valuation Type of Valuation


$'000 $'000 $'000


Roads                    -                      -           160,968 6/2023 Indexed


Bridges                    -                      -              31,464 6/2023 Indexed


Footpaths and cycleways                    -                      -                2,664 6/2023 Indexed


Culverts; Pipes & Pits                    -                      -              15,076 6/2023 Indexed


Kerb & Channel              4,348 6/2023 Indexed


Other infrastructure                    -                      -                2,884 6/2023 Indexed


Total                    -                      -           217,404  


 


Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations 


Specialised land and land under roads is valued using a market based direct comparison technique.  Significant 


unobservable inputs include the extent and impact of restriction of use and the market cost of land per square metre.  


The extent and impact of restrictions on use varies and results in a reduction to surrounding land values between 0% 


and 90%.  The market value of land varies significantly depending on the location of the land and the current market 


conditions.  Currently land values range between $1 and $309 per square metre.   


Specialised buildings are valued using a current replacement cost technique.  Significant unobservable inputs include 


the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of buildings.  Current replacement costs are calculated on a 


square metre basis and ranges from $160 to $5,203 per square metre.  The remaining useful lives of buildings are 


determined on the basis of the current condition of buildings and vary from 28 years to 30 years.  Replacement cost is 


sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation.  Useful 


lives of buildings are sensitive to changes in expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful 


lives of buildings. 


 


Infrastructure assets are valued based on the current replacement cost.   Significant unobservable inputs include the 


current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure.  The remaining useful lives of infrastructure assets 


are determined on the basis of the current condition of the asset and vary from 1 years to 128 years.  Replacement cost 


is sensitive to changes in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation.  


Useful lives of infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or 


extend the useful lives of infrastructure assets. 


2023 2022


Reconciliation of specialised land $'000 $'000


Recreation 6,817                  5,876                  


Industry 2,550                  2,187                  


Tourism 322                     278                     


Waste Management 974                     840                     


Children's services 215                     185                     


Roads 1,623                  1,399                  


Administration 182                     157                     


Total specialised land 12,683               10,922                
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6.2 Investments in associates, joint arrangements, and subsidiaries 


 Council does not have any investments in associates, joint arrangements, or subsidiaries. 


 Committees of management 


 All entities controlled by Council that have material revenues, expenses, assets, or liabilities, such as committees of 


management, have been included in this financial report. Any transactions between these entities and Council have 


been eliminated in full. 


  







Pyrenees Shire Council  
Financial Report  


47 
 


 


Note 7 People and relationships 


7.1 Council and key management remuneration 


 (a) Related Parties 


 Parent entity 


Pyrenees Shire Council is the parent entity. 


 Subsidiaries and Associates 


As at 30 June 2023 Council does not have any interests in any subsidiaries and/or associates. 


 (b) Key Management Personnel 


 Key management personnel (KMP) are those people with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing, 


and controlling the activities of Pyrenees Shire Council. The Councillors, Chief Executive Officer and Directors are 


deemed KMP. 


 Councillors Councillor Ron Eason (Mayor) 


  Councillor David Clark 


  Councillor Robert Vance 


  Councillor Tanya Kehoe 


  Councillor Damien Ferrari 


  Jim Nolan – Chief Executive Officer 


  Kathy Bramwell – Director – Corporate and Community Services 


  Douglas Gowans – Director – Assets and Development 


 


2023 2022


No. No.


Total Number of Councillors 5                    5                    


Total of Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel 3                    3                    


Total Number of Key Management Personnel 8                    8                     


 


(c) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel 


Remuneration comprises employee benefits including all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided by Council, or 


on behalf of the Council, in exchange for services rendered. Remuneration of Key Management Personnel and Other 


senior staff is disclosed in the following categories. 


Short-term employee benefits include amounts such as wages, salaries, annual leave or sick leave that are usually paid 


or payable on a regular basis, as well as non-monetary benefits such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or 


services. 


Other long-term employee benefits include long service leave, other long service benefits or deferred compensation. 


Post-employment benefits include pensions, and other retirement benefits paid or payable on a discrete basis when 


employment has ceased. 


Termination benefits include termination of employment payments, such as severance packages. 
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2023 2022


$ $


Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:


Short-term benefits 751               755               


Other long-term benefits 41                 37                 


Post employment benefits 55                 53                 


Total 847               845                


 


2023 2022
No. No.


1                    -                


3                    -                


-                2                    


-                2                    


$50,000 - $59,999 -                1                    


$70,000 - $79,999 1                    -                


$180,000 - $189,999 -                1                    


$200,000 - $209,999 1                    -                


-                1                    


1                    1                    


1                    -                


8                    8                    


The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration 


from Council and any related entities, fall within the following bands:


$20,000 - $29,999


$30,000 - $39,999


$40,000 - $49,999


$250,000 - $259,999


$210,000 - $219,999


$10,000 - $18,998


$230,000 - $239,999
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(d) Remuneration of other senior staff 


 Other senior staff are officers of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, whose total remuneration 


exceeds $160,000 and who report directly to a member of the KMP. 


 Pyrenees Shire Council have no other senior staff as defined above. 


 


 


2023 2022


7.2 Related party disclosure $'000 $'000


Employee remuneration under normal employment terms 79                 -                


79                 -                


(a) Transactions with related parties 


During the period Council entered into the following transactions with 


related parties.
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties 


 8.1 Contingent assets and liabilities 


 Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed and if 


quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST 


receivable or payable, respectively. 


(a) Contingent assets 


Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the 


occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.  


At balance date the Council are not aware of any contingent assets.    


(b) Contingent liabilities 


Contingent liabilities are: 


• possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence 


or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council; or 


• present obligations that arise from past events but are not recognised because: 


• it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 


obligation; or 


• the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 


 Superannuation 


 Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make 


additional contributions to the scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined below.   As a result 


of the volatility in financial markets the likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exists. 


 Liability Mutual insurance 


 Council is a participant of the MAV Liability Mutual Insurance (LMI) Scheme. The LMI scheme provides public 


liability and professional indemnity insurance cover. The LMI scheme states that each participant will remain liable 


to make further contributions to the scheme in respect of any insurance year in which it was a participant to the 


extent of its participant’s share of any shortfall in the provision set aside in respect of that insurance year, and such 


liability will continue whether or not the participant remains a participant in future insurance years. 
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 MAV Workcare 


 Council was a participant of the MAV WorkCare Scheme. The MAV WorkCare Scheme provided workers 


compensation insurance. MAV WorkCare commenced business on 1 November 2017 and the last day the Scheme 


operated as a self-insurer was 30 June 2021. In accordance with the Workplace Injury Rehabilitation and 


Compensation Act 2013 , there is a six year liability period following the cessation of the Scheme (to 30 June 2027). 


During the liability period, adjustment payments may be required (or received). The determination of any 


adjustment payments is dependent upon revised actuarial assessments of the Scheme's tail claims liabilities as 


undertaken by Work Safe Victoria. If required, adjustments will occur at the 3-year and 6-year points during the 


liability period, and will affect participating members. 


 


 8.2 Change in accounting standards 


 Certain new Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 


the 30 June 2023 reporting period. Council assesses the impact of these new standards. As at 30 June 2023 there 


were no new accounting standards or interpretations issued by the AASB which are applicable for the year ending 


30 June 2024 that are expected to impact Council. 


  


 8.3 Financial instruments 


 (a) Objectives and policies 


 'The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables (excluding statutory 


receivables), payables (excluding statutory payables) and Bendigo Bank borrowings.  Details of the significant 


accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the 


basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and 


equity instrument is disclosed in the notes of the financial statements.   


 Risk management is carried out by senior management under policies approved by the Council. These policies 


include identification and analysis of the risk exposure to Council and appropriate procedures, controls, and risk 


minimisation. 


(b) Market risk 


Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of council financial instruments will fluctuate because 


of changes in market prices.  The Council's exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only 


insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk. 
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Interest rate risk 


Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the 


instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.  Council's interest rate liability risk arises primarily 


from borrowings from the Bendigo Bank at a fixed rate which exposes council to fair value interest rate risk.  Cash 


flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 


in market interest rates.  Council has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits 


that are at floating rates. 


Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 2020. 


Council manages interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures: 


• diversification of investment product; 


• monitoring of return on investment; and 


• benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget. 


There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies, and processes for 


managing interest rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period. 


Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's 


year end result. 


(c) Credit risk 


Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and 


cause Council to make a financial loss.  Council have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in the 


balance sheet.  Particularly significant areas of credit risk exist in relation to outstanding fees and fines as well as 


loans and receivables from sporting clubs and associations.  To help manage this risk: 


• council have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities council deal with; 


• council may require collateral where appropriate; and 


• council only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in 


council's investment policy. 


 Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government sectors. 


Credit risk associated with the council's financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is secured by a charge 


over the rateable property. 


 There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired. 


 Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when 


council provide a guarantee for another party.  Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 8.1(b). 


 'The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, 


net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial 


statements. Council does not hold any collateral. 
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 (d) Liquidity risk 


 Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of council's operational liquidity requirements it will not have 


sufficient funds to settle a transaction when required or will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may 


be unable to settle or recover a financial asset. 


 To help reduce these risks Council: 


• have a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be 


maintained; 


• have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place; 


• have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid 


instruments; 


• monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and 


• set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan 


principal repayments to rate revenue. 


 The Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed on the 


face of the balance sheet and is deemed insignificant based on prior periods' data and current assessment of risk. 


 There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing 


liquidity risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period. 


 With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms of trade.  


Details of the maturity profile for borrowings are disclosed at Note 5.5. 


 Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value. 


 (e) Sensitivity disclosure analysis 


 Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and 


experience of the financial markets, Council believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the 


next 12 months: 


• A parallel shift of + 2.0% and -2.0% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 4.10% as at 7 July 


2023. 


 These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor 


will they have a material impact on the results of Council's operations. 
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8.4 Fair value measurement 


 Fair value hierarchy 


Council's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy , Council's 


financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost. 


 Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting 


Standards. AASB 13 Fair value measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a 


definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across 


Australian Accounting Standards. 


 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 


within a fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 


measurement as a whole: 


 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities  


 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 


directly or indirectly observable; and 


 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 


unobservable. 


 For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 


nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 


 In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 


categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the 


end of each reporting period. 


 Revaluation 


Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, are 


measured at their fair value, being the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in 


an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  At balance date, the Council 


reviewed the carrying value of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure that each asset 


materially approximated its fair value. Where the carrying value materially differed from the fair value at balance 


date, the class of asset was revalued. 


 Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy 


will only occur if an external change in the restrictions or limitations of use of an asset result in changes to the 


permissible or practical highest and best use of the asset. In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of 


land, buildings, and infrastructure assets on a regular basis ranging from 3 to 5 years. The valuation is performed 


either by experienced council officers or independent experts. 
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Asset class


Revaluation 


frequency


Land 3 to 5 years


Land Improvements 3 to 5 years


Buildings 3 to 5 years


Roads 3 to 5 years


Bridges 3 to 5 years


Footpaths and cycleways 3 to 5 years


Drainage 3 to 5 years


Kerb and Channel 3 to 5 years


Other infrastructure 3 to 5 years


 


 


 Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve 


except to the extent that an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been 


recognised as an expense in which case the increment is recognised as revenue up to the amount of the expense. 


Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior increments are included in the asset 


revaluation reserve for that class of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the 


remaining increments. Within the same class of assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are 


offset. 


 


 Impairment of assets 


At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any 


indication that these assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, 


being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the assets carrying 


value. Any excess of the assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the comprehensive 


income statement, unless the asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is 


recognised directly against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the 


impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class of asset. 


 Council experienced significant damage to infrastructure due to the flood event which occurred in October 2022.  


This flood event resulted in the reduction in the carrying value of infrastructure assets amounting to $6.116 million. 


 


8.5 Events occurring after balance date 


No matters have occurred after balance date that requires disclosures in the financial report. 
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Note 9 Other matters 


 


9.1 Reserves Balance at


beginning of 


reporting 


period


Increment 


(decrement)


Balance at 


end of 


reporting 


period


(a) Asset revaluation reserves $'000 $'000 $'000


2023


Property


Land 9,662            2,099            11,761          


Buildings 27,730          4,388            32,118          


37,392          6,487            43,879          


Infrastructure


Roads 100,048        11,835          111,883        


Bridges 17,902          2,478            20,380          


Footpaths and cycleways 983               132               1,115            


Kerb and Channel -                435               435               


Culverts; Pipes & Pits 11,929          1,143            13,072          


Other Infrastructure 341               163               504               


131,203       16,186          147,389       


Total asset revaluation reserves 168,595       22,673          191,268       


2022


Property


Land and land improvements 2,455            7,207            9,662            


Buildings 20,700          7,030            27,730          


23,155          14,237          37,392          


Infrastructure


Roads 101,327        (1,279)           100,048        


Bridges 18,238          (336)              17,902          


Footpaths and cycleways 1,111            (128)              983               


Drainage 11,458          471               11,929          


Other Infrastructure 341               -                341               


132,475        (1,272)           131,203        


Total asset revaluation reserves 155,630       12,965          168,595        


 


The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Councils assets over time. 
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Balance at


beginning of 


reporting 


period


Transfer 


from 


accumulated 


surplus


Transfer to


 


accumulated 


surplus


Balance at 


end of 


reporting 


period


$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000


(b) Other reserves


2023


Recreational Land 9                    -                -                9                    


Total Other reserves 9                    -                -                9                    


2022


Recreational Land 9                    -                -                9                    


Total Other reserves 9                    -                -                9                    


The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of 


Council's assets over time.


 


 


 


2023 2022


9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus $'000 $'000


Surplus for the year 5,161            4,155            


Depreciation 6,016            5,699            


Amortisation - Right of use assets 13                 13                 


Net gain on disposal of preperty, infrastructure, plan and equipment (6)                  (117)              


Finance costs - Borrowings 25                 -                


Finance Cost - Leases 1                    1                    


Change in assets and liabilities:


(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (800)              (100)              


(Increase)/decrease in inventories (4)                  (6)                  


(Increase)/decrease in prepayments (44)                55                 


Increase/(decrease) in accrued income (10)                6                    


(Decrease)/increase in unearned income /revenue 257               (33)                


Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 839               (484)              


(Decrease)/increase in provisions (6)                  (89)                


(Decrease)/increase in trust funds and deposits 71                 (186)              


Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 11,513          8,914             
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9.3  Superannuation 


 Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local 


Authorities Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation, and 


defined benefit, each of which is funded differently. Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised as an 


expense in the Comprehensive Income Statement when they are made or due. 


 Accumulation 


 The Fund's accumulation category, Vision MySuper/Vision Super Saver, receives both employer and employee 


contributions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee 


earnings (for the year ended 30 June 2023, this was 10.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee (SG) 


legislation (2022: 10.0%)).  


 Defined Benefit 


 Pyrenees Shire Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's 


Defined Benefit category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer 


sponsored plan. 


 There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets, or costs between the participating employers 


as the defined benefit obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers and the only time that 


the aggregate obligation is allocated to specific employers is when a call is made.  As a result, the level of 


participation of Pyrenees Shire Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a percentage compared with other 


participating employers. Therefore, the Fund Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets, and costs 


between employers for the purposes of AASB 119.
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 Funding arrangements 


 Pyrenees Shire Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates 


determined by the Trustee on the advice of the Fund Actuary.  


 A triennial actuarial investigation is currently underway for the Defined Benefit category which is expected to be 


completed by 31 December 2023. Pyrenees Shire Council was notified of the 30 June 2023 VBI during August 2023 


(2022: August 2022).  The financial assumptions used to calculate the 30 June 2023 VBI were:  


 Net investment returns 5.7% pa 


Salary information 3.5% pa  


Price inflation (CPI) 2.8% pa 


 As at 30 June 2022, an interim actuarial investigation was held as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the 


Defined Benefit category. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Pyrenees Shire 


Council is a contributing employer was 102.2%. The financial assumptions used to calculate the VBI were: 


 Net investment returns  5.5% pa 


Salary information  2.5% pa to 30 June 2023, and 3.5% pa thereafter  


Price inflation (CPI)  3.0% pa 


 Pyrenees Shire Council was notified of the 30 June 2022 VBI during August 2022 (2021: August 2021). Vision Super 


has advised that the estimated VBI at 3rd quarter end was 104.1% 


 The VBI is used as the primary funding indicator.  Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2022 actuarial 


investigation determined the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change 


was necessary to the Defined Benefit category’s funding arrangements from prior years. 


 


 Employer contributions 


(a) Regular contributions 


On the basis of the results of the 2022 interim actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, Pyrenees 


Shire Council makes employer contributions to the Fund’s Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the 


Fund’s Trustee.  For the year ended 30 June 2023, this rate was 10.5% of members' salaries (10.0% in 2021/22).  


This rate is expected to increase in line with any increases in the SG contribution rate and was reviewed as part of 


the 30 June 2022 interim valuation. 


In addition, Pyrenees Shire Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence 


of retrenchment above the funded resignation or retirement benefit. 


(b) Funding calls 


If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsatisfactory financial position at an actuarial investigation or the Defined 


Benefit category’s VBI is below its shortfall limit at any time other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the 


Defined Benefit category has a shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required to put a plan in place 


so that the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall occurring. The Fund monitors its VBI on a 


quarterly basis and the Fund has set its shortfall limit at 97%. 


In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the above requirement, the Fund’s 


participating employers (including Pyrenees Shire Council are required to make an employer contribution to cover 


the shortfall. 
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Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the participating employers based on 


the pre-1 July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service liabilities of the Fund’s Defined Benefit category, together with 


the employer’s payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the date the shortfall has been calculated. 


Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the 


Fund includes lifetime pensioners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up. 


If there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be returned to the participating employers. 


In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be 


transferred to that employer’s successor. 


The 2022 interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts 


An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing 


employer.  Generally, a full actuarial investigation is conducted every three years and interim actuarial 


investigations are conducted for each intervening year.  An interim investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2022 


and the last full investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2020. 


The Fund’s actuarial investigation identified the following for the Defined Benefit category of which Pyrenees Shire 


Council is a contributing employer: 


2022 2021


(Interim) (Interim)


$m $m


 - A VBI Surplus 44.6 214.7


 - A total service liability surplus 105.8 270.3


 - A discounted accrued benefits surplus 11.9 285.2  


 


The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund’s assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed 


the vested benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitled to if they had all exited on 30 June 


2022. 


The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit category 


plus expected future contributions exceeds the value of expected future benefits and expenses as at 30 June 2022. 


The discounted accrued benefits surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund’s Defined Benefit 


category exceeds the value of benefits payable in the future but accrued in respect of service to 30 June 2022. 
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The 2023 triennial actuarial investigation 


A triennial actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund’s position as at 30 June 2023. It is anticipated 


that this actuarial investigation will be completed by 31 December 2023. The financial assumptions for the 


purposes of this investigation are: 


 


 


2023 2022


Triennial investigation Triennial investigation


Net investment return 5.7% pa 5.6% pa


Salary inflation 3.5% pa 2.50% pa


for the first two years and


2.75% pa thereafter


Price inflation 2.8% pa 2.0% pa  
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Superannuation contributions 


Contributions by Council (excluding any unfunded liability payments) to the above superannuation plans for the 


financial year ended 30 June 2023 are detailed below: 


 


2023 2022


Scheme Type of Scheme Rate $'000 $'000


Vision super Defined benefits 10.5% (2022:10.0%) 88                 107               


Vision super Accumulation 10.5% (2022:10.0%) 517               499               


Other Schemes Accumulation 10.5% (2022:10.0%) 284               230                


 


In addition to the above contributions, Council has paid unfunded liability payments to Vision Super totalling (Nil) 


during the 2022/23 year, (2021/22 Nil). 


There were $18,000 contributions outstanding and nil loans issued from or to the above schemes as at 30 June 


2023. 


The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 


2024 is $112,000. 


 


Note 10 Change in accounting policy 


 There have been no changes to accounting policies in the 2022/23 year. 
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MINUTES - LEXTON COMMUNITY HUB 
COMMUNITY ASSET COMMITTEE 
INAUGURAL MEETING
7pm, Thursday 9 March 2023 – Lexton Community Hub


Cr Clark undertook the role of Temporary Chair for the commencement of the inaugural Meeting.


1. Welcome and Acknowledgement of Country
We acknowledge the people past and present of the Wadawurrung, Dja Dja Wurrung, Eastern Maar and 
Wotjobaluk tribes, whose land forms the Pyrenees Shire. 


We pay our respect to the customs, traditions and stewardship of the land by the elders and people of 
these tribes, on whose land we meet today.


2. In Attendance
Cr David Clark, Ercildoune Ward, Pyrenees Shire Council 
Jim Nolan, Chief Executive Officer, Pyrenees Shire Council
Greg Fisher, Committee member
Bryce Karslake, Committee member
Ed Bradley, Committee member
Fiona Fisher, Committee member
Hugh Briody, Committee member (by phone)
Katrina Lee, Committee member
Paul Karslake, Committee member
Rob Hopcroft, Committee member
Adrian Smith, Committee member


3. Apologies
Mr Brad Sandlant (Committee member)
Ms Kerri Lee (Committee member)
Ms Michelle Richards, Manager Governance, Risk and Compliance, Pyrenees Shire Council
Ms Kathy Bramwell, Director Corporate and Community Services, Pyrenees Shire Council


4. Declaration of Conflict of Interest
Nil.


5. Background of funding model
Jim provided confirmation that Council, at it’s Ordinary Council Meeting on 21 February 2023 resolved to 
establish an Assets Committee for the Lexton Community Hub, and approved the appointment of the list 
of people whose named had been nominated as members.
Council also resolved the provide $8,000 as seed funding for the Committee. 


6. Governance and operation manual
Jim distributed a manual for each of the members including the formal delegation from Council to the 
Committee, as well as the guidelines for the conduct of committees with a table detailing the various 
responsibilities (for Council and the Committee).
Jim also committed that Council’s Governance Manager, Michelle Richards would be available for any 
advice on the conduct of the Committee and to attend a future meeting of the Committee.
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MINUTES - LEXTON COMMUNITY HUB 
COMMUNITY ASSET COMMITTEE MEETING
7pm, Thursday 9 March 2023 – Lexton Community Hub


- 2 -


7. Election of Committee Members


CR Clark declared all positions of the committee to be vacant. 


Cr Clark called for nominations for the role of Chairperson.
Ed Bradley nominated Greg Fisher for the role of Chairperson. Greg accepted the nomination.
No further nominations were received.
CR Clark declared Greg Fisher elected as Chairperson. 


Cr Clark called for nominations for the role of Deputy Chairperson.
Paul Karslake nominated Hugh Briody for the role of Deputy Chair.
Hugh declined the nomination.
Greg Fisher nominated Adrian Smith for the role of Deputy Chair. Adrian accepted the nomination.
No further nominations were received. 
Cr Clark declared Adrian Smith elected as Deputy Chair.


Cr Clark called for nominations for the role of Secretary.
Adrian Smith nominated Rob Hopcroft for the role of Secretary.
No further nominations were received. Rob accepted the nomination.
Cr Clark declared Rob Hopcroft elected as Secretary. 


Cr Clark called for nominations for the role of Treasurer.
Hugh Briody nominated Fiona Fisher for the role of Treasurer. Fiona accepted the nomination.
No further nominations were received.
Cr Clark declared Fiona Fisher elected as Treasurer. 


Cr Clark declared all positions filled and handed over the role of Chair to the newly elected Chair.


8. General Business


Security – Committee members have been provided with a limited number of master keys. Further advice 
and keys to be provided by Council. 


Trip Hazard – a drop off at the edge of concrete at front of the building (and at another location) to be 
inspected and rectified by Council.  


Insurance – a Council officer to provide advice on the extent of Council insurance coverage and other 
insurances that may be required by the Committee.


Rubbish bins – Council provides a limited number of bins free of charge to be serviced on days of town 
collection. Additional waste services to be arranged by the club. A Council officer to provide advice about 
options for waste collection to suit game day and other waste needs.


Bank Account – to be obtained to allow transfer of Council seed funds.
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MINUTES - LEXTON COMMUNITY HUB 
COMMUNITY ASSET COMMITTEE MEETING
7pm, Thursday 9 March 2023 – Lexton Community Hub


- 2 -


Other matters for future consideration include:
Marketing
Website
Future Meeting dates
Fees
Conditions of Hire
Water and power bills.


9. End
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LANDSBOROUGH CARAVAN PARK & SWIMMING POOL
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023


INCOME
Caravan Park / Cabins Fees
Showers
CouncilGrant
Subsidies
Washing Machine & Dryer


EXPENDITURE
Cabin Cleaning
Community Paper Subscription
Park Registration Fee
Electricity
Gas
lnvestment Account
Laundry
Central Highlands Water
Repairs & Maintenance
Fire Watch
Telephone


$
16,805.00


189.00
8,570.02
7,872.65
1,302.00 34,738.67


31,920.79


--..-ffis-f


$
7,354.80
2,8',17.88


-i6'lm"
$


10,256.68


84.00
10,172.68


$


2,192.60
84.00


259.93
3,659.24
1,000.00


20,000.00
744.15


1,836.87
.1,055.00


429.00
660.00


NET SURPLUS


Opening Balance 30rcn022
PLUS Surplus
Closing Balance 301612023


Bank Statement 30/6/2023
LESS UNPRESENTED CHEQUES


No 1251 84.00
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PYRENEES SHIRE COUNCIT LANDSBOROUGH ASSETS COMMITTEE
RE P0RT t 17 l2o22 to 30 l 6 l 2023


SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS


I previously sought Council Officers advice when all the Landsborough Assets committee members


resigned sighting Councils lack of support for Committee generally. I advertised locally that there


were vacancies on the committee. Council advertised for expressions of interest a number of times'


There has been no interest shown from residents. Therefor, as I believe the Council owned


Landsborough community assets are valuable resources for residents and the wider Landsborough


community I have continued to provide the day to day maintenance and operations of Hub, the


Amenities block, Resource Centre, Caravan Parlq Cabins, Playground and BBQ. lwas able to get


volunteers to come on board as a sub committee for the Shop for Landsborough challenge. lt should


be noted that NO COUNCIL OR ASSETS COMMITTEE FUNDS WERE USED FOR THE GET A SHOP FOR


LANDSBOROUGH PROJECT. Now that Landsborough has its shops the sub committee members are


no longer prepared to continue on as Assets committee members.


FINANCIAL POSITION Audit balance sheet attached. The financial position is quite healthy and whilst


strict management of operations and ongoing maintenance is attended to the Hub Assets will


continue to provide support to the well being of residents and the wider Landsborough community


generally.


NO EVENTS HAVE BEEN HELD


COUNCIL ANNUAL GRANT Ensures maintenance and operating cost are meet and when a surplus is


managed it is invested in a Council controlled Assets committee investment account set aside for


future upgrades.


HUB UPGRADE Council sealed entrance roadway and undertook a number of maintenance works for


swimming pool, sewerage, hot water etc.


FEEDBACK Resource Centre is used by cornmunity groups, School, Council visiting library as a local


community exchange book Library and for meetings.


SWIMMING POOL Council controlled and operated. Assets committee pay operating expenses for


powel water, phone, Rates, Safety equipment gas, and for cleaning amenities Block etc each year.


CARAVAN PARK Has wonderful potential. Disapointing Council officers did not respond positively to


committee request to advertise throughout the area.


CABINS Are a great asset to local residents extended families, provide accommodation for seasonal


workers, Shearing teams, Landcare workers, Wineries, Tradies.


AMMENITIES BLOCK Provides facilities to support Carvan Park, Pool changerooms and for community


to use Washing Machine, Dryer, Showers and for special occasions to support Horse Events etc.


COMMENT lt is suggested that Councilshould as high priority revisit its Elizabeth Cummings


BRICOLAGE draft master plan 2016, the 2018 upgrade review and recent planning discussions, set


goals and invest in the Community Hub to stimulate our Community to come together and build on


the wonderful Community spirit already growing from the "Shops for Landsborough" project.


Graeme Sandlant
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Conrrnonurealth Bank of Australia
ABN 48 123 123 124 AFSLand
Auskai'an credit licence 234945
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Statement 349 (Page 1 of 2)


Account i{umber 06 3528 00902401


UT]J
$tatement
Period


THE PRESIDENT
LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE
MCKINLEY ST
LANDSBOROUGH VIC 3384


1 Jul2A22-31 Jul2022


Closing Balance $7,053.98 CR


Enquiries 13 1998


(24 hours a day, 7 days a week)


Society Gheque Account
lf this account has an attached overdraft iimit or facility which is secured over yout" primary place of residence


or over a residential lnvestrnent property you should ensure thai the property is insured in accordance with the


terms and conditions of the nrortgage, if you have any queries about your insurance cover you should contact
your insurer. lnformation on property insurance can also be found on wvw.moneysmart.gov.au. Note, if this
account has an attached overdraft limit or facility and we send you a statement every 4 or 6 months, we will


update your statement preference to every 3 months as part of changes made io the new Banking Code of
Practice frorn '1 


".luly 2019.


Name: LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL CCMMITTEE


Note: Flave you checked your statement today? lt's easy to find out more informaiion about each of your


transactions by logglng on to the CommBank App or NetBank. Should you have any questions on


fees or see an error please contact us on the details above. Cheque proceeds are avaiiable when
cleared.


The date of transactions shown here may be different on your other transaction lists (for example, the transaction list that


appears on the ComrnBank app).
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pare ?ralgacton


0'1 Jul 2022 OPENlt"lG BALANCE


04 Jul Chq 001196 presented ST ARNAUD


05 Jul Chq 001206 presenied


05 Jui Chq 001 205 presented


08 Jul OO12O4 ARARAT


08 Jul STAWELL


1 2 JUI DEPOSIT CASH $15.00 CHEOTJE $O,OO
Branch STAWELI


12 Jui DEPOSIT CASH $250.00 CHEQUE $0.00
Branch STAWELL


12 Jul Cl'rq AA12A7 presented


27 Jul Chq 001208 presented


27 Jul 001201 presented


27 Jut cnc pol lpf py.esgnted ..


31 Jui2022 CLOSING BALANCE


Openlng balance


5
IC.UU $7,147.29 CR


Q'g*"len
$7,3s7.29 cR


55.00 , s7,342.29 CR


53.56 $7,188.73 CR


38.06' $7,1s0.67 CR


96.69.' $7,053.98 CR


$7,05s.98 CR


Total debits + Total credits = Closing balance


Dablt Credll


84.00


Balance


$8,CI95.s5 CR


$a,or t.55 cR


$7,783.30 CR


$7,654.23 CR


$7,s64,29 CR


$7,132.29 CR


129.01


90.00'


432.00Ies ?t


250.00


$8,095.55 CR $1,306.57 $265.00 $7,053.98 CR
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MBank
/Commonweafth Bank of Australia


ABN48 123123 124 AFSLand
Australian credit licence 234945


-
---
-
----


Society Gheque Account
lf this account has an attached overdraft limit or facility which is secured over your primary place of residence


or over a residential lnvestment property you should ensure that the property is insured in accordance with the


terms and conditions of the mortgage. lf you have any queries about your insurance cover you should contact
your insurer. lnformation on property insurance can also be found on www.moneysmart.gov.au' Note, if this


account has an attached overdraft limit or facility and we send you a statement every 4 or 6 months, we will


update your statement preference to every 3 months as part of changes made to the new Banking Code of


Practice from 1 July 2019.


Name: LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE


Note: Have you checked your statement today? lt's easy to find out more information about each of your


transactions by logging on to the CommBank App or NetBank. Should you have any questions on


fees or see an error please contact us on the details above. Cheque proceeds are available when


cleared.


The date of transactions shown here may be different on your other transaction lists (for example, the transaction list that


appears on the CommBank aPP).


Date Transaction Debit Gredit Balance


033


THE PRESIDENT
LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE
MCKINLEY ST
LANDSBOROUGH VIC 3384


01 Aug 2022 OPENING BALANCE


10 Aug Chq 001210 presented


"19 Aug Chq 001209 presented


23 Aug Chq 001212 presented


23 Aug Chq 001 21 1 presented


24 Aug Direct Credit 203599 Pyrenees Shire
13.6.22


25 Aug Fast Transfer From R MORVILLO & P J STEW
Paul Stewart
Cabin2


29 Aug DEPOSIT CASH $20.00 CHEQUE $0.00
Branch STAWELL


31 Aug 2022 CLOSING BALANCE


Opening balance


$7,053.98 CR


Statement 350 (Page 1 of 2)


Account Number 06 3528 00902401


Statement
Period 1 Aug2O22 - 31 Aug2O22


Closing Balance $14,689.31 CR


Enquiries 13 1998


(24 hours a day,7 daYs a week)
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DE,6 frJ


55.00


188.10


131.82


699.77


f4\r* oicitu
8,570.02


$7,053.98 CR


$6,9e8.98 CR


$6,810.88 CR


$6,679.06 CR


s5,979.29 CR


$14,549.31 CR


$14,669.31 CR


$14,689.31 CF


$14,689.31 CR


Closing balance


$14,689.31 CR


&*L hirc-
120,00


f,t'tOoS
20.00


Total debits


$1,074.69


Total credits


$8,710.02


+
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Statement 350


Account Number


(Page 2 of 2)


06 3528 00902401


lmportant lnformation:
We try to get things right the first time - but if we don't, we'll do what we can to fix it.
You can fix most problems simply by contacting us.
Write to: CBA Group Customer Relations, Reply Paid 41, Sydney NSW 2001
Tell us online:
Call: 1B0O 805 605 (free call)


You can also contact the Australian Financial Complaints Authority, AFCA, an independent external dispute
resolution body approved by ASIC - time limits may apply, visit AFCA, afca.org,au, website for more information.
Write to: Australian Financial Complaints Authority, GPO Box 3, Melbourne VIC 3001
Emdl: info@afca.org.au
Call: 'lB0O 931 678, free call Monday to Friday gam- Spm, AEST
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Commonwealih Bank of Australia
ABN 48 123123 124 AFSLand
Australbn credit licerrce 234945


01 Sep


01 Sep


04 Sep


05 Sep


06 Sep


07 Sep


08 Sep


033


THE PRESIDENT
LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE
MCKINLEY ST
LANDSBOROUGH VIC 3384


Date Transaction


2022 OPENING BALANCE


Fast Transfer From R MORVILLO & P J STEW
Paul Stewart
a/o


Fast Transfer From TDL5 ENTERPRISES Pry
Caravan park landsborough
Trent leslie


DEPOSIT CASH $2O.OO CHEQUE $O.OO
Branch STAWELL


Cashed Chq No.001213 STAWELL i44o,[rr^ cieo*
Chq 001215 presented -fef 5 P*
Fast Transfer From MRS MOIRA JANSEN


Statement 351 (Page 1 of 2)


Account Number 06 3528 00902401


Statement
Period 1 Sep 2022 - 30 Sep 2022


Closing Balance $5,344.31 CR


Enquiries 13 1998


(24 hours a day,7 days a week)


Balance


$14,689.31 CR


Qb,4l;,rv
120,00 $14,809.31 CR


fob,n, h\trt


Society Cheque Account
lf this account has an attached overdraft limit or facility which is secured over your primary place of residence
or over a residential lnvestment property you should ensure that the property is insured in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the mortgage. lf you have any queries about your insurance cover you should contact
your insurer. lnformation on property insurance can also be found on www,moneysmart.gov.au. Note, if this
account has an attached overdraft limit or facility and we send you a siatement every 4 or 6 months, we will


update your statement preference to every 3 months as part of changes made to the new Banking Code of
Practice from 1 July 2019.


Name: LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE


Note: Have you checked your statement today? lt's easy to find out more information about each of your
transactions by logging on to the CommBank App or NetBank. Should you have any questions on
fees or see an error please contact us on the details above. Cheque proceeds are available when
cleared.


The date of transactions shown here may be different on your other transaction lists (for example, the transaction list that
appears on the CommBank app).


Debit Gredit
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720.00


|Jl voa 4


20.00 Yc"ra


$15,529.31 CR


5\$r,.
$15,549.31 CR


$15,504.3'1 CR


$15,449.31 CR
I


45.00


55.00


CREDIT TO ACCOUNT
M Jansen il* ^$"Ag 


u.Eei lris Gu;,n d.r"ri"1Ipaf
l3SepTransferToMickSammut - 8cr.k cpp +" fI h, k', ute'S*uiyg,


CommBank App ute service 485.00,


16 Sep Cashed Chq No. 001218 ARARAT A"uA o(e-r,* 4u.OO


20 Sep Fast Transfer From R MORVILLO & P J STEW I


Cabin Accommodation
Paul Stewart


Gb, nv;'*t'
120.00 $15,569.31 CR


$15,084.31 CR


$15,039.31 CR


Arbon\rtv-
$15,159.31 CR


$5,159.31 CR20 Sep Chq 001214 presented 3\"* lale#u<^a$ (' 10,000.00


120.00
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Statement 351


Account Number


Debit


(Page 2 of 2)


06 3528 00902401


Date Transaction


27 Sep DEPOSIT CASH $50.00 CHEQUE $0,00
Branch STAWELL


27 Sep DEPOSIT CASH $270.00 CHEQUE $0.00
Branch STAWELL


27 Sep Cashed Chq No. 001219 STAWELL


27 Sep Cashed Chq No. 001220 STAWELL


30 Sep 2022 CLOSING BALANCE


Opening balance


$14,689.31 CR


Total debits


$10,765.00


45.00


90.00


Total credits


$1,420.00


ile,/to,t .\er;n,^1


/4crlr. ^*'J


Gredit


fer'q,/on 5,fr,
50.00


bru1.*
270.OO


Balance


' $b,209.3i cR


$5,479.31 CR


$5,434.31 CR


$5,344,31 CR


$5,344,31 CR


Closing balance


$5,344.31 CR
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lmportant Information:
We try to get things right the first time - but if we don't, we'll do what we can to fix it
You can fix most problems simply by contacting us.
Write to: CBA Group Customer Relations, Reply Paid 41, Sydney NSW 2001
Tell us online: commbank.com.aulsupport/compliments-and-complaints.himl
Call: 1B0O 805 605 (free call)


You can also contact the Australian Financial Complaints Authority, AFCA, an independent external dispute
resolution body approved by ASIC - time limits may apply, visit AFCA, afca.org.au, website for more information
Write to: Australian Financial Complaints Authority, GPO Box 3, Melbourne VIC 3001
Email: info@afca.org.au
Call: 1800 931 678, free call Monday to Friday 9am- 5pm, AEST
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Bank /Commonwmlth Bank of Ausiralia
ABN 48 123123 '124 AFSLand
Australbn credit licence 234945


01 Oct


0.1 Oct


09 Oct


10 Oct


11 Oct


033


THE PRESIDENT
LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE
MCKINLEY ST
LANDSBOROUGH VIC 3384


Date Transaction


Statement 352 (Page 1 of 2)


Account Number 06 3528 00902401


Statement
Period 1 Oct2A22 - 31 OcI2022


Closing Balance $4,545.54 CR


Enquiries 13 "1998


(24 hours a day,7 days a week)


(n3tn $;tz
120.00


ca4r.,l lira
320.00


Balance


$5,344.31 CB


$5,464.31 CR


Society Gheque Account
lf this account has an attached overdraft limit or facility which is secured over your primary place of residence
or over a residential lnvestment property you should ensure that the property is insured in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the mortgage. lf you have any queries about your insurance cover you should contact
your insurer, lnformation on property insurance can also be found on wvwv.moneysmart.gov.au. Note, if this
account has an attached overdraft limit or facility and we send you a statement every 4 or 6 months, we will


update your statement preference to every 3 months as part of changes made to the new Banking Code of
Practice from 1 July 2019. t


Name: LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE


Note: Have you checked your statement today? lt's easy to find out more informaiion about each of your


transactions by logging on to the CommBank App or NetBank. Should you have any questions on


fees or see an error please contact us on the details above. Cheque proceeds are available when
cleared.


The date of transactions shown here may be different on your other transaction lists (for example, the transaction list that
appears on the CommBank app).


Debit Credit
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13 Oct


17 Oct


17 Oct


18 Oct


20 Oct


20 Oct


21 Oct


2'l Oct


2022 OPENING BALANCE


Fast Transfer From R MORVILLO & P J STEW
PaulStewart 1/10


Fast Transfer From GARRY CRANE
Garry Crane. Cabin 4/5 November


Chq 001221 presented HORSHAM


Transfer from NetBank
transfer


Chq 001 225 presented


Chq 001 223 presented


Chq 001216 presented


Chq 001 226 presented


Chq 001 227 presented STAWELL


Chq 001 228 presented


Cashed Chq No. 001224 ARARAT


Cashed Chq No. 001222 ARARAT


Qzgq',t*ro D"{ed.
' t,oss.oo


'6;sQa 55'oo


\Jtiote" tc"t "rdr7 
g2.8a


t^t t i^stV Lc-z'aoG,c1 16.94


5 t*9 pui< fui,i tkobnpPso.os
I t1 orL*tt;-s 22.60


e.e,n4"oL tQ 
7vr 


t 


^'o W<{1 .46


,trlartw cl<o r|nq 45.00


wlc^aq ";e,".i\ +s.oo


b,u" Pt#{of;' *'"tu 
$5,21 4.sr cR


$5,784.31 CR


$4,729.31 CR


$5,'159,31 CR


$5,066.47 CR


$5,049.53 CR


$4,789.60 CR


$4,767.00 CR


$4,725.54 CR


$4,680.54 CR


$4,635.54 CR
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Date Transaction


21 Oct Cashed Chq No. 001229 ARARAT


31 Oct 2022 CLOSING BALANCE


g6/L* r1*nittt.oo


Opening balance


$5,344.31 CR


Total debits


$l]zs.tt


Debit Credit


Total credits


$925.00


Statement 352


Account Number


(Page 2 o'f 2)


06 3528 00902401


Balance


$4,545.54 cR


$4,545,54 CR


Closing balance


$4,545.54 CR


+


lmportant lnformation:
We try to get things right the first time - but if we don't, we'll do what we can to fix it
You can fix most problems simply by contacting us.
Write to: CBA Group Customer Relations, Reply Paid 41, Sydney NSW 2001
Tell us online: commbank.com.aulsuooort/compliment_s-and-complaints,html
Call: 1800 805 605 (free call)


You can also contact the Australian Financial Complaints Authority, AFCA, an independent external dispute
resolution body approved by ASIC - time limits may apply, visit AFCA, afca.org.au, website for more information
Write to: Australian Financial Complaints Authority, GPO Box 3, Melbourne VIC 3001
Email: info@afca.org.au
Call: 1800 931 678, free call Monday to Friday 9am- Spm, AEST
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ffiBank
/Commonweahh Bank of Australia


ABN 48 123123 124 AFSLand
Australian credit licence 234945


---


Society Gheque Account
lf this account has an attached overdraft limit or facility which is secured over your primary place of residence
or over a residential lnvestment property you should ensure that the property is insured in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the mortgage. lf you have any queries about your insurance cover you should contact
your insurer. lnformation on property insurance can also be found on www.moneysmart.gov.au. Note, if this
account has an attached overdraft limit or facility and we send you a statement every 4 or 6 months, we will
update your statement preference to every 3 months as part of changes made to the new Banking Code of
Practice from '1 July 2019.


033


THE PRESIDENT
LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE
MCKINLEY ST
LANDSBOROUGH VIC 3384


Name


Note:


0'1 Nov 2022 OPENING BALANCE


02 Nov DEPOSIT CASH $0.00 CHEQUE $50.00
Branch STAWELL


02 Nov Cashed Chq No.001230 STAWELL


02 Nov Chq 001233 presented


07 Nov Chq 001231 presented STAWELL


09 Nov Cashed Chq No. OO1232 ARARAT


09 Nov Chq 001234 presented


Fast Transfer From MRS LEE-ANNE MICHELLE
M Poker
Cabin 1 6/12-9/12


DEPOSIT CASH $1O.OO CHEQUE $O,OO
Branch STAWELL


Fast Transfer From TERRIANN KOCIS
Cabin booked for November 18th & 1gth...


Cashed Chq No. 001235 ARARAT


DEPOSIT CASH $5O,OO CHEQUE $O.OO
Branch ARARAT


Statement 353 (Page 1 of 2)


Account Number 06 3528 00902401


Statement
Period 1 Nov 2022 - 30 Nov 2022


Closing Balance $+,lZ+.Zl CA


Enquiries 13 1998


(24 hours a day,7 days a week)


Balance


$4,545.54 CR
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LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE


Have you checked your statement today? lt's easy io find out more information about each of your
transactions by logging on io the CommBank App or NetBank. Should you have any questions on
fees or see an error please contact us on the details above. Cheque proceeds are available when
cleared.


The date of transactions shown here may be different on your other transaction lists (for example, the transaction list that
appears on the CommBank app).


Date Transaction Debit Credit


Ac.' lon c r<.<*,-"90.00


CL*,,| t-I- 1\,4d".6- ln.oz


Qrn'1 A*rtaai'Aa, 4enn 5o.oo


yAadel oL.aol*1 90.00


'lbg$tc 55'00


Qua;c",fri@
50.00'


4L-" t'lt* '
420.00


6L"*'
10.00


&uin hive,
240.00


$4,595.54 CB


$4,505.54 CR


$4,333.47 CR


$4,283.47 CR


$4,193.47 CR


$4,138.47 CR


$4,558.47 CR


$4,568,47 CR


$4,808.47 CR


$4,663.47 CR


$4,713.47 CR


09 Nov


17 Nov


17 Nov


18 Nov


23 Nov Cqinqlqn
50.00


lAe.tlo* dpv. '1 145,00


fetu
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Date Transaction


25 Nov Chq 001236 presented


30 Nov 2022 CLOSING BALANCE


Statement 353


Account Number


Debit


589.20


(Page 2 of 2)


06 3528 00902401


Balance


94j2427 CR


$4,124.27 CR


Glosing balance


$4,124.27 CR


Credit


Opening balance


$4,545.54 CR


Vr?1qq


Total debits


6t,tst.zt


Total credits


$770.00


+


lmportant lnformation:
We try to get things right the flrst time - but if we don't, we'll do what we can to fix it
You can fix most problems simply by contacting us.
Write to: CBA Group Customer Relations, Reply Paid 41, Sydney NSW 2001
Tell us online: commbank.com.aulsupoort/compliments-and-complaints.html
Call: 1800 805 605 (free call)


You can also contact the Australian Financial Complaints Authority, AFCA, an independent external dispute
resolution body approved by ASIC - time limits may apply, visit AFCA, afca,org.au, website for more information
Write to: Australian Financial Complaints Authority, GPO Box 3, Melbourne VIC 3001
Email : info@afca.org.au
Call: '1800 931 678, free call Monday to Friday 9am- Spm, AEST
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MBank
/Commonwealth Bank of Australia


ABN 48 123123'124 AFSL and
Australbn credit licence 234945


-
---
--
--
E


--


Society Cheque Account
lf this account has an attached overdraft limit or facility which is secured over your primary place of residence
or over a residential lnvestment propefty you should ensure that the property is insured in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the mortgage. lf you have any queries about your insurance cover you should contact
your insurer. lnformation on property insurance can also be found on www.moneysmart.gov.au. Note, if this
account has an attached overdraft limit or facility and we send you a statement every 4 or 6 months, we will
update your statement preference to every 3 months as part of changes made to the new Banking Code of
Practice from '1 July 2019.


Name: LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMTTTEE


Note: Have you checked your statement today? lt's easy to find out more information about each of your
transactions by logging on to the CommBank App or NetBank. Should you have any questions on
fees or see an error please contact us on the details above. Cheque proceeds are available when
cleared.


The date of transactions shown here may be different on your other transaction lists (for example, the transaction list that
appears on the CommBank app).


Date Transaction Debit Gredit


033


THE PRESIDENT
LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE
MCKINLEY ST
LANDSBOROUGH VIC 3384


01 Dec 2022 OPENING BALANCE


02 Dec Fast Transfer From R MORVTLLO & P J STEW
Cabin 1 2/12
Paul Stewart


05 Dec DEPOSIT CASH $50.00 CHEQUE $0.00
Branch STAWELL


05 Dec Chq 001237 presented STAWELL


09 DCC DEPOSIT CASH $5O.OO CHEQUE $O.OO
Branch ARARAT


09 Dec Cashed Chq No.001238ARARAT


14 Dec Chq 001241 presented


16 Dec Cashed Chq No. 001240 ARARAT


16 Dec DEPOSIT CASH $50.00 CHEQUE $0.00
Branch STAWELL


16 Dec Chq 001239 presented STAWELL


23 Dec Cashed Chq No. 001243 ARARAT


Statement 354 (Page '1 of 2)


Account Number 06 3528 00902401


Statement
Period 1 Dec 2022 - 31 Dec 2022


Closing Balance $4,754.27 CR


Enquiries 13 1998


(24 hours a day,7 days a week)


Balance


$4,124.27 CR
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@ 4"of,, A,nqe,l"at et<^ 50.00


N+obt ol,entv 45.00
/te,ts{"q 55.00


/tatte'* <,[ean 45.00


Gt"i.4t*'tgoz .120.00. ,ote44


Covln hin<-
120.00


Q.rono* Slle-
50.00


$4,244.27 CR


$4,294.27 CR


$4,244.27 CR


$4,294.27 CR


$4,249.27 CR


$4,194,27 CR


$4,149.27 CR


$4,199.22 cR


$4,079.27 CR


$4,034.27 CR


Cetcictt
50.00


Caraln'l
50.00


f;he


faYe"


TaaJlcr 
"Aca4


45.00
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Date Transaction


28 Dec Direct Credit 128594 Ang
Ang


31 Dec 2022 CLOSING BALANCE


Statement 354


Account Number


(Page 2 of 2)


06 3528 00902401


Balance


94,75427 CR


94,75427 CR


Closing balance


$4,754.27 CR


Debit


Total credits


$990.00


Gredit


*fuL x?s.>


720.OO


Opening balance


$4,124.27 CR


Total debits


$360.oo


+


lmportant lnformation:
We try to get things right the first time * but if we don't, we'll do what we can to fix it.


You can fix most problems simply by contacting us.


Write to: CBA Group Customer Relations, Reply Paid 4"1, Sydney NSW 2001


Tell us online: commbank.com.aulsupport/compliments-and-complaints.html
Call: 1800 805 605 (free call)


You can also contact the Australian Financial Complaints Authority, AFCA, an independent external dispute


resolution body approved by ASIC - time limits may apply, visit AFCA, afca.org.au, website for more information


Write to: Australian Financial Complaints Authority, GPO Box 3, Melbourne VIC 3001


Email : info@afca.org.au
Call: '1BOO 931 678, free call Monday to Friday 9am- Spm, AEST
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Commonweafth Bank of Australia
ABN 48 123 123'124 AFSL and
Australian credit licence 234945


0"1 Jan


03 Jan


05 Jan


06 Jan


09 Jan
'1 7 Jan


17 Jan


.19 
Jan


28 Jan


Society Cheque Account
lf this account has an attached overdraft limit or facility which is secured over your primary place of residence
or over a residential lnvestment property you should ensure that the property is insured in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the mortgage. lf you have any queries about your insurance cover you should contact
your insurer. lnformation on property insurance can also be found on www.moneysmart.gov.au. Note, if this
account has an attached overdraft limit or facility and we send you a statement every 4 or 6 months, we will


update your statement preference to every 3 months as part of changes made to the new Banking Code of
Practice from 1 July 2019.


033


THE PRESIDENT
LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE
MCKINLEY ST
LANDSBOROUGH VIC 3384


Name


Note:


Statement 355 (Page 1 of 2)


Account Number 06 3528 00902401


Statement
Period 1 Jan 2023 - 31 Jan 2023


Closing Balance $0,2+0.99 CR


Enquiries 13 1998


(24 hours a day,7 days a week)


Balance


$4,754.27 CR


Ca.bia hte-
600.00 $5,354.27 CR


$5,299.27 CR


<f-\. 38.28


Q nqi " 
Aga eal Bee agaa5O. O0


&r'" Hh.e


280.00 $5,490.99 CR


CtA,a hzre
120.00


LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE


Have you checked your statement today? lt's easy to find out more information about each of your
transactions by logging on to the CommBank App or NetBank. Should you have any questions on
fees or see an error please contact us on the details above. Cheque proceeds are available when
cleared.
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The date of transactions shown here may be different on your other transaction lists (for example, the transaction list that
appears on the CommBank app).


Date Transaction Debit Gredit


2023 OPENING BALANCE


Direct Credit 128594 Angela
Ang


Chq 001 245 presented


Transfer To Wimmera Laundry
NetBank Wimmera Laundry


Chq OO1 244 presented STAWELL


Fast Transfer From MR SCOTI GARRY LAIRD
Payment for cabin
cabin payment


Fast Transfer From MR SCOTf GARRY LAIRD
Cabin payment
cabin payment


r.rArrtw 55.00


c\e&o,*\ 135.00


4ah,i hit,e-
240.00


CaraTrt
25.00


$5,260.99 CR


$b,2i0.99 cR


$5,610.99 CR


$5,475.99 CR


$5,21s.99 cR


$5,240.99 cR


Cashed Chq No. OO1246ARARAT tv)ad-^,


Fast Transfer From Mr ANTHONY RAYMOND RA
re Mike Rafferty


DEPOSIT CASH $25.00 CHEQUE $O.OO
Branch STAWELL


30 Jan w
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Statement 355


Account Number


(Page 2 of 2)


06 3528 0090240'1


BalanceDate Transaction


30 Jan DEPOSIT CASH $500,00 CHEQUE $0.00
Branch STAWELL


31 Jan 2023 CLOSING BALANCE


Opening balance


$4,754.27 CR


Total debits


$278.28


+


Debit Gredit
U6ah,i7/'{acNz ry


500.00


Total credits


$t,zos.oo


$6,240.99 cR


$6,240.99 CR


Closing balance


$6,240.99 CR


lmportant lnformation:
We try to get things right the first time - but if we don't, we'll do what we can to fix it
You can fix most problems simply by contacting us.
Write to: CBA Group Customer Relations, Reply Paid 41, Sydney NSW 2001
Tell us online
Call: 1800 805 605 (free call)


You can also contact the Australian Financial Complaints Authority, AFCA, an independent external dispute
resolution body approved by ASIC - time limits may apply, visit AFCA, afca.org.au, website for more information
Write to: Australian Financial Complaints Authority, GPO Box 3, Melbourne VIC 3001
Email: info@afca.org.au
Call: 1800 931 678, free call Monday to Friday 9am- Spm, AEST
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ffiBank
/Commonwealth Bank of Australia


ABN 48 123123 '124 AFSLand
Australbn credit licence 234945


-


---
--
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033


THE PRESIDENT
LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE
MCKINLEY ST
LANDSBOROUGH VIC 3384


Date Transaction


Statement 356 (Page 1 of 2)


Account Number 06 3528 00902401


Statement
Period 1 Feb2023-28Feb2023


Closing Balance $5,463.34 CR


Enquiries 131998


(24 hours a day, 7 days a week)


Society Cheque Account
lf this account has an attached overdraft limit or facility which is secured over your primary place of residence


or over a residential lnvestment property you should ensure that the property is insured in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the mortgage. lf you have any queries about your insurance cover you should contact
your insurer. lnformation on property insurance can also be found on www.moneysmart.gov.au. Note, if this
account has an attached overdraft limit or facility and we send you a statement every 4 or 6 months, we will


update your statement preference to every 3 months as part of changes made to the new Banking Code of
Practice from 1 July 2019.


Name: LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE


Note: Have you checked your statement today? lt's easy to find out more information about each of your


transactions by logging on to the CommBank App or NetBank. Should you have any questions on
fees or see an error please contact us on the details above. Cheque proceeds are available when
cleared.


The date of transactions shown here may be different on your other transaction lists (for example, the transaction list that
appears on the CommBank app).


Debit Credit
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01 Feb


03 Feb


06 Feb


10 Feb


13 Feb


llas$ca AIeorJ.,
-fd,:lq I


fia/i^ cieu":-,


A'k*etq la"nd.n1


[ftsaqeo k*41
fr14",tg* o(e.un,n1


otl4rt


90.00


55,00


45,00


40.00


130.02


61.49


45.00


431.14


&b'^ l-llo
'120.00


Balance


$6,240.99 CR


$6,150.99 CR


$6,095.e9 CR


$6,050.99 cR


$6,170.9e CR


$6,130.99 CR


$6,000.97 cR


$5,939.48 CR


$5,894.48 CR


$5,463.34 CR


$5,463.34 CR


Glosing balance


$s,463.34 CR


20 Feb


20 Feb


20 Feb


24 Feb


27 Feb


28 Feb


2023 OPENING BALANCE


Cashed Chq No. 001247 ARARAT


Chq 0Ol 249 presented


Cashed Chq No, OO1248 ARARAT


DEPOSIT CASH $120.OO CHEOUE $O.OO


Branch STAWELL


chq 001252 presented STAWELL


Chq 001250 presented


Chq001242 presented


Cashed Chq No. 00'1253 ARARAT


Chq 001254 presented


2023 CLOSING BALANCE


Opening balance


$6,240.99 CR


Total debits


$asz.os


Total credits


$120.00


+
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Statement 356 (Page 2 of 2)


Account Number 06 3528 00902401


lmportant Information:
We try to get things right the first time - but if we don't, we'll do what we can to fix it
You can fix most problems simply by contacting us,
Write to: CBA Group Customer Relations, Reply Paid 41, Sydney NSW 2001
Tell us online
Call: 1800 805 605 (free call)


You can also contact the Australian Financial Complaints Authority, AFCA, an independent external dispute
resolution body approved by ASIC - time limits may apply, visit AFCA, afca.org.au, website for more information
Write to: Australian Financial Complaints Authority, GPO Box 3, Melbourne VIC 3001
Email: info@afca.org.au
Call: 1800 931 678, free call Monday to Friday 9am* Spm, AEST
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Commonweatth Bank of Australia
ABN 48 123123 124 AFSLand
Australhn credit licence 234945


02 Mar


02Mar


03 Mar


03 Mar


07 Mar


14 Mar


14Mar


17 Mar


2l Mar


22Mar


Society Gheque Account
lf this account has an attached overdraft limit or facility which is secured over your primary place of residence
or over a residential lnvestment propefty you should ensure that the property is insured in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the mortgage. lf you have any queries about your insurance cover you should contact
your insurer. lnformation on property insurance can also be found on wvwv.moneysmart.gov.au. Note, if this
account has an attached overdraft limit or facility and we send you a statement every 4 or 6 months, we will
update your statement preference to every 3 months as part of changes made to the new Banking Code of
Practice from 1 July 2019.


033


THE PRESIDENT
LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE
MCKINLEY ST
LANDSBOROUGH VIC 3384


Name:


Note:


01 Mar 2023 OPENING BALANCE


Chq 001255 presented CeJ$W@illAat
Chq 001256 presente d t ,nl*"i, l{irlr(Lr"4 Vtrd-
Fast Transfer From MR NICHOLAS CHRISTOPH I


CREDITTO ACCOUNT


Direct Credit 16507 4 D A RAUDINO
INV #101


Transfer To Wimmera Laundry
NetBankWimmera Laundry ,?
DEPOSIT CASH $4O.OO CHEOUE $O.OO
Branch STAWELL


DEPOSIT CASH $75.00 CHEQUE $O.OO
Branch STAWELL


Cashed Chq No. 001257 AMRAT


Chq 001 258 presented


Fast Transfer From John Turner
CREDITTO ACCOUNT
John Turner cabin booking


Fast Transfer From D F & S M TURNER
David Turner 2 nights powered site


Statement 357 (Page '1 of 2)


Account Number 06 3528 00902401


Statement
Period l Mar 2023 - 31 Mar 2023


Closing Balance $.12,036.25 CR


Enquiries 13 1998


(24 hours aday,7 days a week)


LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE


Have you checked your staiement today? lt's easy to find out more information about each of your
transactions by logging on to the CommBank App or NetBank. Should you have any questions on
fees or see an error please contact us on the details above. Cheque proceeds are available when
cleared.
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The date of transactions shown here may be different on your other transaction lists (for example, the transaction list that
appears on the commBank app).


Date Transaction Debit Credit


475.56


294.10


14.30


45.00


55.00


frtrv


"urr* 
4,L


140.00


C4B t^l dtgti
6,840.00


!'haiet;
40.00


C|rgv ^tr
75.00


Balance


$5,463.34 CR


$4,987.78 CR


$4,69s.68 CR


$4,833.68 CR


$11,673.68 CR


$11,659.38 CR


$11,699,38 CR


$11,774.38 CR


$11,729.38 CR


$11,674.38 CR


cagl h,L
112.00 $11,786.38 cR


Cat$.ht
50


22Mar


yAadr.v rGq^.fo
fi'tgq I


#-
00 $11,836.38 CR
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23 Mar


23Mar


23 Mar


23 Mar


24Mar


24Mar


27 Mar


Date Transaction


28Mar


Fast Transfer From NORBERT BEM
Landsborough Cabin 1


Fast Transfer From HELEN BERRY
Garth turner van-site


Fast Transfer From LUCIA SPATARO T/AS L
Cabin for Sunday 2nd April2023


Direct Credit 128594 B Burdett
Cabin x 2 nights


Direct Credit 185871 JESSICA TURNER A
CABIN J TURNER


Direct Credit 141000 M and HL HEWITT
Accommodation LCP


DEPOSIT CASH $12O.OO CHEOUE $O.OO
Branch BENDIGO
3506 peter day


Chq 0Ol 259 presented


31 Mar 2023 CLOSING BALANCE


Opening balance


$5,463.34 CR


Debit


o-t't1an- 1,078.13


Credit
(Lhr+ &ne
420.00


().vi!,*'&r4+
50.00


&b"'4 l+"{o
120,00


(.5,; 31ie
224.OO


Cabi $'''s
120.00


&v,i kr^l--


224.00


Gs;.*ne'
120.00


Statement 357


Account Number


(Page 2 of 2)


06 3528 00902401


Balance


$12,256.38 CR


$12,306.38 CR


$12,426.38 CR


$12,650.38 CR


$12,770.38 CR


$12,994.38 CR


$13,114.38 CR


$12,036.25 CR


$12,036.25 CR


Glosing balance


$'12,036.25 CR
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Total debits


$1,962.09


Total credits


$8,535.00


+


lmportant lnformation:
We try to get things right the first time - but if we don't, we'll do what we can to fix it
You can fix most problems simply by contacting us.
Write to: CBA Group Customer Relations, Reply Paid 41, Sydney NSW 2001
Tell us online:
Call: '1800 805 605 (free call)


You can also contact the Australian Financial Complaints Authority, AFCA, an independent external dispute
resolution body approved by ASIC - time limits may apply, visit AFCA, afca.org.au, website for more information
Write to: Australian Financial Complaints Authority, GPO Box 3, Melbourne VIC 3001
Email: info@afca.org.au
Call: 1800 931 678, free call Monday to Friday 9am- 5pm, AEST
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Commonweahh Bank of Australia
ABN48 123123 124 AFSLand
Australian credit licence 234945


0'1 Apr


Society Gheque Account
lf this account has an attached overdraft limit or facility which is secured over your primary place of residence
or over a residential lnvestment property you should ensure that the property is insured in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the mortgage. lf you have any queries about your insurance cover you should contact
your insurer. lnformation on property insurance can also be found on www.moneysmart.gov.au. Note, if this
account has an attached overdraft limit or facility and we send you a statement every 4 or 6 monihs, we will
update your statement preference to every 3 months as pari of changes made to the new Banking Code of
Practice from 1 July 2019.


Name: LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE


Note: Have you checked your statement today? lt's easy to find out more information about each of your
transactions by logging on to the CommBank App or NetBank. Should you have any questions on
fees or see an error please contact us on the details above. Cheque proceeds are available when
cleared.


The date of transactions shown here may be different on your other transaction lists (for example, the transaction list that
appears on the CommBank app),


Date Transaction Debit Credit


033


THE PRESIDENT
LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE
MCKINLEY ST
LANDSBOROUGH VIC 3384


01 Apr 2023 OPENING BALANCE


Fast Transfer From MRS RAYMOND
Cabin - Heather Turner
Sat 8/4 Sun 9/4


DEPOSIT CASH $25,00 CHEQUE $O.OO
Branch STAWELL


Cashed Chq No. 001260 ARARAT ntatbx <Jean135.0O


DEPOSIT CASH $9O.OO CHEOUE $O.OO
Branch STAWELL


Fast TTansfeT FTom MRS MARGARET MARY WAL
Hanley family- showers


DEPOSIT CASH $1OO.OO CHEQUE $O,OO
Branch STAWELL


Chq 001261 presented


Chq 001262 presented STAWELL


Fast Transfer From CARMELIAN ENTERPRISES
CREDITTO ACCOUNT
lOdayride Brady


Fast Transfer From Matthew R Pate
Accomodation 1 9th-20th April. Matthew


Chq 001 266 presented


Statement 358 (Page 1 of 2)


Account Number 06 3528 00902401


Statement
Period 1 Apr 2023 - 30 Apr 2023


Closing Balance $13,604.35 CR


Enquiries 131998
(24 hours a day,7 days a week)


Balance


$12,036.25 CR


caA d gw\{e'


240.00 F.c


caat\n{n PI'ttdP
$12,276.25 CR


25.00 $'12,301 .25 CR


$12,166.25 CR


{hetusets
90.00


"fAew<us


$12,256.25 CR
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03 Apr


06 Apr


11 Apr


11 Apr


13 Apr


17 Apr


26 Apr


27 Apr


27 Apr


27 Apr


an,L / s*o.ut
1,500.00


Cag')
240.OO


$12,270.25 CR


Y
$12,370.25 CR


$12,315.25 CR


912,240.25 CR


$13,740.25 CR


$13,980.25 CR


$13,739.35 CR


'14.00


&*rqtdv
'100.00 tr


6.t_rt 1
Grar, o.Vtnn Aqne,'ivo,


55.00


6r" tlo,+r!', 24o.so


AGENDA - Ordinary Meeting of Council 19 September 2023 Attachments Attachment: 13.2.6.2


128 of 171







\


Date Transaction


28Apr Cashed Chq No. 001264 ARARAT


28Apr Cashed Chq No.001265ARARAT


30 Apr 2023 CLOSING BALANCE


Opening balance


$12,036.25 CR


/u{a{o^ u\qu,
,Aari lOr, Alean


Total debits


$640.90


Total credits


$2,209.00


Statement 358


Account Nurnber


(Page 2 of 2)


06 3528 00902401


Balance


$13,694.35 CR


$13,604.35 CR


$13,604.35 CR


Glosing balance


$13,604.35 CR


Debit


45.00


90.00


Credit


+


lmportant lnformation:
We try to get things right the first time - but if we don't, we'll do what we can to fix it


You can fix most problems simply by contacting us.


Write to: CBA Group Customer Relations, Reply Paid 41, Sydney NSW 200.1


Tell us online: commbank.com.aulsupport/compliments-and-complaints.html
Call: 1800 805 605 (free call)


You can also contact the Australian Financial Complaints Authority, AFCA, an independent external dispute
resolution body approved by ASIC - time limits may apply, visit AFCA, afca,org.au, website for more information.


Write to: Australian Financial Complaints Authority, GPO Box 3, Melbourne VIC 3001


Email : info@afca.org.au
Call: lBOO 931 678, free call Monday to Friday 9am- 5pm, AEST
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/C,ommonweafth Bank of Australia
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033


THE PRESIDENT
LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE
MCKINLEY ST
LANDSBOROUGH VIC 3384


Name


Note:


Statement 359 (Page 1 of 2)


Account Number 06 3528 00902401


Statement
Period '1 May 2023 - 3'1 May 2023


Closing Balance $g,tOS,AS CR


Enquiries 13 1998


(24 hours a day,7 days a week)


Balance


$13,604.35 CR


Society Gheque Account
lf this account has an attached overdraft limit or facility which is secured over your primary place of residence
or over a residential lnvestment property you should ensure that the property is insured in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the mortgage. lf you have any queries about your insurance cover you should contact
your insurer. lnformation on property insurance can also be found on wvwv.moneysmart.gov.au. Note, if this
account has an attached overdraft limit or facility and we send you a statement every 4 or 6 months, we will
update your statement preference to every 3 months as part of changes made to the new Banking Code of
Practice from 1 July 2019.
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LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE


Have you checked your statement today? lt's easy to find out more information aboui each of your
transactions by logging on to the CommBank App or NetBank, Should you have any questions on
fees or see an error please contact us on the details above. Cheque proceeds are available when
cleared.


The date of transactions shown here may be different on your other transaction lists (for example, the transaction list that
appears on the CommBank app).


Debit CreditDate Transaction


01 May 2023 OPENING BALANCE


01 May DEPOSIT CASH $140.00 CHEQUE $0.00
Branch MELTON
9 cabin 2 13may scollo


01 May Fast Transfer From Matthew R Pate
Accomodation 1st & 2nd of May 2023 - ...


02 May Chq 001 270 presented 1n t< >:I,nz'* .;f<. '1 O,O0O.O0


04 May Fast Transfer From Matthew R Pate
Accomodation Brooke and Matt 3rd - 41.,.


05 May Cashed Chq No. 001269 ARARAT ,flo\o* deta,,,\ 90,00


05 May Transfer To Wimmera Laundry
NetBankCabinsWimmera Laundry 


- 


92.62


08 May Direct Credit 185871 R & J PALMA
RCPT: 3X8LLBPSDT2Q


08 May Chq 001 263 presented lr)'**a'ru Lae^av"1 79J0


1 1 May Chq 001 268 presented STAWELL (o'.n i /wnou;h..ciqa^50.00


11 May ChqO01274 presented STAWELL Sxo,p 1$t* €@rt BrarV 500.00


16 May COIN MACHINE DEPOSIT $160.00 l
Branch MELTON
CABIN2 2l l OSCOLLO


16 May Chq 001271 presented frLs4 55.00


{Cb,n krc-
140.00


(Atn,* \",;a
240.OO


Cqb,o fi.ro
120,00


(.ibta h 't{
120.00


Crib;'t h,rc
160.00


$13,744.35 CR


$13,984.35 cR


$3,984,35 cR


$4,104.35 CR


$4,014.35 CR


$s,szt.73 cR


$4,041.73 CR


$3,968.03 CR


$3,918.03 CR


$3,418.03 CR


$B,s78.os cR


$3,523.03 CR
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Date Transaction


17 May Fast Transfer From MRS PENELOPE V MORONE
Cabin for 1 7/18th may
cabin for 17/l8lhmay


17 May Chq 001273 presented €haie tlx.aeEveJ fur?
26 May Chq 00"1275 presented g ri g + 4
26 May Chq 001276 presented I


u€iri *n
30 May DEPOSIT CASH $532.00 CHEQUE $0.00


Branch STAWELL


Statement 359


Account Number


Debit Gredit


r'tb,; r{o\
280.00


500.00


364,59


364.59


(Page 2 of 2)


06 3528 00902401


Balance


$3,803.03 CR


$3,303.03 CR


$2,938.44 CR


$2,573,85 CR


31 May 2023 CLOSING BALANCE


Opening balance


$13,604.35 CR


Total debits


$12,090.50


Total credits


$1,592.00


+


UaSv,,iq *kes",;q
532.00 $3,105.85 CR


$3,105.85 cR


Closing balance


$3,105,85 CR


a
OO
(o
O


--.1


LO


a
N
u2
c')q)
ct
O
c9O
c')
E
()
N
N
N
c,.l


N
O
No
nl


N


lmportant lnformation:
We try to get things right the first time - bui if we don't, we'll do what we can to fix it
You can fix most problems simply by contacting us.
Wriie to: CBA Group Customer Relations, Reply Paid 41, Sydney NSW 2001
Tell us online: commbank.com.aulsupport/compliments-and-complaints.html
Call: '1800 805 605 (free call)


You can also contact the Australian Financial Complaints Authority, AFCA, an independent external dispute
resolution body approved by ASIC - time limits may apply, visit AFCA, afca.org.au, website for more information
Write to: Australian Financial Complaints Authority, GPO Box 3, Melbourne VIC 3001
Email: info@afca.org,au
Call: 1800 931 678, free call Monday to Friday 9am- Spm, AEST
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MBank .'r,,ti!'if
Com monweaft h Bank of Australia
ABN 48 123 123 124 AFSL and
Australbn credii licerpe 234945


THE PRESIDENT
LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE
MCKINLEY ST
LANDSBOROUGH VIC 3384


06 Jun DEPOSIT CASH $50,00 CHEQUE $0.00
Branch STAWELL


08Jun Chq A}ftTSpresentedSTAWELL lootiie- Lte"n,^9 , 15.00


Statement 360 (Page 1 of 2)


Account Number 06 3528 00902401


Statement
Period


.1 Jun 2023 - 30 Jun 2023


Closing Balance $10,256.68 CR


033


n


-
-
-


Enquiries r3 1998


(24 hours a day, 7 days a week)


Society Gheque Account
lf this account has an attached overdraft limit or facility which is secured over your primary place of residence
or over a residential lnvestment property you should ensure that the property is insured in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the mortgage. lf you have any queries about your insurance cover you should contact
your insurer. lnformation on property insurance can also be found on wvw.moneysmart.gov.au. Note, if this
account has an attached overdraft limit or facility and we send you a statement every 4 or 6 months, we will
update your statement preference to every 3 months as part of changes made to the new Banking Code of
Practicefrom '1 July 2019.


Name: LANDSBOROUGH SWIMMING POOL COMMITTEE


Note: Have you checked your statement today? lt's easy to find out more information about each of your
transactions by logging on to the CommBank App or NetBank. Should you have any questions on
fees or see an error please contact us on the details above. Cheque proceeds are available when
cleared.


The date of transactions shown here may be different on your other transaction lists (for example, the transaction list that
appears on the CommBank app).


01 Jun 2023 OPENING BALANCE $3,105.85 CR


01 Jun Transfer To Wimmera Laundry
NetBank Landsborough Cabins Laundry ,{^atndt"l 70'40 $3,035,45 CR


02 Jun Cashed Chq No, OO1272 AMRAT martod deia;o 45.00 $2,990.45 CR


02 Jun Cashed Chq No, AOP77 ARAMT irrlr^ioo^*-l so.oo $2,900.45 CR


@


ctg
a
q
o
@


q
N
o,
o
c
Jo
ooo
too
N
N
N
r:


d
tso
q
@


@
@


t*


I Qralcn fella50.00 $2,950.45 CR


$2,935.45 CR


'15 Jun Chq 001301


28 Jun Chq 001279 presented


28 Jun Direct Credit 203599 Pyrenees Shire
16.6.23


/ ss.oo


Got*f, L>.t" -t b&-4e642


$2,880.4s CR


$2,384.03 CR


$10,256,68 CR


Jh',te
7,872.65


30 Jun 2023 CLOSING BALANCE $10,256.68 CR


Closing balanceOpening balance Total debits + Total crcdits =


$3,105.85 CR $771.82 $7,922.65 $10,256.68 CR
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Snake Valley, Vic, 3351
Ph: 5344 9090 


shirley.j.carson@gmail.com 
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Meeting Minutes


Meeting commenced at: 


Venue: Snake Valley Community Hall


Present: Tania Currie, Sonia Missen, Kate Breen, Ann Collett, Tony Collett, Shirley Carson, Lyn White, Gay 
Pearse, C K 


Apologies: Ron Bolton


Motion: That apologies be accepted.


Moved: Tania Currie Seconded: Lyn White Carried:     


Item Details


1. Confirmation of minutes of previous meeting


Discussion: None


Motion: That the minutes be accepted


Moved: Tania Currie Seconded: Sonia Missen Carried:   


Annual General Meeting convened 


Present: Tania Currie, Sonia Missen, Kate Breen, Ann Collett, Tony Collett, Shirley Carson, Lyn White, Gay 
Pearse, C K 


Apologies: Ron Bolton


2021/22 President’s report read and tabled


Moved: Shirley Carson Seconded: Ann Collett 


All executive positions declared vacant


Nominations called for:


President:  Kate Breen nominated – Clayton Keefe – Accepted and Carried


Vice President: Shirley Carson nominated – Lyn White - Accepted and Carried


AGENDA - Ordinary Meeting of Council 19 September 2023 Attachments Attachment: 13.2.6.3


134 of 171







Snake Valley Community Hall
Community Asset Committee of the Pyrenees Shire Council 


Snake Valley Hall Asset Committee:


Chairperson/Treasurer: Clayton Keefe
35 Cochrane Drive
Snake Valley, Vic, 3351
Ph: 5377 7608
claytonkeefe@optusnet.com.au


Secretary: Shirley Carson
76 Station Lane


Snake Valley, Vic, 3351
Ph: 5344 9090 


shirley.j.carson@gmail.com 


P a g e  2 | 4


Secretary: Clayton Keefe nominated Shirley Carson- Accepted and Carried


Treasurer: Shirley Carson nominated Clayton Keefe - Accepted and Carried


Booking Officer: Kate Breen nominated Sonia Missen - Accepted and Carried


Safety Officer: Tania Currie nominated Shirley Carson - Accepted and Carried


Normal meeting resumed – Clayton Keefe presiding


2. Correspondence:


In: 


1. Catherine - Pyrenees Generator Emergency Connection for the Hall – so people can charge their phones 
in an emergency.


2. Email from Danie asking for auspicing for her stall – but inquiries to Council resulted in a negative 
response


3. AGL regarding price increases looming
4. Noticeboard submission has gone to Council and been OK’d - we need to make sure that we quote the 


purchase order number 


Motion: that the correspondence details be accepted


Moved: Tania Currie Seconded: Lyn White Carried:    


3. Treasurer’s Report:


Tabled 


$3,678.82 balance with $1,560 still outstanding from Council for cleaning and $800 from the Activity Group 


Motion: that the Treasurer’s Report be accepted


Moved: Kate Breen Seconded: Ann Collett Carried: 


5. Booking Officers Report:
1. All market meetings have been cancelled as the committee running them have hit a roadblock
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2. Weekly booking for Brett Richards for his self-learning group – 8-10 children from 4 families $200 bond 
$60 per session – they are not using the heating in the hall


3. 14th August - a party for Carly McDonald
4. October – Carol Quilliam is having a fundraiser for Michelle Dixon’s son – to be charged at the old rate of 


$100 - as the booking was made prior to COVID lockdowns – All agreed
5. $703.00 for Hall Hire handed to Treasurer


Motion: that the Booking Officer’s Report be accepted


Moved: Ann Collett Seconded: Tania Currie Carried:    


4. Business arising from the minutes:


1. Presentation to Kate for her 26 years’ service to the Hall and Asset Committee as President


2. Noticeboard- $353.43 – need to check how to pay for it online - Clayton to follow up 


3. Floor in the Hall – the damage repairs have still not been done to our satisfaction – do we want to pursue? 
Kate has washed the floor with really hot water and if we want to pursue it, we will need 5 litres of PH 
neutraliser. If we want to pursue – when?


Decided we would look at the floor during General Business and decide then


4. Damaged toilet roll holders are still not fixed – need to contact Michelle Richards at Council – Kate will 
follow up as she is familiar with the details


5. Should we change meeting nights to a Monday night to accommodate Ron as he has difficulties with 
Tuesdays but is keen to participate? – there is a precedent for doing this as we have shifted nights in the 
past.


Discussion: 


Decided to defer decision on the change of night until after discussion with Ron – Shirley to follow up


Motion: that the discussion around business arising from the minutes be accepted


Moved: Tania Currie Seconded: Sonia Missen Carried:    
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5 General Business:
1. Gas bottle has been delivered - can we please pay? Clayton to follow up
2. Arts Atlas website has some inaccuracies that have proven difficult to amend - we need CERT/CFA 


deleted and contact details updated - Clayton to follow up 
3. Clayton is more likely to do Asset Committee business on Mondays and Tuesdays
4. Shirley is more likely to be available on Wednesdays/Thursdays and Fridays


Discussion:


1. Do we still have an account at the shop? Shirley to follow up
2. Meeting adjourned while we all went and looked at the floor – decided that we would not pursue any 


further


Motion: that the discussion around general business be accepted


Moved: Tony Collett Seconded: Gay Pearse Carried:    


Meeting Closed:  8.45pm Next meeting scheduled for: Monday October 17th at 7:30 pm


Meeting Times and Dates 


After discussion with Ron Bolton - as agreed during the meeting – meetings will now be held on the third MONDAY 
of every second month


Meeting Type Date Time Venue
General Monday October 17th 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday December 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday February 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday April 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday June 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday August 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday October 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall


Minutes compiled by Shirley Carson, Secretary, Snake Valley Hall Asset Committee, 2022.
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Meeting Minutes 17th April 2023


Meeting commenced at: 7:35pm


Venue: Snake Valley Community Hall


Present: Clayton Keefe, Lyn White, Shirley Carson, Sonia Missen, Kate Breen, Gay Pearse, Kerry Clayton


Apologies: Tania Currie


Clayton welcomed new member – Kerry Clayton 


Motion: That apologies be accepted.


Moved: Kate Breen Seconded: Lyn White Carried:     


Item Details


1. Confirmation of minutes of previous meeting


Discussion: None


Motion: That the minutes be accepted


Moved: Sonia Missen Seconded: Lyn White Carried:   


2. Correspondence:


In: Ongoing – Michelle Richards from Pyrenees Shire Council re cleaning
Grant gazebo – enquiries/quotes/options
spraying - advice as to where and when


Motion: That Correspondence be accepted


Moved: Gay Pearse Seconded: Kerry Clayton Carried:    


3. Treasurer’s Report:


Tabled $5,667.73 balance.
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Treasurer’s Report cont’d


In: 


Grant money has been paid in
$100 donation from Ann and Tony Collett for Easter event
$50 Donation from Sean Murphy for Easter event
$10 anonymous donation for Easter event
$225 raffle sales
$215 food sales


To come: 


$1320 to come in for final cleaning account.
Water rebate to come $500.


To go out still: $300 still owing for the Grant and the shop account still to come


Motion: That the Treasurer’s Report be accepted


Moved: Kate Breen Seconded: Kerry Clayton Carried: 


4. Booking Officers Report:


1. Activity Group has not returned – we need to retrieve our key for the front room.
2. Craft group every Tuesday
3. Martin Bell had a kid’s party last Sunday. 
4. $457 given to Treasurer to be banked.
5. Request for Anzac Day from Friends of the RSL – no charge – Shirley to advise Ann Singleton


Motion: that the Booking Officer’s Report be accepted


Moved: Lyn White Seconded: Tania Currie Carried:    


5. Business arising from the minutes:


1. Bookings Officer to advise Clayton/Shirley as bookings come in


1. Grants progressing – gazebo is still being added to as the extras become available; Noticeboard still 
happening.
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2. Easter event – made money – everyone pitched in, and it was a success - lots of good feedback. Shirley 
to send thank you letters to donors and volunteers. Next year a small bell would help, and Gay advised 
she has more games. It was decided that they face painting would not be needed for next year.


3. The cleaning has finally been resolved – an extra vote of thanks was moved for Clayton’s role in 
achieving this outcome.


Motion: that the discussion around business arising from the minutes be accepted


Moved: Lyn White Seconded: Sonia Missen Carried:    


6. General Business:
1. Snake Valley Uniting Church is happy with our decision and extends their thanks for the support.
2. Now that Kerry is on the Committee is it possible to run the Craft Group as we once did with 


Bouncercise? - Don’t know the answer so Clayton/Shirley to seek advice from Adam Boyle at the Shire – 
and perhaps Tanya Keogh


3. What do we want to do with the wicking bed? 
Motion: That the wicking bed be passed on to someone who wants it. Shirley to explore if the Uniting 
Church could use it for their community garden.


Moved: Kate Breen Seconded: Gay Pearse Carried:    


Motion: That the discussion around general business be accepted


4. Rubbish bins -people are using the bins for their personal rubbish so it was agreed that Shirley would 
make some signs to put up and use the SV Facebook page to remind people of tip times.


5. Cake display counters - do we want them? Have a look and report back at the next meeting.
6. Testing and tagging is due – Council needs to be told. Clayton to follow up. 
7. Activity Group needs to return their keys -Sonia to contact and ask.


Moved: Kerry Clayton Seconded: Kate Breen Carried:    


Meeting Closed:  8:50pm Next meeting scheduled for: Monday June 19th at 7:30 pm


Meeting Type Date Time Venue
General Monday June 19th 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday August 21st 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday October 16th 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall


Note: Gay in the US for the June 19th, 2023, Meeting 


Minutes compiled by Shirley Carson, Secretary, Snake Valley Hall Asset Committee, 2022.
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Meeting Minutes


Meeting commenced at: 7:35pm


Venue: Snake Valley Community Hall


Present: Clayton Keefe, Lyn White, Shirley Carson, Sonia Missen, Kate Breen, Ron Bolton, Gay Pearse, Tania 
Currie


Guests:  Sonia Van Dorsen, Kaylene Baird, Cheryl


 Apologies:  


Motion: That apologies be accepted.


Moved: Sonia Missen Seconded: Lyn White Carried:     


Item Details


1. Confirmation of minutes of previous meeting


Discussion: None


Motion: That the minutes be accepted


Moved: Ron Bolton Seconded: Kate Breen Carried:   


2. Correspondence:


In: Ongoing – Michelle Richards from Pyrenees Shire Council re cleaning


Survey of Halls in Victoria


Motion: That Correspondence be accepted


Moved: Tania Currie Seconded: Gay Pearse Carried:    
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3. Treasurer’s Report:


Tabled 


$5,675.54 balance with grant money still to come in.


Water rates to pay in the next two weeks.


$61.20 for the Annual Financial Review which had to be in by Dec 31st. 


Incorporated Body Annual Report is due by the end of this year.


Motion: That the Treasurer’s Report be accepted


Moved: Ron Bolton Seconded: Gay Pearse Carried: 


1. Booking Officers Report:
1. Activity Group not back from the break yet – no other bookings other than Council on Feb 13th just 


gone.
2. 18th Dec - VEC paid their account – and picked up their cardboard.


3. Motion: that the Booking Officer’s Report be accepted


Moved: Lyn White Seconded: Tania Currie Carried:    


4. Business arising from the minutes:


1. Grant money still not come from Council – Shirley to follow up with Adam Boyle


3. Easter Program


Sonia talked about her experience running the Easter Hunt for the two years prior to COVID shutdown.


• Event did not cost money - it raised money.
• She presented us with a box of goodies including details and samples of the advertising, signage, list 


of sponsors (Mars and local supermarkets – with donations able to be left at the Snake Valley shop)
• Advised us that the Progress Network has a BBQ that they purchased which is housed at the CFA 


shed.
• Event ran from 9:00am until 11:00am – actual hunt was at 10:30am
• Someone needs to wrangle the children to keep things orderly – games and face painting.
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Clayton thanked Sonia on behalf of the Committee and further discussion was deferred to General 
Business to allow Kaylene and Cheryl from the Snake Valley Uniting Church to do a presentation.


4. Sonia has purchased the two tables and been re-imbursed. 


Motion: that the discussion around business arising from the minutes be accepted


Moved: Lyn White Seconded: Gay Pearse Carried:    


5 General Business:
1. Snake Valley Uniting Church Presentation


Kaylene began by acknowledging our support for the Organs of the Goldfields event in January and 
presenting a cheque for $100:00.


She then went on to talk about the Church’s proposed Four Seasons Community Market where they 
envisage a marketplace being offered for local producers on  seasonal basis – so 4 times annually. They 
have a need to submit for a funding grant that requires then to have things in place and community 
support by the Pyrenees Shire’s funding deadlines and are presenting the concept in the hope that we 
will support their vision and become involved in the project as a stakeholder.


Kaylene emphasised that the Church would run the event – meaning that they would be responsible for 
governance and risk and associated documentation around traffic control, first aid and insurance.


Kaylene and Cheryl proposed two options for us to consider:


1. Stalls in the Hall – under Church insurance as they would hire the Hall.
2. Hall would house the stalls and receive the revenue from the stall fees, with the Church running the 


café from the Hall kitchen and them receiving that revenue.


Clayton thanked Kaylene and Cheryl for their presentation and advised them that we would let them know 
of our decision once the committee had discussed it; so at this point Kaylene and Cheryl left the meeting and 
the Committee discussed the proposal


MOTION: That we support the concept of the Four Seasons Community Market put forward by the Snake 
Valley Uniting Church on the basis of them hiring the Hall and the Supper Room to run their event and 
they would pay standard hire for that usage.


Moved: Tania Currie Seconded: Lyn White Carried:    
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Shirley to advise the Uniting Church of the decision by the end of this week.


2. Discussion resumed around the Easter Hunt as this will be the last regular meeting prior to the event 
itself.
Key points to note from the discussion:


• The event would be run from the Hall – an inspection calculated that there was sufficient space 
for the event at the Hall and its grounds and that the fencing was an adequate boundary


• Clayton volunteered to undertake the advertising - flyers as well as online with the Snake Valley 
Network site – asking for any volunteers to help on the day.


• Sonia Van Dorsen volunteered to follow op with Tania Keogh re the Donations letter for 
sponsors.


• Shirley volunteered to talk to Snake Valley PS re announcements in the Snake Valley Campus 
weekly newsletter


• We might need a meeting in the week prior to the event to finalise details - otherwise we can do 
vias email and phone.


• Tania advised that she would be unavailable on the day as she is away -and Gay said she would 
be late as she works. Sonia Missen is also working that day.


3. Kate Breen spoke to the Committee about a proposal from Kerry Clayton to set up a Craft Group where 
people bring their crafts and their own equipment such as sewing machines and irons - and wants to run 
it under the Hall banner - but the committee is mindful of the negative response we got from Council 
with the most recent auspicing, as it raises issues around insurance and risk management. 


Kate reminded us that the Bouncercise Group used to run under the Hall Committee - had its own bank 
account and funding -  and reported to the Hall Committee bi-monthly via its representation on the 
Committee – but now we are an Asset Committee and are uncertain if the same rules could apply. 


It was agreed that:
• Clayton would contact Adam Boyle and see what the situation is with the rules – and get back to 


Kerry so she can apply for a grant knowing what the situation is. 
• Clayton and Shirley would talk to Tanya Keogh (local Councillor) for advice and advocacy. 


Motion: that the discussion around general business be accepted


Moved: Ron Bolton Seconded: Kate Breen Carried:    


Meeting Closed:  9:11pm Next meeting scheduled for: Monday April 17th at 7:30 pm
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Meeting Times and Dates 


After discussion with Ron Bolton - as agreed during the meeting – meetings will now be held on the third MONDAY 
of every second month


Meeting Type Date Time Venue
General Monday February 20th 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday April 17th 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday June 19th 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday August 21st 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday October 16th 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall


Note: Gay in the US for the June 19th, 2023, Meeting 


Minutes compiled by Shirley Carson, Secretary, Snake Valley Hall Asset Committee, 2022.
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Meeting Minutes 19th June 2023


Meeting commenced at: 7:35pm


Venue: Snake Valley Community Hall


Present: Clayton Keefe, Lyn White, Shirley Carson, Sonia Missen, Kate Breen, Kerry Clayton, Ron Bolton


Apologies: Tania Currie, Gay Pearse


Motion: That apologies be accepted.


Moved: Kate Breen Seconded: Sonia Missen Carried:     


Item Details


1. Confirmation of minutes of previous meeting


Discussion: None


Motion: That the minutes be accepted


Moved: Ron Bolton Seconded: Kate Breen Carried:   


2. Correspondence:


In: Ongoing – Craft Group funding notification from Pyrenees Shire Council
Gazebo Grant Reconciliation from Pyrenees Shire Council
Darryl Hooper re cleaning


Motion: That Correspondence be accepted


Moved: Lyn White Seconded: Kate Breen Carried:   


3. Treasurer’s Report:


Tabled $7,092.37 balance.


In:  Final cleaning reimbursement from Pyrenees Shire Council


To come: $500 still to come from annual water reimbursement.


Motion: That the Treasurer’s Report be accepted


Moved: Sonia Missen Seconded: Lyn White Carried: 
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4. Booking Officers Report:


1. Craft group every Tuesday: $540 to go into their account.


Motion: that the Booking Officer’s Report be accepted


Moved: Ron Bolton Seconded: Lyn White Carried:    


5. Business arising from the minutes:


1. Bookings Officer to advise Clayton/Shirley as bookings come in


1. Craft Group


Motion: That the Asset Committee agrees with the proposal put forward by Pyrenees Shire Council 
regarding the Grant to the Craft Group, in that the money will be deposited into the Asset Committee 
account and a weekly fee will be withdrawn for booking fees until the amount has been fully used.


Moved: Ron Bolton Seconded: Sonia Missen Carried: 
   


2. Annual Clean – Darryl Hooper will complete the clean before the end of June and submit his account to
Pyrenees Shire Council. It has been authorised by Philip Diprose - and Darryl will need a purchase order 
number.


3. Flood – The wall mounted urn has died – we have a couple of options:
a) Remove it – we can contact Ryan Day from Days 


Plumbing - 0437 384 513 – but will need Council approval.
b) Just use a plug-in urn which we would need to purchase.


There was also discussion around inserting a spoon drain in the kitchen which we thought might be a good 
idea – need to investigate cost and approvals from Council.


4. Baits need to be purchased and put out for the mouse/rat problem – Clayton and Shirley to purchase.
5. Test and Tag is due – Clayton to organise.
6. External side door is swelling - we need to keep an eye on it as the weather changes to see it there is 


any need to repair.


Motion: that the discussion around business arising from the minutes be accepted


Moved: Ron Bolton Seconded: Kerry Clayton Carried:    


2. General Business:
1. Hiring Forms – Sonia has run out – Clayton to produce some more. 


AGENDA - Ordinary Meeting of Council 19 September 2023 Attachments Attachment: 13.2.6.6


147 of 171







Snake Valley Community Hall
Community Asset Committee of the Pyrenees Shire Council 


Snake Valley Hall Asset Committee:


Chairperson/Treasurer: Clayton Keefe
35 Cochrane Drive
Snake Valley, Vic, 3351
Ph: 5377 7608
claytonkeefe@optusnet.com.au


Secretary: Shirley Carson
76 Station Lane


Snake Valley, Vic, 3351
Ph: 5344 9090 


shirley.j.carson@gmail.com 


P a g e  3 | 3


2. Cake Counter at the shop – Shirley and Clayton to check it out to see if we could use it.
3. Working Bee to carry out labelling and sorting out of the front room and the storeroom – 30th June 


11:00am


Motion: That the discussion around general business be accepted


Moved: Kerry Clayton Seconded: Kate Breen Carried:    


Meeting Closed:  8:55pm Next meeting scheduled for: Monday June 19th at 7:30 pm


Meeting Type Date Time Venue
General Monday August 21st 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday October 16th 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday December 18th 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall


Minutes compiled by Shirley Carson, Secretary, Snake Valley Hall Asset Committee, 2022.
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Extra Meeting Minutes


Meeting commenced at: 7:35pm


Venue: Snake Valley Community Hall


Present: Clayton Keefe, Lyn White, Shirley Carson, Kate Breen, Ron Bolton, Gay Pearse


Guests:  Sonia Van Dorsen


 Apologies:  Tania Currie


Motion: That apologies be accepted.


Moved: Kate Breen Seconded: Lyn White Carried:     


Item Details


5 General Business:
1. Discussion and planning resumed around the Easter Hunt.


Note: Kate advised that Ann and Tony Collett have donated $100:00 for the event – which will be used as 
a float for the event.


Key points to note from the discussion:
• The event would be run from the Hall as the weather is predicted to be inclement. 
• Flyers have been prepared and posted at both the Hall and the Shop.
• Donations are coming in – from Woolworths and Coles as well as from individuals and Vanessa at 


the Shop.
• Sonia volunteered to create an event on the FB page - and asking people to volunteer to assist 


on the day.
• Shirley has placed an ad in the Snake Valley PS newsletter - has gone out once and will again 


before the day.
• Clayton and Shirley to shop for the gazebo and packaged grocery items.
• Kate to arrange with Vanessa at the shop for consumables – bacon, eggs and milk.
• Shirley to print out colouring pages and supply pencils, witches’ hats to close off the parking area 


next to the Hall – and the face painting equipment.
• Kate to collect egg donations and store at her house in case of mice at the Hall.
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• Gay will arrive at about 9:30  - in time to allow for breakfast first and then activities to be run in 
the warmth of the Hall if it is inclement as predicted.


• It was agreed that we would run a raffle on the day – and have a stall at the shop on Saturday if 
the shop was available – Shirley and Kate offered to run the stall – and check shop availability 
with Vanessa. Sonia Van Dorsen offered to dress up the prize (a large fluffy rabbit from the last 
Easter Egg Hunt event) and some eggs from the donations received) in a nice basket.


• Agreed that as we have a commercial kitchen, we would use that on the day due to the weather 
– egg and bacon sandwiches, pancakes with maple syrup and canned cream, juice boxes/water 
and tea and coffee.
Prices as follows:


• Egg and bacon sandwiches  $5:00
• Pancakes $2:00
• Juice box $1:00
• Tea /coffee (unlimited) $1:00
• Raffle Tickets $2:00 for 3


Everyone to arrive at the Hall at 7:30am on the day to get set up.


Motion: that the discussion around general business be accepted


Moved: Ron Bolton Seconded: Kate Breen Carried:    


Meeting Closed:  8:30pm Next meeting scheduled for: Monday April 17th at 7:30 pm


Meeting Times and Dates 


After discussion with Ron Bolton - as agreed during the meeting – meetings will now be held on the third MONDAY 
of every second month


Meeting Type Date Time Venue
General Monday April 17th 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday June 19th 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday August 21st 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall
General Monday October 16th 7.30pm Snake Valley Hall


Note: Gay in the US for the June 19th, 2023, Meeting 


Minutes compiled by Shirley Carson, Secretary, Snake Valley Hall Asset Committee, 2023.
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Waubra Community Assets Committee Meeting 6/6/23


Present – Martin Walmesley, Jerry Van Delft, Marie Loader, Cath Koros, Karen Hinchcliffe, Rebekkah 
Martin, David Clark


Apologies – Kerryn Gallagher


Business Arising – Swinging door to the kitchen needs new hinges, David Clark tried to fix it but it needs 
new hinges.


Correspondance


Inwards – Baylie Lang in regards to sport ground audit


                   Waubra Football Netball Club with pressing maintenance issues


                   Booking request from Auricon for the hire of the facility.


Outwards – Letter of support for the Rabbit Cull to maintain the oval and minimise damage. 


Treasurers Report 


1/2/2023 – 31/5/23           1/7/22 - 31/5/23


Exp. $4973.50                               $ 19,986.60   


Rec. $3670.17                               $18,543.50


Balance $ $4711.60                     


General Business 


The water pump for the toilets is not working properly, when Waubra hosted the Lightning Premiership 
the toilets couldn’t cope. We need a plumber to look into the toilet system, Martin will look into this. 


The solar power is not working, Marie has contacted Steven White but he is on holiday so Marie has left 
a message. 


The Hub Committee received an invoice for Bore pump repairs which the football club will pay. User 
groups need to approach the Hub and acquire a purchase order before any major works. 


Backflow prevention testing needs to be done and Days Plumbing need a purchase order. Martin to 
follow up as we need to work out who pays for it to maintain consistency.


Cemetery trust will put money towards fuel for the mower, $200


Community dinner postponed until Sep/ Oct once football season is finished. 


There is a netball court Audit happening around the Pyrenees Shire


A planning permit needs to be issued before the netball court fence is installed. Karen Molloy to follow 
this up.


The rise in the Pre School fees is covering the utilities at the moment
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We need to write up an official hire agreement for the Hub, requesting a bond or deposit to cover 
cleaning costs and any damage. Cath to draft something


Next meeting to be our AGM, set for  *22/8/23


• Meeting brought forward to 15/9/23
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1 - Premier Strategy // GBAC Strategic Plan – 1 September 2023 


 September 2023www.premierstrategy.com.au


Greater Ballarat Alliance of 
Councils (GBAC)


Strategic Advocacy Plan
2023-24
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2 - Premier Strategy // GBAC Strategic Plan – 1 September 2023 


GBAC strategic advocacy plan
Purpose
The principal purposes of the Greater Ballarat Alliance of Councils (GBAC) are: 


United voice: promote a collective voice for the council members’ region and address common 


issues 


Advocacy: provide an avenue for engagement with state and federal governments and 


departments


 


Strategy: determine the strategic priorities and issues of the council members’ region


Policy: support state and federal policy setting by preparing submissions and policy papers 


on matters that align with GBAC’s priorities


Leadership: build relationships with state and federal governments’ representatives to 


become the recognised peak body for consultation in the region.


Priorities
GBAC’s three priority areas are:


• Transport


• Digital coverage and access


• Enabling growth


Key activities
GBAC will pursue the above purposes and priorities via the following key activities:


• Information gathering and networking


• Informing and influencing state and federal government policy 


• Seeking project funding 
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3 - Premier Strategy // GBAC Strategic Plan – 1 September 2023 


Information gathering and networking
GBAC provides an opportunity for members to engage with each other and relevant external experts 
and decision-makers in a structured and regular way. The primary means for this interaction is via 
monthly council CEO meetings and biannual combined CEO/Mayor meetings. These meetings will 
include regular presentations from subject-matter experts to inform members on updates and impact 
relevant to the identified priority areas for the region. The meetings will be coordinated by Premier 
Strategy in consultation with council CEOs.


Additional meetings will be scheduled to facilitate longer discussions on an ad hoc basis. While such 
meetings may touch on any of the three identified priority areas, digital has been nominated as an 
area in which GBAC members would benefit from extended briefings. This includes presentations 
from state and federal public servants with knowledge of current government digital projects, funding 
opportunities, and priorities. Advice and insights from telecommunication infrastructure providers such 
as NBN and Telstra will also be sought to assist GBAC with digital funding proposals and 
implementation. 


Influencing government policy
State and federal public policies are likely to have a significant impact on GBAC members over the 
coming 12 months. Regarding the priority areas, this will be most noticeable in terms of enabling 
growth - especially as it relates to planning and social and affordable housing. Specifically, the 
Victorian Government has flagged an overhaul to planning laws that would shift many approval 
powers from councils to the Victorian public service. There are also opportunities to influence delivery 
of the $5 billion ‘Big Housing Build’ and the $1 billion investment in social and affordable housing 
announced in conjunction with the cancellation of the 2026 Victorian Commonwealth Games. 


At the federal level, the Commonwealth Government is incentivising expanded housing supply 
through a range of measures. These are in addition to the proposed $10 billion Housing Australia 
Future Fund. These state and federal programs will allow GBAC to influence delivery through 
submissions, direct advocacy, and public commentary. GBAC will also look for opportunities to 
address policy gaps through committee inquiries, direct engagement with decision-makers, and 
thought leadership.       


Submissions


At any given time, there are many consultative processes run by the Commonwealth and Victorian 
governments. While some of these present important opportunities for GBAC to influence policy and 
program delivery, there are too many of these processes to participate in all of them. GBAC has 
agreed on the following principles to guide decision-making on the making of submissions:


• Does the content of submission fall within one of GBAC’s three priority areas?


• Is another group better placed and/or more appropriate to represent the interests of the Greater 
Ballarat region?


• Is the matter in question one of compelling importance and/or fundamental to the interests of the 
GBAC councils and/or the Greater Ballarat region?   
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4 - Premier Strategy // GBAC Strategic Plan – 1 September 2023 


Seeking project funding
Ongoing investment by the Victorian and Commonwealth governments is essential to the economic 
and social prosperity of the Greater Ballarat region. This investment spans services and infrastructure 
- touching on all three of GBAC’s priority areas and beyond. However, analysis of project priorities 
has indicated that there is a particular need for improved transport infrastructure. This shortfall spans 
public transport (rail and bus), roads, and freight (air and heavy vehicles). On this basis, GBAC has 
determined to focus its funding advocacy on transport projects.    


Integrated transport strategy


The breadth of Greater Ballarat’s transport needs demands a comprehensive plan. Such a plan 
should factor the views of the community and experts, anticipate and account for population growth, 
and address the needs of the whole region – from the owner-operator truck driver to the kids riding 
their bikes to school. Developing an integrated strategy that accomplishes all of this comes with a 
price tag. Indeed, it is beyond the means of the six participating councils to fund a data-informed 
strategy solely from their own budgets. As such, GBAC will seek Victorian Government financial 
assistance for this important document.  


Transport vision and advocacy plan


GBAC is committed to progressing a “transport vision” for the region that details key transport 
upgrades that will benefit communities across the Ballarat region. The projects in this document will 
be prioritised according to whether they are specific, meaningful, achievable, relevant and time 
bound. It will be produced in parallel to the transport strategy and include an implementation plan to 
convince key Commonwealth and Victorian stakeholders and decision-makers that the chosen 
projects are worthy of funding in a constrained budgetary environment. This includes identifying who 
the key decision-makers and stakeholders are and identify the activities necessary to cultivate their 
support. In this way, the vision will complement the strategy by anticipating and channelling the 
highest priority transport infrastructure projects into a clear ask that will provide the basis for state and 
federal advocacy.  


Summary of Actions


ADVOCACY ACTION PRIORITY AREA
Guest speakers from digital & 
telecommunications prioritised for early 
presentations


Digital coverage and access


Influencing government policy with a focus on 
planning and social and affordable housing


Enabling Growth 


Project funding to focus on transport 
infrastructure 


Transport


Assessing success
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5 - Premier Strategy // GBAC Strategic Plan – 1 September 2023 


Success over the forthcoming 12 months will be measured in terms of how closely GBAC adheres to 
the processes and outputs identified in this plan. While there will come a time for more ambitious and 
results-based evaluation, it makes sense to focus on internal processes with the Alliance is in its early 
stages. 


Changes of strategy
This Strategic advocacy plan covers the next 12 months of direction for GBAC at which point it will be 
reviewed. However, it may also be amended at any time should this be deemed necessary by GBAC. 
Such changes can be initiated by any member and would be confirmed via group consensus.
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Brolga PETITION
We have something unique and special. Put the BROLGA ahead of wind turbines.


The Communities of Trawatla and Brewster say'NO'to RE FUTURES planning application (PA ztorr5o) for wind turbines and


infrastructure for the reason of brolga protection, an important wetland bird species, threatened in Victoria. The most


recent population estimate of Brotga's in Victoria is only 6oo - 7oo birds, with the population remaining at about the same


level for the past decade. One of the biggest threats to the Brolgas is the loss and degradation of their wetland habitats and


breeding sites. Government Brotga guidelines tell us the Brewster RE FUTURES windfarm is too close to known nearby


brolEa breedinE sites.


You can do something to helpl Sign up and add your voice.


This petition will be a voice to the Planning Minister, Hon. Sonia Kilkenny that we stand firm and say:


YES to sustainable protection of our brolga in the Pyrenees Shire


L


NO to this windfarm
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Become informed
perhaps Australia's most treasured water bird, the brolga is famous for its spectacular dancing ability. Elegant and


majestic, a brolga in full flight is also truly a sight to behold.


Brewster and Trawalla, host a myriad of lowland connected water courses, marshes and wetlands, nestled within farming


land. These important ecosystems form bountiful and precious hotspots for brolga and the food web that supports them,
protected for generations by farming families.


Read: https: l/stopthesethings.com/zozzloa/2slunbridled-bird-slaughter-wind-turbines-wiping-out-australias-iconic-dancinB-brolga/


lmag e cre dit: shutter stock
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Source : https : //brewstenmindfarm.com.au/


The proposed wind farm will consist of up to seven vertical axis wind turbine generators. The candidate wind turbine model for this wind farm is the Vestas V152
HH166. This wind turbine has a rotor diameter of L62 m, a blade length of 81 m, a hub height of 166 m, a total tip height of 247 m.


Check out the inaccurate planning application and see why the turbines should be stopped.
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